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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 29 JUNE 2020 

CHAIRPERSON:  Good morning Mr Soni ,  good morning 

everybody.   Before we start  I  would l ike us to  al l  r ise and I  

observe a moment of  s i lence in remembrance of  a l l  those 

who have passed on as a resul t  of  Covid-19 in th is count ry 

and elsewhere in  the world but  also to honour the doctors,  

nurses and other heal th workers who are in the f ront  l ine in 

the f ight  against  the pandemic.   Thank you.    

Good morning Mr Molefe thank you very much for  

coming back to  the commission to cont inue wi th your 10 

evidence.   We appreciate your commitment to help ing the 

commission.   I  th ink you are coming to the commission 

probably for the sixth t ime.  We real ly appreciate i t ,  we 

understand that  i t  might  mean some inconvenience in terms 

of  your other work but  we appreciate that  you cont inue to 

show your commitment to support ing the commission.    

MR MOLEFE:   Thanks Chai rperson I  am on pension.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much.  You may be seated 

Mr Molefe.   Oh, I  th ink there – there wi l l  need to be the 

swearing – the oath f i rst  because i t  has been a long t ime but  20 

before that  I  do not  know Mr Soni  might  wish to say 

something.   I  have been advised that  i t  is acceptable that  

whenever I  speak or you speak Mr Soni  as wel l  as the 

wi tness,  we take off  the mask and then we put  i t  back when 

we are not  speaking.   Of  course,  we intend observ ing the 
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social  d istance but  I  do not  th ink there is enough space 

between Zwel ih le  here.   Just  one chair  in between I  do not  

th ink is enough.  I  th ink you need to move further – further 

up otherwise I  am looking around I  th ink there is  – otherwise 

enough social  d istancing.   Thank you very much.  Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   Thank you Mr Chai rperson I  would l ike to 

place according to…(microphone off ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease put  on your microphone.  

ADV SONI SC:   Sorry Chai rperson.   That  is according to the 

advice we have received as wel l  Mr Chairperson.   Mr Molefe 10 

( intervent ion).  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight  then we can do the oath.   

Thank you.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease place your fu l l  names for the record? 

MR MOLEFE:   My name is Popo Simon Molefe.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  do not .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider the oath to be b inding on 

your conscience? 20 

MR MOLEFE:   I  do.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you swear that  the evidence you wi l l  g ive 

wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 

t ruth i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 

God. 
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MR MOLEFE:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much.  Yes Mr Soni .    

ADV SONI SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You might  need to just  re-or ientate 

everybody where we lef t  off .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   With Mr Molefe’s evidence 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In the past  and where we are cont inu ing 

there.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Chairperson you wi l l  recal l  that  the last  

issue that  we canvassed with Mr Molefe was the meet ing on 

the 20 August  2015 at  which former President  Zuma 

at tempted to persuade Mr Molefe to  ask his board to take Mr 

Montana back af ter he had resigned and this was about six  

weeks af ter he had lef t  the organisat ion on the 15 Ju ly 2015.   

Then you wi l l  a lso recal l  Mr Chai rperson that  Mr Molefe in 

deal ing wi th that  matter deal t  wi th a meet ing that  he had 

held wi th the top six asking them to create some semblance 

of  normal i ty at  PRASA on account of  the at tacks that  Mr 20 

Montana had been making against  Mr Molefe and the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second.  The ai r  condi t ioner 

seems to be on i t  does not  feel  l ike i t  is a heater i t  is l ike i t  

is making us cold so I  th ink somebody wi l l  at tend to that .   

Okay.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Mr Chai rperson may I  ask i f  I  can just  real ly  

br ief ly deal  wi th that  matter because you wi l l  recal l  that  one 

of  the quest ions I  asked and you also asked Mr Chai rperson 

was whether i t  –  i t  made sense that  the board was being 

asked to take Mr Montana back given the background 

ci rcumstances of  which everybody knew.  And you wi l l  recal l  

that  Mr Molefe sa id that  i t  had been widely reported in the 

media.   We have since then Mr Chairperson and we have 

augmented the f i le and at  pages 222 to page 258… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us just  indicate… 10 

ADV SONI SC:   Oh sorry yes Mr Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which number that  f i le is? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   I t  wi l l  – Bundle D Exhibi t  SS6.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And what page? 

ADV SONI SC:   So th is is the art ic les are at  222 to 258 Mr 

Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  would be the same f i le  that  Mr 

Molefe has got  in f ront  of  h im, is that  r ight? 

ADV SONI SC:   That  – that  is so Chairperson yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Page 222 that  is where they start .  20 

ADV SONI SC:   That  is so.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  the instance when I  was looking 

at  th is f i le  they did not  seem to be arranged accord ing to  

dates.  

ADV SONI SC:   The – the art ic les themselves are not .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   The art ic le ( intervenes).  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Why not?  I  thought that  they would go 

f ront  the ear l iest  up to – when you read – when you t ry to  

fo l low the story.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  I  had to t ry and see which one is 

supposed to – you see for example at  page 222 you have got  

an art ic le of  7 August  2015 and at  page 238 you have got  an 

art ic le of  6 July 2015.   I  mean that  is 26 and then at  page 10 

243 you have got  an art ic le of  23 Ju ly 2015.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They should have been arranged according 

to dates.  

ADV SONI SC:   They should have been arranged 

chronological ly yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So that  one could see the bui ld-up.   

This is how the report ing started.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And how i t  – how i t  bui l t  up.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Up to the date of  the meet ing.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In terms of  what everyone must have been 

seeing in the – in the media.  
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ADV SONI SC:   In  the media,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson can I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  know whether i t  can be changed? 

ADV SONI SC:   I t  wi l l  be done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Chairperson because with respect  i t  – 

you are absolute ly r ight  that  is how i t  should have been 

done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   I  d id not… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay the only – the only problem of  course 

is that  when you refer to the art ic les now i f  you ment ion the 

page numbers and the page numbers are going to change.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  wi l l  be problem with the t ranscr ipt .   But  

i t  may be that  – i t  may be that  later  on when the – when this  

has been changed arrangements can be made for  you to 

place on record what the latest  number – page numbers wi l l  

be.   Okay,  al r ight .  20 

ADV SONI SC:   I  apologise Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Okay.   I t  is qui te dark where I  am.  I  

do not  know whether there is anything that  can be done 

about i t .   I  know that  last  t ime there was that  same issue but  

we wi l l  cont inue in the meant ime.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Yes Chairperson.   Chairperson may I  

say in regard to the art ic les.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Just  one second.  I t  may wel l  be i f  

that  – i f  there are problems in  get t ing – need to have bet ter  

l ight ing here i t  may wel l  be that  a  gas l ight  might  help so 

that  when I  want to read I  can see the words.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Clear ly.   So – ja,  okay al r ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson the – i t  is not  my intent ion in  

referr ing to the art ic les to go into any depth.   The idea is  10 

merely again to emphasise the point  that  i t  just  made no 

sense and i t  was in the publ ic arena that  there was this 

incompat ibi l i ty between Mr Montana and the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  apart  f rom any incompat ibi l i ty I  th ink 

for  me what is  most  important  is the fact  that  the quest ion 

whether the art ic les which were in  the media made i t  

reasonable for us to – to make i t  reasonable for us to  expect  

that  people who normal ly read what is in the media would 

have been aware that  at  PRASA there are al l  these very 

ser ious al legat ions of  corrupt ion.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was al leged to have been tak ing 

place so that  whatever proposals or  decis ions people were 

making they were making them being aware of  a l l  o f  these 

things.  



29 JUNE 2020 – DAY 226 
 

Page 10 of 204 
 

ADV SONI SC:   Absolutely.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Molefe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink that  i t  would help me a great  deal  i f  

Mr Molefe is able and your quest ioning can be di rected that  

he is able to say based on what I  to ld the Top 6 anyone who 

was in that  meet ing would have known the fol lowing features 

of  corrupt ion at  PRASA because I  to ld them.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1,  2,  3,  4 at  least  some of  the important  

ones.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  may be that  i t  is something that  he might  

be able to do wi thout  going back to ref resh his memory.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  may be that  i t  is  something that  he would 

prefer to refresh h is memory before ment ion – saying i t .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So i f  we do not  deal  wi th i t  now because 

he might  not  have – he might  need to ref resh h is memory we 

can deal  wi th i t  later when he has a t ime – he has had a 

chance to ref resh his memory.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  would l ike – I  would l ike that  – that 

k ind of  evidence that  makes i t  qui te  clear that  here are some 

of  the features of  corrupt ion or al legat ions of  corrupt ion at  

PRASA that  anyone who was at  that  meet ing was told about .  

ADV SONI SC:   And – and Chairperson wi th respect  the – i t  

was not  just  al legat ions of  smal l  corrupt ion this  was bi l l ions 

of  rands.   For example among… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Exact ly.  

ADV SONI SC:   So – so perhaps I  should ask Mr Molefe 

whether he would l ike t ime to look at  i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Or he can talk about  i t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no that  is f ine.  Mr Molefe you have 

heard the exchange between the Chairperson and mysel f  and 

you understand the – the issue that  r ises because the whole 

quest ion is should something have been done other than 

cal l ing a meet ing on the 20t h to say take Mr Montana back?  

But  I  – do you want to go through the art ic les or do you know 

them suff ic ient ly? 

MR MOLEFE:   Chai rperson I  – I  do not  intend to go through 20 

the art ic les unless Counsel  would l ike me to do so and refer  

me to speci f ic ones.   I  mean at  the t ime I  read a lot  of  them 

and I  d id refer ear l ier on in my evidence to this campaign to 

vi l i fy the board and to at tack the Chair  of  the Board and 

fol lowing the – the fact  that  in November of  2014 the Board 
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had become aware that  there was a b ig tender that  was – 

that  had been adjudicated upon and the Chair  of  the Finance 

Capi tal  Investment Commit tee who had been the previous 

Chair  of  the Board had wanted the Board that  I  was chair ing 

to quickly approve that  tender for the modernisat ion of 

Braamfonte in Depot and of  course the procurement of  the 

ra i ls and turnouts as part  of  the preparat ion for the t rains 

that  were going to be coming f rom Brazi l  which were being 

manufactured in Brazi l .   And the Chairperson would recal l  

that  dur ing my evidence I  said that  the Board had been 10 

misled by the former GCE Mr Montana who had said that  he 

had a probi ty report  when we had asked for the probi ty 

report  because we needed assurance that  the process was 

proper and was clean.   I t  turned out  that  that  report  d id not  

exist  and he knew i t  d id  not  exist  but  he l ied to the Board.   

So that  is one aspect  now we exposing and we stop that  

tender process for that  t ime. I t  involved wel l  over R2 bi l l ion.   

And then the next  t ime is when we discover and actual ly 

insist  that  Mr Montana gives a report  that  in fact  the Publ ic  

Protector was not  only invest igat ing PRASA but  had been 20 

asking for comments of  PRASA on the inter im report  that  she 

had given to PRASA.  The Chai rperson would recal l  that  Mr 

Montana then gave me a f i le containing that  report  around 

March 2015.  Now the ser ies of  media reports come af ter we 

exposed what appears to be corrupt ion at  the t ime.   And of  
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course we were al ready saying we have got  to invest igate 

because the Audi tor General  a lso complains about the audi t  

of  the f inancial  year.   Now there are dots that  one can 

connect  Chairperson.   Chai rperson wi l l  recal l  that  I  – I  had 

also referred to the – what I  said was PRASA in turmoi l  and I  

said i t  was a – a report  by Mr Montana.   In fact ,  PRASA in 

turmoi l  was a sect ion in the report  of  Mr Montana.   The real  

th ing is that  Mr Montana had wri t ten a detai led repor t  on the 

27 July addressed to Minister Jeff  Radebe who was in the 

Presidency.   I  d id say that  I  had got ten a copy f rom the 10 

whist le-blower but  I  was st ruggl ing to f ind i t .   I  regret  that  

Chairperson I  am not  computer savvy.   I  have found i t  last  

night .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MR MOLEFE:   And I  read i t  but  I  t r ied to send i t  where I  

could – I  could pr int  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Then i t  looks l ike I  have lost  i t  so I  would 

need to get  some computer experts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   There to assist  i t  but  i t  is the report  to  

Minister Jeff  Radebe on the Board of  PRASA. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Recent events at  PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  
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MR MOLEFE:   I t  is a very long report .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   When one reads that  report  there is a  – there 

is a  l ink and connect ion between a ser ies of  media art ic les 

and what that  report  was saying.   Because a lot  of  what we 

read in these media art ic les are also contained in that  

report .   And qui te  clear ly the target  in that  report  and as can 

be seen in the art ic les as wel l  is the Chai rman of  the Board 

is a problemat ic person.   Of course,  to some instance in  

some of  – instances the Minister of  Transport  was also you 10 

know targeted for  at tacks.   So I  wi l l  look for that  report  and 

then i t  wi l l  assist  the Chai rperson.   Now … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe before you – before you leave the 

report ,  I  must  just  say I  know that  Mr Soni  is very happy to  

hear that  the report  has been found.   I  am very happy that  i t  

has been found.   I  have been very concerned about whether  

we wi l l  ever f ind i t .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They wi l l  make arrangements to make IT 

people avai lable to you because obviously we also want to  20 

have the report .   You want us to have the report  so i f  – i f  you 

– i f  the commission can assist  wi th IT people that  they wi l l  

be made avai lable to you and then we should have i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  wi l l  be pleased to hear that .   But  

Chairperson Min is ter Jeff  Radebe has got  the report .   I f  he 
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wants to help the commission he too… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Can make the report  avai lable for  the 

commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  was actual ly th inking as you were 

tel l ing me that  – as you were te l l ing me that  the report  was 

addressed to him then i t  occurred to me that  then we could 

ask him i f  he has – i f  he st i l l  has i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  of  course,  i f  you can f ind i t  let  – that  10 

wi l l  enable us to have i t  quicker but  the former Minis ter may 

have to – to assist  wi th issues re lat ing to some of  the 

matters that  have come here.  

MR MOLEFE:   I f  he wants to help the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes – no,  no I  am – I  am conf ident  that  he 

– he wi l l  make himsel f  avai lable.  

MR MOLEFE:   Now Chairperson when I  – I  am going to come 

to the meet ing of  the – the Top 6.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  when I  read the report  last  n ight .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  occurred to me that  there is an explanat ion 

to the quest ion that  the Chairperson asked when the 

Chairperson said,  you mean you could start  the meet ing at  6  

and f in ish at  2?  I t  is  a  long report  and only Mr Montana 
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knew what the meet ing was about.   Him the President  and Mr 

Radebe.  Because he spoke for a long t ime referr ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   And ta lk ing f rom the notes which now turned 

out  that  i t  – i t  was in fact  that  – that  report  which of  course 

Minister Radebe in the meet ing denied to have received i t .   

Mr Montana did not  say,  I  wrote this report  to Mr Radebe.  I  

had told Minister before he went to  that  meet ing that  I  had 

received this document leaked to me by a whist le-blower and 

so she wanted Mr Radebe to give her  copy and he denied 10 

that  he had i t  in that .   But  i t  explains why that  meet ing was 

… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second.  Just  one second Mr 

Molefe I  want to understand that  part .   Are you saying that  at  

the meet ing Mr Montana indicated that  he had sent  the 

report  to the Minis ter? 

MR MOLEFE:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh no.  

MR MOLEFE:   He did not  say so but  he was saying things 

that  are contained in that  report .   No,  no Mr Montana was 20 

saying things that  were contained in the report .   And some of  

the quest ions that  the President  also comments he was 

making i t  is c lear  are contained in that  report .   And you wi l l  

see the l ink between that  and these art ic les.   The essence 

was that  I  am Lucky Montana,  I  am the best  Group CEO of  
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th is organisat ion.   I  can bui ld PRASA.  This board does not  

want to give me the opportuni ty to do that  they are 

destroying me.  There is nobody else who can run this  

organisat ion but  me.  And I  to ld them that  al though I  said I  

do not  want extension on my cont ract  I  have changed my 

mind now.  I f  you want me I  can come back.   And which is 

what the President  was t ry ing to do to say no,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And my recol lect ion is that  in your  

evidence last  t ime you actual ly said the President  a lso said 

Mr Montana is the best  guy to do this job.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   And as I  read the report  and of  course when 

you read these art ic les you see what South Afr ican 

Commuters Organisat ion says even somewhere and he is 

saying in the art ic le and what Zenzo Mahlangu I  refer to him 

in my evidence ear l ier on he had been the General  Secretary 

of  SATAWU whose union was also doing business of  course 

wi th the – wi th PRASA through I  th ink a company cal led 

Blackstar but  they had a t rust  cal led Bashume which 

belonged to the union.   When you – so i t  is a common 

message so around which al l  of  these forces were being 20 

mobi l ised against  the Board to some extent  against  the 

Minister of  Transport  as wel l .   So – so now was corrupt ion 

widely known at  the t ime?  We had al ready deal t  wi th the 

Braamfonte in Depot and we stopped i t .   We made i t  c lear  

that  we are stopping i t  because i t  was i r regular  and i t  
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involved bi l l ions of  rands.   When I  br iefed the Top 6 of  the 

governing party – my party I  referred to  the fact  that  our 

invest igat ions show that  we have been mis led.   There was 

this tender that  was about to be issued which was i rregular  

and we stopped i t .   And we are conduct ing several  other  

invest igat ions which I  reveal  a massive corrupt ion wi thin the 

organisat ion there.   So – so i t  was known at  that  t ime that  

there was this massive corrupt ion but  the speed in which the 

media campaign mass mobi l isat ion demonstrat ion and al l  

these other  forces are being mobi l ised against  the Board 10 

clear ly to me was intended to stop those invest igat ions.   So 

to get  these people out  of  the way before the invest igat ions 

are ful ly  concluded.  Now Chai rperson i f  you look at  what we 

have seen in th is  process of  State Capture i tsel f  and I  d id 

say so at  the beginning of  my evidence as wel l  that  for i t  to  

succeed systems in organisat ions must  be broken,  must  be 

weakened.  And I  d id say that  good people were being 

removed f rom posi t ions and subst i tuted by people who were 

compl iant  who would carry out  the agenda whose object ive is  

the loot ing of  the publ ic purse and this central  message 20 

being that  one of  State Capture.   So – so here to suddenly 

people feel  that  th is Board is  a problemat ic  board.   

Corrupt ion cannot  cont inue for as long as these people are 

in off ice.   But  the most  problemat ic one is th is one cal led 

Popo Molefe who is the Chai rman of  the Board.   Ja.   Get him 
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out  of  the way and then we can go back to – to our business 

as usual .   So – so real ly that  – that  was the agenda.  You 

see vi l i f icat ion I  mean l ies that  are being told here about me 

being corrupt ,  me being doing this and that .  And the 

judgment in court  were evidence ar is ing out  of  our  

invest igat ion were presented conf i rmed the correctness of  

the posi t ions that  we took and proves a l ie of  what Mr 

Montana and a l l  of  these people were saying.   Because I  

mean i t  went  r ight  up to the Const i tut ional  Court ,  and ou r  

pos i t ion  as  the  board  o f  PRASA was repeated ly  conf i rmed.   10 

So,  Cha i rperson,  yes ,  i t  was pub l i c  knowledge,  the  leaders  

knew about  tha t  cor rup t ion .   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  thank you,  Mr  Mole fe ,  why what  was  

known in  the  pub l ic  domain  and what  you to ld  the  top  s ix  a t  

tha t  meet ing  is  impor tan t  i s  because the  top  s i x  a re  the  top  

leaders  o f  the  govern ing  par ty  and most  o f  them wou ld  

have been in  government  as  we l l  and fo r  me,  the  quest ion  

ar ises ,  i f  they  are  to ld  by  the  Cha i rperson o f  a  board  o f  an 

government  en t i t y  such as  PRASA tha t  there  is  a  lo t  o f  

cor rup t ion  tha t  we see has been happen ing ,  o r  tha t  we 20 

th ink  has been happen ing ,  and we are  tak ing  s teps to  

invest iga te ,  I  want  to  know what  they d id  a f te r  tha t  about  

what  you to ld  them.    

I  want  to  know what  they d id ,  no t  f rom you because 

you to ld  me a l ready tha t  they never  came back to  you fo r  
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any th ing ,  bu t  I  want  to  know when they come here ,  I  want  

to  know what  they d id  about  tha t .    

We are  a l l  aware  o f  what  i s  in  the  pub l i c  domain  

about  PRASA,  even now.   We a re  a l l  aware  about  what  i s  

in  the  pub l i c  domain  about  o ther  SOEs about  wh ich  the re  

have been a  lo t  o f  ev idence  o f  cor rup t ion  in  th is  

Commiss ion ,  SAA,  Eskom,  Dene l  and i t  wou ld  appear  tha t  

these th ings do  not  s ta r t  jus t  now,  these th ings seem to  

have s tar ted  a  long t ime ago and i t  i s  on ly  p roper  t ha t  th is  

Commiss ion  shou ld  ask  the  quest ion  to  some o f  those  10 

peop le ,  where  were  you,  what  d id  you do about  th is?   D id  

you not  have a  respons ib i l i t y  to  do  someth ing?  So tha t  i s  

why i t  i s  impor tan t  to  me to  know,  apar t  f rom what  was in  

the  med ia .    

We have the  advantage tha t  you had a  meet ing  w i th  

the  top  s ix  and you to ld  tha t  you a le r ted  them and a re  

there  no  s teps tha t  they ought  to  have taken,  maybe wh ich  

wou ld  have made  sure  tha t  PRASA is  no t  where  i t  i s  today  

in  te rms o f  i t s  f inanc ia l  pos i t ion  and tha t  i s  par t  o f  

accountab i l i t y  and par t  o f  what  we  have to  look  a t .    20 

I  mean,  you were  he re  las t  t ime when we touched  

on the  issue o f  par l iamentary  overs igh t .   I  asked the  same 

quest ions about  par l iament .    

Where  was par l iament  when a l l  o f  these th ings –  a l l  

o f  th is  cor rup t ion  appears  to  have been happen ing  a l l  
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these years ,  what  were  they do ing  about  i t?    

They have a  r igh t  to  ca l l  the  Pres ident  and say what  

i s  go ing  on  under  your  government?   What  i s  go ing  on  w i th  

your  m in is te r  so  and so  who i s  no t  do ing  h i s  o r  her  job?   

They can ca l l  the  m in is te r,  they  can ca l l  the  DGs,  

they can fo l low up,  they can put  tha t  a l l iance and say i f  

you  do not  f i x  th is  by  such and such a  t ime,  we w i l l  pass a  

vo te  o f  no  conf idence in  the  who le  cab ine t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  a t  the  –  i f  counse l  agrees a t  

the  end o f  my ev idence,  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  do  – we l l ,  10 

counse l  can te l l  us  when to  do  i t ,  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  do  

what  we w i l l  ca l l  do  connect ing  o f  the  do ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Because in  a l l  o f  tha t  we can go r igh t  to  the  

var ious m in is te rs ,  the  por t fo l io  commi t tees o f  par l iament .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Speaker  o f  Par l iament .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    You know,  the  e f fo r ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    And then le t te rs  we wro te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wro te ,  yes ,  yes ,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    A l l  o f  those th ings and then we can say bu t  

what  does th is  mean?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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MR MOLEFE:    And then when we are  busy w i th  th is  sor t  o f  

th ing  and the  m in is te r  s tands in  par l iament  says I  am 

d isso l v ing  th is  board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  cer ta in l y  tha t  i s  a  very  impor tan t  

par t .  

MR MOLEFE:    So  we w i l l  have to  connect  a l l  o f  those a t  

some po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    Because they g i ve  a  p ic tu re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    O f  –  and I  may want  to  ask  a  tough  

quest ion  as  we l l  wh ich  is  s im i la r  to  what  the  Cha i rperson i s  

say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  we w i l l  do  tha t  and I  w i l l  l eave i t  

to  counse l  to  see where  the  r igh t  t ime is .   I t  m igh t  be  a t  

the  end when you have a l l  the  ev idence to  then ra ise  the  

issue.    

I  have sa id  pub l i c ly  tha t  I  have spoken to  the  20 

Speaker  o f  Par l iament  and the  Cha i rperson o f  the  NCOP 

and sa id  tha t  I  th ink  tha t  par l iament  may need to  s ta r t  

work ing  on  the  issue o f  how i t  has  car r ied  ou t  i t s  overs igh t  

funct ions over  the  past  x  number  o f  years  and be ab le  to  

come befo re  the  Commiss ion  a t  some s tage and ind ica te  
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what  i s  revea led  by  an  exerc ise  o f  check ing .    

And,  in  par t i cu la r.  I  am look ing  a t  the  SOEs,  

spec i f i c  SOEs about  wh ich  we have heard  a  lo t  o f  ev idence  

here  bu t  a lso  ce r ta in  government  depar tments  and o the r  

funct ionar ies  to  say what  d id  they do?  D id  they do  the i r  

job  proper ly  because i t  may we l l  be  tha t  i f  they  had done 

the i r  job  the  way  i t  shou ld  be  done,  maybe ce r ta in  th ings  

m ight  no t  have happened.  

But  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  they a re  ab le  to  come here  

and say look,  these are  our  l im i ta t ions  in  te rms o f  10 

mechan isms tha t  a re  ava i lab le  to  us  and these are  our  

l im i ta t ions  in  te rms o f  resources,  we went  as  fa r  as  we  

cou ld .    

I f  we are  in  the  fu tu re  go ing  to  be  expected to  do  

more ,  cer ta in  changes must  be  made to  enab le  us  to  do  

tha t ,  then tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  th is  

Commiss ion  can be sa id  to  have proper ly  f in ished  i t s  job 

w i thout  hear ing  what  par l iament  d id .   Thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Mole fe ,  may I  jus t  

say  tha t  I  am p leased you ra ised the  issue o f  r igh t  a t  the  20 

end connect ing  a l l  the  do ts  because I  jus t  want  to  make 

th is  comment  be fore  we go on  w i th  the  res t  o f  your  

ev idence.    

You are  in  a  un ique pos i t ion ,  as  I  see i t ,  you  have 

the  communica t i on  w i th  the  Pres ident  in  regard  to  the 
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mat te rs  you have  descr ibed a l ready wh ich  does not  make 

too  much sense and we have debated tha t .    

Then your  board  is  d ismissed.   As  you have sa id ,  

ins tead o f  par l iament  exe rc i s ing  overs igh t  over  the  

m in is te r,  the  m in is te r  goes to  the  por t fo l io  commi t tee  and  

announces the  d i sso lvement  o f  the  board  be fore  then and 

she is  no t  asked why d id  you do –  I  want  to  ra i se  a l l  those  

th ings.    

And then you go to  the  po l i ce  and  say bu t  look ,  we 

have got  peop le  who are  invo l ved in  f raud amount ing  to  10 

b i l l i ons  o f  rands and they do  noth ing  about  i t .    

That  i s  a l l  con ta ined in  here  and so  I  am p leased  

you have ra ised th is  quest ion  because I  was go ing  to  do  

tha t  bu t  I  am p leased in  the  sense you have a lso  looked a t  

the  b ig  p ic tu re .  

But  be fore  we go  on w i th  your  ev idence,  there  are  

th ree  mat te rs  I  want  to  ra ise  w i th  you in  re la t ion  to  what  

you have sa id  th i s  morn ing .    

You sa id  the  mat te r  –  one o f  the  mat te rs  went  to  the  

CC,  tha t  i s  the  Swi fambo mat te r,  am I  r igh t?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  i t  d id  say.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You must  te l l  h im when you say CC,  you  

mean Const i tu t iona l  Cour t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  beg your  pardon,  yes .   The  

Const i tu t iona l  Cour t ,  yes .   Yes,  i s  tha t  the  j udgment  you 
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a re  re fer r ing  to?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And we have been th rough the  fac t  tha t  

bo th  the  H igh  Cour t  and the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  sa id  

there  was cor rup t ion  and they f inge red two peop le ,  Mr  

Montana and Mr  Mt imku lu  and I  ment ion  them because you 

ment ion  them la ter  in  your  ev idence.  

 The second th ing  I  want  to  ask  you was,  ear l ie r  on  

you sa id  tha t  the  fo rmer  Cha i rperson o f  the  board  wanted 

to  hasten  the  B raamfonte in  tender.   Do you reca l l  say ing  10 

tha t  a  l i t t le  wh i le  ago?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  d id  say tha t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Who is  the  Cha i rperson because,  I  mean,  

I  know –  I  jus t  wanted a  name to  i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    The Cha i rpe rson o r  my predecessor  was –  

i s  cu r ren t ly  one  o f  the  Deputy  Min is te rs ,  Mr  Bu the lez i ,  

S i f i so  Buthe lez i .    

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  S i f i so  Buthe lez i .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  a t  the  t ime in  November  when he 

brought  the  submiss ion ,  he  was  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  20 

F inance and Cap i ta l  Investment  Commi t tee .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And he,  a t  the  same t ime tha t  Mr  Montana  

sa id  he  was leav ing  r igh t  a t  the  ou tse t  o f  your  tenure  as  

Cha i rperson,  he  a lso  to ld  you he  was res ign ing  f rom the  

board .  
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MR MOLEFE:    He ac tua l l y  g ive  me h is  res ignat ion  le t te r,  

tha t  i s  in  the  –  when the  board  was meet ing  and  he was 

mak ing  the  submiss ion  fo r  the  Braamfonte in  –  on  the 

Braamfonte in  depot  modern i sa t ion .  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  he was push ing  th is  th rough be fore  he  

le f t  the  board?  

MR MOLEFE:    He was –  tha t  was the  las t  th ing ,  you know,  

cont rac t  he  wanted approved befo re  he  le f t .   Whether  there  

was reason fo r  h im to have de layed i t  o r  –  I  do  no t  know.   

Of  course ,  when I  read Mr  Montana ’s  repor t  to  Min is te r  Je f f  10 

Radebe,  he  b lames the  board  fo r  hav ing  de layed tha t  

tender  whereas we were  see ing  i t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime a t  tha t  

meet ing  in  November.    

But ,  be  i t  as  i t  may,  he  wanted i t  approved as  he  

was leav ing .   Whether  the re  was  any mot ive  or  no t ,  I  do  

no t  know,  and I  do  no t  want  to  impute  any mot ive  to  tha t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    No,  I  unders tand.   F ina l l y,  a t  the  meet ing  

o f  the  20  Augus t ,  Min is te r  D ipuo  Peters  asked Min is te r  

Radebe about  the  PRASA in te rna l  repor t .   Asked fo r  a  copy  

o f  the  repor t .  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  bu t  I  d id  say tha t  the  t i t le  o f  the  repor t  

i s  no t  PRASA In terna l ,  i t  i s  the  repor t  o f  Min i s te r  Je f f  

Radebe on the  board  o f  PRASA and i t  se t  ou t  wha t  i t  says  

are  recent  events .   And somewhere  in  the  repor t  o f  course  

there  is  a  sect ion  tha t  re fe rs  to  PRASA in  tu rmoi l .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  jus t  want  to  –  I  know you are  

look ing  bo th  a t  me and counse l  whereas you answer  –  

remember  to  look  more  a t  me than h im.   Yes,  thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now on your  unders tand ing ,  Min is te r  

Radebe had the  repor t  because i t  was addressed to  h im.  

MR MOLEFE:    He had i t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    When Min i s te r  D ipuo Pete rs  asked  fo r  the 

repor t  what  was Min is te r  Radebe ’s  response?  

MR MOLEFE:    He sa id  he  d id  no t  have i t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    D id  tha t  su rp r ise  you?  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  I  –  Cha i rperson,  I  knew he had i t  

because i t  came –  the  wh is t le  b lower  b rought  i t  f rom h i s  

o f f i ce  and i t  was addressed to  h im  and  c lear l y  the  manner  

in  wh ich  the  mee t ing  was conducted found i t s  bas i s  in  tha t  

repor t  because i t  was about  what  Montana was  say ing  

la rge ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  to  re f resh  my memory,  th is  repor t ,  

you had –  d id  you have a  –  had you seen the  repor t  a t  the  

t ime o f  the  meet ing  yourse l f?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  had seen i t  much ear l ie r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  because i t  was such a  sens i t i ve  

document . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . I  …[ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was not  o f f i c i a l .  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was not  o f f i c ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    So  but  what  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  ex is ted  long before  the  meet ing ,  

tha t  i s  the  po in t  you can make? 

MR MOLEFE:    The repor t  was wr i t ten  on  the  27  Ju ly,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    The meet ing  took p lace around  the  20  10 

August .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay,  thank you.   And  i t  was 

addressed to  Min i s te r  Radebe?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  take  i t  be fore  the  meet ing  you wou ld  

have to ld  Min i s te r  Peters  about  th is  repor t .  

MR MOLEFE:    I  d id  Cha i r.   Not  tha t  day o f  the  meet ing ,  

much ear l ie r.   I  d id  say to  her,  you know,  I  have seen th i s  

k ind  o f  a  document .   Of  course ,  I  had g iven i t  to  the  20 

lawyers  a lso  to  keep.   Now I  have been t ry ing  to  ge t  i t  f rom 

them,  they do  not  know what  they have done to  i t .   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  bu t  I  had to ld  Min is te r  D ipuo Pe ters  and 

tha t  i s  why in  tha t  meet ing  he  sa id  …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    She asked fo r  i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    She asked fo r  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    F ina l l y,  in  regard  to  the  repor t ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  

I  re i te ra te  the  inv i ta t ion  o f  the  Cha i rperson to  make use o f  

fac i l i t i es  a t  the  Commiss ion .   I  am conf ident  tha t  i f  you  

gave them the  lap top  or  computer  where  tha t  was,  they  

wou ld  f ind  i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    I t  has  taken a  long t ime to  ge t  here ,  Mr  

Mole fe ,  bu t  may I  then ask  tha t  we go back to  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    D id  I  ta lk  too  much? 

ADV SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  no ,  sor ry,  we have been  ask ing  

quest ions ou ts ide  the  ambi t  because,  as  the  Cha i rpe rson 

po in ted  out ,  th is  i s  p ivo ta l  to  the  work  o f  the  Commiss ion .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Cer ta in ly  in  regard  to  PRASA.   Can I  then 

ask ,  you have th is  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident  and  in  the  20 

next  top ic  you d i scuss is  the  d i sm issa l  o f  the  board .   Now 

can you te l l  us  –  we know tha t  on  the  8  March 2017 the  

Min is te r  d i smissed the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Son i ,  I  may have I  

m isunders tood you but  I  thought  your  p lan  was to  take  Mr  
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Mo le fe  to  the  med ia  a r t i c les  br ie f l y  be fore  you go to  the 

meet ings to  h igh l igh t  a l l  the  cer ta in  fea tures .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  do  you th ink  tha t  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  

impor tan t ,  he  may have ment ioned  some o f  the  th ings bu t  i t  

i s  impor tan t  l i ke  maybe to  s imp ly  h igh l igh t  some o f  the 

fea tures  in  the  a r t i c les  be fore  we  go to  the  meet ing  o r  i s  

your  p lan  to  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  was hop ing  tha t  I  wou ld  use the  key 

in te rva l  to  p ick  ou t  about  f i ve  o f  the  ar t i c les .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  tha t  is  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  

f ine .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  I  cou ld  do  i t  now,  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  i t  may 

take  a  l i t t le  longer  because I  cou ld  ident i f y  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  i t  i s  f ine ,  we can do i t  la te r,  ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  we know tha t  the  Min i s te r  on  the  8  

March 2017 purpor ted  to  d ismiss  the  board  and I  say  

purpo r ted  because tha t  d ismissa l  was se t  as ide .   But  what  

were  the  reasons  tha t  led  to  tha t  dec is ion?  You dea l  w i th  

f rom paragraph 93 o f  you r  a f f idav i t ,  Mr  Mole fe .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  parag raph? 

ADV SONI  SC:    Paragraph 93,  Cha i rperson,  page 24.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Wel l ,  i t  s ta r ts  o f f  w i th  the  quest ion  o f  

appo in t ing  a  rep lacement  fo r  Mr  Montana a f te r  he  le f t  on  
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the  15  Ju ly  2015.  

MR MOLEFE:    Counse l ,  you are  ask ing  what  were  the  

reasons fo r  the  d isso lu t ion  o f  the  board?  I s  tha t  the  

quest ion?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   Wel l ,  ja ,  and what  were  the 

c i rcumstances lead ing  up to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And inso far  as  you are  asked what  the  

reasons were ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  you must  fee l  f ree  to  ind ica te  

what  reasons were  g iven by  the  Min is te r  fo r  her  dec is ion  

and to  say what ,  on  your  ana lys is  o f  the  s i tua t ion ,  the  10 

reasons were ,  whether  you agree tha t  those were  the  

reasons or  you say the  reasons were  d i f fe ren t  fo r  th is  and  

tha t  tha t  reason.   So I  jus t  a le r t  you tha t  even though the  

quest ion  is  pu t  l ike  tha t ,  there  may be a  d i f fe rence  – you  

might  have a  d i f fe ren t  v iew about  what  the  reasons  were  to  

the  reasons tha t  were  g i ven by  the  Min i s te r.  

MR MOLEFE:    The f i rs t  po in t ,  Cha i rperson,  i s  tha t  Mr  

Montana leaves because h i s  cont rac t  i s  end ing  and he says  

he  does not  want  ex tens ion  bu t  in  rea l i t y,  he  wanted  

ex tens ion .   He wanted another  cont rac t  and c lear ly,  the  20 

Min is te r  he rse l f  –  i t  w i l l  be  coming perhaps when you  

connect  those dots  you w i l l  now see tha t  the  Min is te r  i s  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  th ink  –  I  am sor ry,  Mr  Mole fe .   I f ,  

as  you g ive  your  ev idence or  as  you answer  any quest ion ,  
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there  i s  an  aspec t  o f  connect ing  the  do ts  tha t  you th ink  i s  

appropr ia te  to  do  there  and then,  fee l  f ree  to  do  i t ,  no t  wa i t  

un t i l  la te r  bu t  la te r  on  we can wrap up.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  –  so  i f  i t  i s  conven ien t ,  connect  the 

do ts  as  you go a long.  

MR MOLEFE:    Wi l l  do  so ,  Cha i rpe rson.   The board ,  as  

Montana le f t ,  wanted to  appo in t  a  new g roup CEO and i t  

had gone th rough  an e labora te  process o f  in te rv iewing and 

had ident i f ied  a  person fo r  tha t  pos i t ion .  10 

 Now in  te rms o f  the  shareho lde rs ’ compact  and the  

memorandum of  incorpora t ion ,  the  board  needs to  

recommend to  the  Min is te r  and then o f  course  has  go t  i t s  

own pro toco ls ,  she has then to  take  i t  to  the  Pres ident  and  

to  the  re levant  commi t tee  o f  the  cab ine t  and come back.   

Cab ine t  must  approve because  the  cab ine t  approves 

appo in tment  o f  g roup CEOs,  D i rec tors  Genera l s ,  

Commiss ioners ,  Cha i rpersons o f  board  and d i rec to rs ,  

board  o f  d i rec tors ,  ja .   She was re luc tan t .   She had to ld  me  

tha t  she agrees  w i th  me,  she is  no t  go ing  to  change 20 

anyth ing ,  she is  go ing  to  p resent  i t  as  i t  was but  there  was 

no movement .  

 And the  next  th ing  then,  she wanted us  to  appo in t  

in  an  ac t ing  capac i ty  a  person who was a  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Of f i cer  in  the  Depar tment  o f  Transpor t ,  Mr  Co l l ins  Le tsoa lo .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  you proceed,  Mr  Mole fe ,  you  

sa id ,  I  th ink ,  the  board  had conducted in te rv iews and  had 

ident i f ied  a  person tha t  they be l ieved cou ld  be  Group CEO 

and had made a  recommendat ion  to  the  Min i s te r,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?    

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  may he lp ,  bu t  you –  i f  the re  a re  

reasons –  maybe there  are  reasons  you might  be  re luc tan t ,  

m ight  have to  look  tha t ,  i t  may he lp  i f  we know who was 

recommended.   I  say  tha t  because I  have had ev idence in  10 

regard  to  o ther  SOEs where  a  board  recommended a  

cand ida te  fo r  the  pos i t ion  o f  Group CEO and the  board  – 

and the  Min is te r  a t  the  t ime gave  ev idence here  and sa id  

she was in  suppor t  o f  tha t  cand ida te  bu t  she sa id  the  

fo rmer  Pres ident  made i t  c lear  to  her  tha t  he  wanted a  

cer ta in  pe rson and no one e l se  to  take  tha t  pos i t ion .  

 Of  course ,  the  former  Pres ident  has den ied  say ing  

tha t  and tha t  w i l l  be  dea l t  w i th  la te r  on .   He must  s t i l l  come 

to  g ive  fu r ther  ev idence.    

 So I  am –  and I  have,  in  regard  to  tha t  mat te r,  I  20 

asked whethe r  th is  was a  c red ib le  cand ida te  and whether  

the  fo rmer  Pres ident ,  i f  he  was  not  keen to  have th is  

person appo in ted ,  whethe r  he  quest ioned the  qua l i f i ca t ions 

or  exper ience o f  tha t  cand ida te  and I  was to ld  by  the  

Min is te r  –  o r  gave tha t  ev idence  tha t  no ,  there  was no  
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quest ion ing  o f  the  qua l i f i ca t ions  or  exper ience  o f  the  

cand ida te  tha t  was proposed.  

 So i t  becomes  impor tan t  –  i t  may become 

impor tan t  to  say here  is  a  cand ida te  tha t  was  

recommended,  he  is  a  c red ib le  cand ida te ,  has go t  a l l  the  

qua l i f i ca t ions,  has go t  a l l  the  exper ience,  what  was the  

prob lem wi th  go ing  w i th  tha t  cand ida te?   

 So I  ment ion  tha t  because i t  m igh t  be  he lp fu l  bu t  i f  

you  have some reasons tha t  make you re luc tan t  to  

d isc lose ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  10 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  w i l l  d isc lose  i t ,  Cha i rperson,  i t  was a  

lady.   I  d id  no t  know her  be fo re  tha t  and I  was not  even in  

the  pane l  tha t  in te rv iewed.   Her  name was Laur ie t te  

Mod ipane Sesoko.   She had prev ious l y  worked fo r  

Met rora i l .   Now …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  jus t  ge t  the  spe l l ing ,  Laur ie t te  

and the  su rname? 

MR MOLEFE:    Sesoko Modipane.   Mod ipane.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    M-o-d- i -p -a-n-e .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    Sesoko is  S-e-s-o-k-o .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    She had worked fo r  Met rora i l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  what  capac i ty?  
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MR MOLEFE:    She had been the  CEO of  Met rora i l  o r  

genera l  -  the  ch ie f  o f  Met rora i l ,  CEO,  Met rora i l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    CEO,  ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    You know,  wh ich  is  the  t ra in  –  the  opera t ing  

d iv is ion  o f  PRASA which  moves passengers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Which  is  fundamenta l l y  the  mandate  o f  

PRASA.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   So she had worked in  a  pos i t i on  tha t  

i s  very  much the  CEO’s  pos i t ion  under  PRASA.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  the  Min is te r  never  ra i sed any concerns 

about  tha t  except  tha t  they de layed,  de layed,  de layed,  they 

were  no t  mov ing .   I  am sure  aga in  I  can produce severa l  

le t te rs  to  the  Min is te r.   In  some ins tances when the  

Min is te r  wou ld  say PRASA is  –  th is  board  is  no t  do ing  i t s  

job  or  PRASA is  no t  per fo rming,  I  wou ld  say the  board  is  20 

no t  opera t iona l ,  i t  cannot  do  the  job ,  we need to  have  

proper  management  team and management  team is  pu t  

together  by  the  Group CEO,  approve the  appo in tment  o f  

the  Group CEO so tha t  we can get  go ing  and get  our  work  

done.   
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  And she –  i t  was jus t  de lay ing ,  de lay ing  and i t  i s  

there ,  I  am sure ,  cor respondence wou ld  show tha t ,  tha t  we  

ra ised tha t .   So we do not  know but  I ,  in  h inds igh t  now,  

when you look a t  the  meet ing  o f  August ,  you look  a t  the  

repor t  where  Montana says and he is  wr i t ing  to  Min is te r  

Je f f  Radebe and  the  Pres ident  says I  am the  bes t  man,  I  

am ava i lab le ,  th is  board  does not  want  me to  do  my  job ,  he  

is  in te r fe r ing  w i th  me.    

 So what  seems to  have been then the  reason is  

tha t  they wanted to  b r ing  Mr  Montana back bu t  the  way to  10 

do  so  is  to  b lock  the  appo in tment  o f  the  CEO and then 

u l t imate ly  to  remove the  board  o f  d i rec tors .    

 I t  i s  l inked a l so  to  the  invest iga t ions because when  

Mr  Le tsoa lo ,  as  you wou ld  see,  p robab ly  la te r  on ,  comes in  

to  ac t ,  he  says –  and the  Min is te r  says Le tsoa la  must  now 

be in  charge o f  the  invest iga t ions.    

 Now i f  you are  invest iga t ing ,  the  management  team 

tha t  i s  cor rup t ,  you do not  know who is  cor rup t ,  who is  no t  

cor rup t .   You do not  g ive  i t  to  them to  do  the  job  because 

then you are  no t  go ing  to  ge t  the  t ru th  ou t  o f  i t  and  tha t  i s  20 

why the  board  wanted th is  invest iga t ion  to  be  done by  an  

ent i t y  tha t  i s  ou ts ide  PRASA which  repor ts  to  the  -  and the 

chair  of  the Audi t  Commit tee and the chairman of  the board 

and they would report  regular ly together wi th the 

invest igators to the Board of  Di rectors and to the Minister of  



29 JUNE 2020 – DAY 226 
 

Page 37 of 204 
 

Transport  which. . .  which is what we have done.  

 But  they wanted al l  of  that  out  of  the way uh,  c lear ly  

to f rust rate the invest igat ions so that  the invest igat ions,  they 

not  produce uh,  the t ruth about  what is happening in the 

organisat ion.  

And I  asked the quest ion why would they not  want to 

do that?  H’m?  I f  they are interested in get t ing the state-

owned company to funct ion and funct ion properly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  uh,  please uh,  I  want to. . .  to  see al l  

of  those let ters you are talk ing about.   So I  want al l  of  that  10 

evidence uh,  because you. . .  you are asking that  the. . .  the 

minister delayed for  a  long t ime uh,  to have a decision made,  

I  guess,  on your recommendat ion at  the board.  

 And uh,  at  a cer tain stage,  she told you what you 

said.   She told you um, in the regard the matter that  was 

talk ing about.  

 Uh,  I  mean, i t  is  in the publ ic domain.   Evidence was 

given here.   I t  is uh,  the feel ing of  the posi t ion of  Group CEO 

for Transnet af ter the departure of  Ms Ramos.  

 Uh, . . .  uh, . . .  uh, . . .  Ms Barbara Hogan gave evidence 20 

to the fact  that  the Transnet Board at  the t ime recommended 

uh,  mister,  I  th ink,  Sipho Maseko uh,  for the posi t ion and the 

board was of  the opinion that  uh,  Mr Siyabonga Gama was 

uh,  uh,  not  sui table for the posi t ion i f  he was a candidate.  

 Um, and in any event  uh,  there were some 
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a l legat ions of  misconduct  that  they thought  was aware of  

them, but  I . . .  I  th ink the evidence was,  the board said,  “we 

just  took him into account whether he was sui table”.   You 

know, “we have lef t  out  of  the account ”.   Even the 

al legat ions.  

MR MOLEFE:    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  I  must  now give evidence to that  effect .  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh,  Chairperson.   I  was in the commission 

when the min ister  gave her evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  you were here? 10 

MR MOLEFE:    I  was here.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So. . .  so that . . .  that  posi t ion was not  

f i l led for over a year uh, . . .  um, . . .  and uh, . . .  so I  am 

wondering whether now, the delays you are talk ing about  

af ter your board had made a recommendat ion as to who 

should f i l l  the posi t ion of  group. . .  group CEO, ref lects a 

pat tern that  may have been happening wi th um, the 

appointment of  Group CEO for some of  the SOE’s.  

 So I  want. . .  I  would l ike a l l  of  that  evidence,  al l  of  

those let ters.   I f  you are able to get  that ,  we would l ike them 20 

here.  

MR MOLEFE:    Thank you,  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   [ throat  c lear ing]   Mister [ throat  c lear ing]  

Molefe,  can I  just  go back to an issue you said or you 
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suggested what the game plan was,  that  they would f rust rate 

the appointment  of  a Group CEO and then eventual ly  

Montana would come back as the Group CEO.  That  is. . .  that  

is what you said.  

MR MOLEFE:    H’m.  

ADV SONI SC:   Wel l ,  I  just  want to say to you 

that . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  am sorry Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Um, the connect ing of  the dots is. . .  is  10 

qui te important .   I  mean, of  course,  anybody can come later  

and say,  “no,  th is  commit t ing of  the dots that  you are talk ing 

about is not  proper because of  the fol lowing evidence that  

you have not  add,  Mr Chai rperson”.  

 That  uh,  wi th regard to the group CEO for Transnet ,  

there was that  delay uh,  for the f i l l ing of  the posi t ion of  

Gross CEO and the candidate who had been recommended 

by the board had to uh,  make his  other plans because he 

was kept  wai t ing for too long.  

 And then Mr Gama was dismissed af ter a discipl inary 20 

process uh,  in uh,  at  the end of  June 2010.  The posi t ion had 

become vacant,  I  th ink ear ly  in 2009 i f  I  am not  mistaken.   

So al ready by mid-June.. .  by mid-year 2010, there. . .  there 

was um, st i l l  the posi t ion,  i t  was not  f i l led.  

ADV SONI SC:   H ’m.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Then the Minister Barbara Hogan was 

dismissed f rom cabinet  at  the end of  October.   Uh,  another 

minister was appointed and then the evidence wi l l  come later 

upon and then Mr Gama was reinstated uh,  in February uh, 

or uh,  March/Apr i l  2011 to become.. .  to go back to his 

posi t ion as uh,  CEO of  GFR.  

 And then when.. .  when Brian Molefe lef t  for  Eskom, 

then Gama was made Group CEO of  Eskom, the posi t ion that  

uh,  was in contest  when he was dismissed.    

So. . .  so I  just  want to paint  that  picture because I  10 

want to see whether uh,  under PRASA, there are crucial  

th ings to go along the same l ines or  not .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.   With regard to PRASA, Chai rperson.  

The. . .  that  posi t ion has been vacant  now for c lose. . .  going 

onto f ive years.     

CHAIRPERSON:    For how long? 

MR MOLEFE:    Five years.  

CHAIRPERSON:    S ince Montana has lef t?  

MR MOLEFE:    S ince Montana lef t .   Now.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    F ive years?!  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  f ive years.   They. . .  they have been 

appoint ing act ing people. . .  act ing this,  act ing that .   Five 

years.   And that  is an organisat ion that  is managing 

R 173 bi l l ion of  uh,  rai l  and uh,  inf rast ructure investment.  

 Um, so. . .  so. . .  so. . .  but  the di fference between Mr  
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Gama and Mr Montana’s case is that  in the case of  Mr Gama 

they were deal ing wi th discipl inary processes.   So once they 

had removed the minister [ laugh]  and appointed another 

minister,  they could simply l i f t  the. . .  or whatever,  

suspension,  br ing him back.  

 In the case of  Mr Montana,  they cannot do that  

wi thout  burning thei r  f ingers because the invest igat ions have 

gone so far and so much of  the plot  had been exposed and 

there had al ready been cases in  the courts of  law which 

conf i rmed the correctness of  the posi t ions taken by the 10 

board of  di rectors.  

 So you. . .  you need to have ext raordinary courage to 

go against  uh,  the judgment of  the court  and uh,  appoint  a 

person uh,  whose smart  in a. . .  in a corrupt ion and there are 

st i l l  other pending cases uh,  c iv i l  and otherwise.  

 So. . .  so. . .  i t . . .  i t  would not  have been di ff icul t .   Uh,  i t  

would have been di ff icul t  for them to br ing him back now 

af ter the work we had done.  But  what I  cannot  

understand. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m? 20 

MR MOLEFE:    . . . is why then not  appoint  a prober board?  I  

must  also say,  by the way Chairperson,  since the departure 

of  my board,  PRASA has not  had a proper. . .  a properly 

const i tuted board.    

 I t  had things cal led inter im boards which are not  
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provided for  in the law.  Uh,  i t  had al l  of  those things.   I t  now 

current ly has an administ rator,  you know, no board.  

 I  know that  the minister has recent ly advert ised.   He 

wi l l  probably appoint  the board uh,  soon but . .  but  that  is 

what we are deal ing wi th uh,  in a count ry wi th high levels of  

poverty,  unemployment uh-uh,  crushing uh,  t ransport  costs 

and so on.  

 Uh,  so some of  those quest ions would have to be 

asked later on.   To be explained by those who.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    . . . to whom were g iven the responsibi l i ty to 

govern our count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  Wel l ,  uh,  as I . . .  as I  understand i t  

even up to now, i t  seems there is  not  been a Group CEO 

appointed.   Is that  r ight?  Since Montana lef t?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And how many years would be. . .  that  

posi t ion would have been . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Approximately f ive years.   We.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    About f ive years.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    We asked Mr Montana to leave in 

July. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    2015.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  so that  is. . .  that  is. . .  that  is. . .  ja,  that  
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is about  f ive years.   Ja,  that  is f ive years.  

MR MOLEFE:    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And that  cannot  be for a lack of  properly 

qual i f ied candidates? 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  i t  cannot be.   I t  cannot be.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja? 

ADV SONI SC:   [ throat  c lear ing]   Mr Molefe,  I  do not  know i f  

you were here when Mr Holele gave evidence.   And. . .  and 

just  to come back to the point  that  they wanted to  appoint  

mister uh,  Mr Montana again.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sorry.   Uh,  I  th ink uh,  the wi tness 

would l ike some water.   Water  should have been put  uh,  

placed uh,  before him. 

ADV SONI SC:   Where is mine? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Uh,  actual ly,  we are at  quarter past  

eleven.   Maybe we should take a tea-break.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja and then,  when we come back,  just  

make sure there is water  for the. . .  for the wi tness.   I  see 

also,  I  have no water here.   So the. . .   20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink maybe the people concerned 

thought we do not  need water in winter.   

ADV SONI SC:   [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  is too cold.  [ laughs] .   Uh,  let . . .  let  us 
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adjourn uh,  for the tea-break.   I t  is  quarter past  e leven.   We 

wi l l  resume at  hal f -past  eleven.   We adjourn.  

ADV SONI SC:   As i t  p lease.  

COURT ORDERLY:    A l l  r ise.   

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Uh,  yes Mr Soni .   I . . .  I  asked that  i f  

possible,  somebody should t ry and uh,  make sure that  i t  is 

warmer here.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  [ laugh]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Because i t  was qui te cold.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Uh,  I  have asked them to br ing me a smal l  

heater next  to me but  um.. .  uh,  I  have asked that  i f  there is a 

way of  making i t  warm in the whole room.. . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . they should t ry and do that .   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Thank you,  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.    

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Chai rperson,  may I  ask one quest ion 20 

re lat ion to that  issue which um, may assist  you in jo ining the 

dots? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Molefe,  I  do not  know i f  you were here 

when Mr Ti ro Holele gave evidence.   His ev idence was in 
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around February/March in 2017 when they refused to pay an 

account  f rom Prodigy,  which is a  company which Mr Roy 

Moodley has an in terest  in.  

 He asked them to pay the account and when they 

said,  “ take i t  to court ” ,  h is answer was “wel l ,  there are big 

changes coming and that  young man is coming back.   Be 

careful  you are not  on the wrong side of  history”.  

 So I  am just  put t ing i t  in the context  of  you are saying 

that  they wanted Mr Montana back.    

MR MOLEFE:    H’m.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Uh,  I . . .  I  am put t ing that  in context  to say 

your theory may not  be al l  that  farfe tched.  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  i t  is. . .  i t  is correct ,  Chai rperson.   I  d id 

indicate that  and I  said i t  is a pi ty that  people would not  want 

to come and give ev idence here.   That  I  was advised that  

there was as teleconference with employees of  PRASA and 

they were encouraged by the Minister,  Mr Radebe to. . .  to  

cont inue the pressure.   Keep up the pressure on the board.    

Uh,  the so-cal led PRASA in turmoi l  was in that 

context .   Created that  turmoi l  so that  we can just i fy removing 20 

this board.   You see.   So.   [ laughs]   The. . .  the. . .  i t  is. .  i t  is  

exact ly that .   I t  happened.  Get out  of  the way,  so that  the 

young man may come back.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So there was a speci f ic reference um,  uh,  

in the context  of  Prodigy uh,  to somebody saying,  “ the young 
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man is coming back”.   Is that  r ight?  

ADV SONI SC:   You. . .  you wi l l  recal l  Mr Chairperson that  uh, 

Mr Holele and Mr  Letsoalo gave evidence that  that  is what 

Mr Moodley sa id to them when they had refused to pay but  

the matter is court .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and that  was twenty. . .  

ADV SONI SC:   27 February.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Seven. . .  

ADV SONI SC:   . . .March 2017.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  okay.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Um, i f  I  could just  put  i t  a lso in context?  

They said,  “changes are coming”  and three weeks later,  

there was a change in the minis t ry and the Minister uh,  

Dipuo Peters was removed as Minister of  Transport .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   Oh, okay yes.   So there is. . .  there is  

a. . .  so Mr Moodley said,  “changes were on the way”.  

ADV SONI SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:    “And you bet ter make sure that  when 

those changes happen, you are on the r ight  s ide”.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    “And the young man is coming back”.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  is. . .  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And uh,  you said not  long af ter that ,  the 

minister was uh,  was dismissed.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and how long af ter that  d id your 

board get  uh-uh,  dismissed or dispended?   

MR MOLEFE:    How long. . .?  

CHAIRPERSON:    How long af ter. . .  af ter did. . .  d id  the Mr 

Molefe’s board get  dispended?  

ADV SONI SC:   H ’m.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Or that  much longer . . .  much later on? 

ADV SONI SC:   On the 8t h of  March.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   That  is 2017? 

ADV SONI SC:   2017.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And uh,  th is meet ing that  Mr Holele talked 

about wi th Mr Moodley was when? 

ADV SONI SC:   Uh,  February/March 2017.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So soon af ter Mr Holele had heard Mr 

Moodley,  Roy Moodley,  saying,  “changes were about to  

happen”,  the min ister was f i red uh,  or before the minister  

was f i red,  she f i red the board and then she was f i red.  

ADV SONI SC:   She was. . .  [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Al l  r ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   But . . .  but . . .  uh,  um, Mr Molefe’s evidence is  20 

part ly wi th the change in that  evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  okay.   Al l  r ight .   And of  

course,  Mr Molefe,  you can conf i rm any of  th is insofar  as you 

may know i t  yoursel f  what. . .  what . . .  what  has been a change 

or the exchange? 
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MR MOLEFE:    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you certainly. . .  you certa inly uh,  

have to  just  that  the minister dispended you. . .  announced 

the disbandment  of  your  board in par l iament.   Your 

recol lect ion would be that  what. . .  what  month of  2017 was 

that? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  was on the 8t h of  uh,  of  March 2017.  

CHAIRPERSON:    2017? 

MR MOLEFE:    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   And um. . .  and you recal l  uh,  how 10 

soon. . .  how much later  af ter that  she was dismissed as. . .  or  

not  real ly? 

MR MOLEFE:    She was dismissed the same month.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The same month? 

MR MOLEFE:    The same month that  was she was 

dismissed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Okay.   Okay.   Thank you. 

MR MOLEFE:    I  say so,  because she was too weak.   She 

could not  remove the board quickly enough.  

CHAIRPERSON:    She. . .  she [ laughs]  Just  repeat  that .  20 

[ laughs]  

MR MOLEFE:    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Just  repeat  that .    

MR MOLEFE:    [ laughs]   No,  I . . .  I  say Chai rperson that  uh,  I  

th ink uh-uh. . . [ intervenes]   



29 JUNE 2020 – DAY 226 
 

Page 49 of 204 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    She may have been perceived. . .  she was 

too late? 

MR MOLEFE:    To have been perceived to have been too 

late and. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .and too sof t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  on the board.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.   Okay.   Thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   Just  one other issue re lat ing to Mr Moodley.   10 

When you gave your evidence on the previous occasion,  Mr 

Molefe.   You say that  Mr Moodley and Mr Montana had met 

or you had been told by the. . .  

MECHANICAL INTERRUPTION 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you Mr  Son i .   I  unders tand tha t  

the  heate r  w i l l  make i t  warm in  due course ,  i t  m igh t  take  a  

l i t t le  b i t ,  fo r  somet ime in  the  who le  room so tha t  i s  good 

news and I  am hop ing  tha t  the  e lec t r i c i t y  peop le  w i l l  make  

sure  tha t  we don ’ t  have these in te r rup t ions tha t  we have  20 

been hav ing .   Okay le t ’s  cont inue.   Your  m ic?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  aga in  fo r  contex t  Mr  Mole fe  may I  

say  tha t  a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  20 t h  o f  August  you 

unders tood tha t  Mr  Roy Mood ley  and Mr  Montana had been 

w i th  the  Pres iden t  be fore  you and the  Min i s te r  were  ca l led .  
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MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And actua l l y,  your  ev idence was tha t  you 

got  a  repor t  tha t  one o f  you r  p ro jec to rs  had seen them in  

the  premises.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  le t  us  now get  to  the  reso lu t ion  o f  –  oh 

sor ry  be fore  we  do tha t ,  you say tha t  Mr  Le tsoa lo  was 

unhappy  about  the  Werksmans 

Invest iga t ions…[ in tervenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  jus t  want  to  make su re ,  I  don ’ t  lose  

t rack  o f  where  we  are .   A t  some s tage befo re  the  b reak you 

had asked Mr  Mole fe  to  dea l  w i th  the  reasons o f  the  

d ismissa ls ,  d i sbandment  o f  the  Board  and I  h igh l igh ted  to  

h im tha t ,  in  do ing  so ,  he  m ight  w ish  to  te l l  me what  the  

Min is te r  –  what  reasons the  Min is te r  gave and what  

reasons,  he  be l ieves,  a re  the  t rue  reasons i f  he  is  no t  in  

agreement  w i th  the  reasons g i ven  by  the  Min is te r.   So,  you 

might  be  p lay ing  to  i t  la te r,  I  jus t  want  to  make sure  you 

have not  …[ in te rvenes] .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    I  want  to  do  i t  because in  the  app l i ca t ion  

tha t  i s  b rought  the  Judge dea ls  w i th  tha t ,  then.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Yes,  oh  okay,  thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    So ,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  ask  –  there  was 

unhapp iness about  the  Werksmans invest iga t ion  by  the  
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Ac t ion  CEO whom the  Min is te r  had ins ta l led ,  w i l l  tha t  be  

cor rec t  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Then on the  12 t h  o f  August  you say tha t  

Min is te r  Peters  herse l f ,  wro te  to  you to  suggest  tha t  the  

invest iga t ions be  s topped.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t  appears  a t  Annexure  PM7,  your  

a f f idav i t  a t  page 154.  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  the  record ,  jus t  repeat  what  f i l e  you 10 

are  s t i l l  on  Mr  Son i .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes the  le t te r  f rom Min is te r  D ipuo  Peters  

i s  Annexure  PM7 and i t  appears  a t  page 154 o f  Bund le  D,  

Exh ib i t  SS6.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What ’s  the  page  number  aga in?  

ADV SONI  SC:    154,  Cha i rpe rson .  

CHAIRPERSON:    1 -5-4?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    That ’s  f ine ,  I  remember  the  le t te r  ve ry  we l l .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  we don ’ t  have to  read the  who le  –  i f  20 

you cou ld  exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson what  the  g i s t  o f  the 

le t te r  i s  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    The s ta r t ing  po in t  o f  the  Min is te r  was to  

express concern  tha t  the  invest iga t ion  is  no t  end ing  sooner  

and tha t  i t  was cost ing  a  lo t  o f  money and she was say ing  
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tha t  she th inks  tha t  we shou ld  be  focus ing  on  imp lement ing  

per fo rmance p lans ensur ing  tha t  our  per fo rmance p lans are  

in  o rder  and we ’ re  ach iev ing  resu l ts  in  tha t  regard .   She  

re fer red  to  the  dec l ine  in  per fo rmance and then she says,  

s top  th is  –  in  fac t  she uses the  word  “c lose  

i t ”…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  you can read tha t  pa rag raph 

because i t  i s  impor tan t ,  a t  the  end  o f  page 154,  

 “ I  there fore  ask  tha t  you c lose  o f f ” ,  

 I t ’s  the  las t  parag raph on page 154 .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    The p rev ious page Mr  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  the  end.  

ADV SONI  SC:    R igh t  a t  the  end a t  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  

page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    She ’s  ask ing  tha t  we c lose  i t  o f f  and 

present  a  de ta i led  repor t  to  her  by  –  I  th ink  she sa id ,  by  

the  end o f  August .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  shou ld  you  not  read tha t  en t i re  the  

parag raph in to  the  record?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    She says,  

“ I  there fore  ask  tha t  you c lose  o f f  th is  invest iga t ion 

process and cons ide r  the  resu l ts  o r  repor t  thereof .   

Fur thermore ,  the  Board  is  requested to  submi t  a  
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de ta i led  repor t  ind ica t ing  the  prog ress and the  

ou tcome o f  the  invest iga t ion .   A de terminat ion  o f  

any fu r the r  invest iga t ion  and a  way fo rward  w i l l  

subsequent ly  be  made a f te r  s tudy ing  the  repor t  in  

de ta i l ” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  tha t  –  oh  i f  you  fee l  t here  is  

someth ing  impor tan t…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Then she says,  

“ I t  w i l l  be  h igh ly  apprec ia ted  i f  the  repor t  can reach 

my o f f i ce  by  end August  2016” .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Now…[ in tervenes ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And jus t  to  conf i rm,  you were  read ing  

f rom a  le t te r  f rom the  Min i s te r  o f  Transpor t  a t  the  t ime Ms 

D ipuo Peters  addressed to  you,  Dr  Popo  Mole fe ,  

Cha i rperson o f  PRASA and i t ’s  a  l e t te r  tha t  she s igned on  

the  12 t h  o f  August  2016,  ja ,  thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    You responded to  tha t  le t te r?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  d id  respond,  Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    And what  i s  the  da te  o f  you r  response?  

MR MOLEFE:    The date  o f  my response was the  24 t h  o f  

August .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And is  tha t  the  le t te r  o r  i s  tha t  Annexure  

PM8 wh ich  is  a t  157 –  page 157?  
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MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now in  your  repor t ,  i f  you  cou ld  –  I  mean 

in  your  response  i f  you cou ld  summar i se  what  you sa id  to  

the  Min is te r,  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    The –  in  my response,  the  essence o f  my 

response,  Cha i rperson,  to  the  Min i s te r  was tha t  we  

apprec ia ted  the  concern  tha t  she ra ised but  tha t  the  

concern  tha t  she  ra ises ,  in  ou r  v iew,  d id  no t  necessar i l y  

re la te  to  whether  the  fo rens i c  invest iga t ion  was necessary  

or  no t  and I  went  on  to  say –  and i f  I  may 10 

read…[ in te rvenes ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes you can read.  

MR MOLEFE:    Maybe I  shou ld  read i t  p roper ly,  le t  me read 

tha t  paragraph,  Cha i rperson.   The paragraph says ,  hav ing  

acknowledged,  o f  cou rse ,  the  le t te r  o f  the  Min i s te r,  

“ I  unders tand the  concern  ra i sed ,  no t  to  re la te  to  

whethe r  o r  no t  the  fo rens ic  invest iga t ion  is  

necessary.   The Min is te r  w i l l ,  indeed,  reca l l  tha t  the 

need fo r  the  fo rens ic  invest iga t ion  was d iscussed 

and agreed a t  a  meet ing  be tween the  Board  and the 20 

honourab le  Min is te r  a t  the  a i rpor t  on  17  Ju ly  2015” .  

 Now the  a i rpo r t  here  re fers  to  the  O R Tambo 

In ternat iona l  A i rpor t  and I  go  on  to  say tha t ,  

“ the  concerns tha t  I  unders tand to  be  ra ised are  

tha t  the  fo rens i c  invest iga t ion  is  end less  and 
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w i thout  any scope,  const i tu tes  excess ive  spend ing ,  

i s  no t  budgeted  fo r  and can be regarded as  

i r regu lar  expend i tu re .   I t  i s  a lso  ind ica ted  tha t  the  

Min is te r ’s  own pre ference is  fo r  the  Board  to  focus 

on  the  annua l  pe r fo rmance. ” ,  

 That ’s  what  the  M in is te r  i s  say ing  there ,  and then o f  

course ,  Cha i rperson i t  w i l l  be  c leare r  on  page 158,  page 

two o f  the  le t te r  tha t  we go in  de ta i l  to  ident i f y  why i t  i s  

necessary,  we a r t i cu la te  why i t  i s  necessary  fo r  us  to  

p roceed w i th  the  fo rens ic  i nvest iga t ion .   Sect ion  50 ,  sub-10 

sect ion  1  o f  the  Pub l ic  F inance Management  Act  was  

ob l ig ing  the  Board  to  exerc ise  the  du ty  o f  u tmost  care ,  to  

ensure  reasonab le  pro tec t ion  o f  the  assets  and records o f  

the  pub l i c  en t i t y.   Ac t  w i th  f ide l i t y,  honesty,  in tegr i t y  and in  

the  best  in te res t  o f  the  pub l i c  en t i ty  in  manag ing  the  

f inanc ia l  a f fa i rs  o f  the  pub l i c  en t i t y.   On request  to  d isc lose  

to  the  Execut ive  Author i t y  and Min is te r  respons ib le  fo r  tha t  

pub l i c  en t i t y  o r  the  leg i s la tu re  to  wh ich  the  pub l i c  en t i t y  i s  

accountab le ,  a l l  mater ia l  fac ts  inc lud ing  those reasonab ly  

d iscoverab le ,  wh ich ,  in  any way may in f luence the  20 

dec is ions o r  ac t ions o f  the  Execut ive  Author i t y  o r  tha t  

leg is la tu re  and the  las t  one we make there  is ,  to  seek,  

w i th in  the  sphere  o f  in f luence o f  the  Account ing  Author i t y  

to  p revent  any pre jud ice  to  the  f inanc ia l  in te res t  o f  the  

S ta te .   Now th is  i s  what  the  law says we shou ld  do  and  
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tha t  i s  what  we are  do ing  and we are  do ing  i t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  

aga ins t  the  backdrop o f  a  management  tha t  has  s to len  

records o f  the  company,  cover ing  up ,  no t  co-opera t ing  w i th  

our  invest iga t ion .   Natura l l y  i t  w i l l  take  long fo r  fo rens i c  

invest iga to rs  to  uncover  th ings because you do  mi r ro r  

imag ing  o f  computers ,  you ’ve  go t  to  go  to  the  serve r,  you 

do th ing ,  tha t  o rd ina r i l y,  management  shou ld  have been  

w i l l i ng  to  g i ve  to  the  invest iga tors  so  tha t  we cou ld  do  our  

job  qu ick ly.   Now the  Min is te r  says,  no  you ’ re  tak ing  too  

long s top .  So,  the  v iew then,  wh ich  we took,  Cha i rpe rson 10 

was tha t  wh i l s t  we apprec ia te  the  concerns ra ised by  the  

Min is te r  bu t  we wou ld  no t  s top  the  invest iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  be fore  you do tha t ,  I  th ink ,  your  

re fe rence in  your  le t te r  a t  page 158 to  Sect ion  51(1 )  i s  

a lso  impor tan t ,  do  you want  to  jus t  read tha t  pa r t ,  A and B?  

Where  you say,  

“Sect ion  51(1 )  p rov ides fo r  the  fo l low ing genera l  

respons ib i l i t i es  o f  the  Board ” .  

 Do you want  to  jus t  read tha t  par t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes Cha i rperson,  Sect ion  51(1 )  p rov ides fo r  20 

the  fo l low ing genera l  respons ib i l i t ies  o f  the  Board  and I ’m  

re fer r i ng  here  to  the  Pub l ic  F inance Management  Ac t .  

“Must  take  e f fec t i ve  and appropr ia te  s teps to  co l lec t  

a l l  revenues due to  the  pub l i c  en t i t y  concerned and 

present  i r regu lar  expend i tu re ,  f ru i t less  and waste fu l  
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expend i tu re ,  loses resu l t ing  f rom cr im ina l  conduct  

and expend i tu re  no t  comply ing  w i th  the  opera t ional  

po l i c ies  o f  the  pub l i c  en t i t y  and manage ava i lab le 

work ing  cap i ta l  e f f i c ien t ly  and economica l l y ” .  

 And then I  go  on  to  say,  

“The above ob l iga t ions,  tha t  i s  Sect ion  50(1)  and 

genera l  respons ib i l i t i es  Sect ion  51(1 )  a re  prec i se l y  

what  necess i ta ted  embark ing  upon fo rens ic  

invest iga t ions and the  l i t iga t ion  tha t  fo l lowed i t ” .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Then the  –  then you dea l  w i th  each o f  the  10 

concerns in  pa ragraph 1  on  page 159 you say tha t  the  

invest iga t ion ,  cont rary  to  what  the  Min is te r  says,  was not  

i r regu la r,  i s  tha t  the  essence o f  pa rag raph 1?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.   When –  

be fore  we appo in ted  the  pane l ,  the  invest iga tors ,  we asked 

the  Lega l  Depar tment  o f  PRASA to  adv ise  on  the  law f i rms  

tha t  were  on  our  pane l  and those tha t  had the  capac i ty,  

a lso  fo r  fo rens i cs  and they re fer red  us  to  Werksmans.   Of  

course ,  i t  wou ld  appear,  o f  course ,  when they gave  us  tha t  

in fo rmat ion ,  they  omi t ted  to  te l l  us  tha t ,  in  fac t ,  they 20 

shou ld  have es tab l i shed a  new pane l ,  the  t ime fo r  tha t  o ld  

pane l  had exp i red ,  tha t  they  shou ld  have  inv i ted  

pro fess iona l  compan ies  and es tab l i shed a  new pane l  bu t  

tha t  on ly  became apparent  when one read the  Aud i to r  

Genera l ’s  repor t .  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Then you dea l  w i th  he r  concerns about  the  

scope w i th  the  invest iga t ion  in  paragraph 2  you say,  the  

scope had been determined in  the  f i rs t  sub-paragraph o f  

parag raph 2  by  mat te rs  tha t  had  been ident i f ied  by  the  

Aud i to r  Genera l  and in  the  second sub-paragraph you say 

the  mat te rs  ra i sed by  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor,  wou ld  tha t  be  

cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And then you make the  po in t  tha t  i t  i s  the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  who had requ i red  tha t  a l l  con t rac ts  above  10 

R10mi l l ion  shou ld  be  invest iga ted .  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  i s  so  Cha i rperson .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t ,  in  the  pursu i t  o f  those 

invest iga t ions the  –  PRASA had  embarked on l i t iga t ion ,  

you say tha t  a t  paragraph 160 you  say tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  las t  page 160.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  the  l i t iga t ion  tha t  has f lowed f rom the  

invest iga t ion  requ i res  the  ass is tance o f  fo rens i c  

invest iga t ion  team.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  yes  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    And you make the  po in t  tha t ,  i ron i ca l l y,  i t  

i s  those very  peop le  who benef i t  f rom –  benef i t ted  f rom the  

un lawfu l  ac t i v i t ies  who are  us ing  those un lawfu l  p roceeds 

to  f igh t  PRASA wi th .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes Cha i rpe rson  the  po in t  we ’ re  mak ing  
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was tha t  we are  be ing  to ld ,  you ’ re  tak ing  too  long,  s top  the  

invest iga t ion  bu t  in  o rde r  fo r  anybody to  launch an  

e f fec t i ve  app l i ca t ion  in  a  Cour t  o f  Law,  w i th  the  poss ib i l i t y  

o f  ach iev ing  success,  we need to  have so l id  ev idence and  

we are  say ing  the  peop le  we are  l i t i ga t ing  aga ins t ,  a re  

ac tua l l y  us ing  the  money o f  PRASA to  f igh t  PRASA and 

tha t  i s  the  i rony  o f  the  who le  th ing .   So i f  we s top  the  

invest iga t ion ,  they succeed,  you know and –  because these 

mat te rs  a re  been  so  po l i t i c i sed they ’ l l  say,  a f te r  a l l ,  they  

never  had a  case ,  i t ’s  jus t  tha t  they want  to  v ic t im ise  me as 10 

has been the  charade o f  the  –  the  nar ra t i ve  o f  Mr  Montana 

th roughout .   

ADV SONI  SC:    And then you make the  po in t  tha t ,  r igh t  a t  

the  end o f  page 160,  tha t  S iyagena had benef i ted  to  the  

tune o f  R800mi l l ion  and tha t  i t  had a lso  sought  a  

guarantee,  on  page 161,  o f  R1.1b i l l i on .  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And a t  tha t  s tage  had  the  S iyagena rev iew 

proceed ings been  ins t i tu ted?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  do  th ink  so  Cha i rperson…[ in te rvenes] .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    [ in te rvenes] ,  year  2016.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja  I  th ink  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  maybe i t ’s  impor tan t  to  h igh l igh t  

the  next  sentence a t  page 160,  the  next  sentence a f te r  the  

sentence tha t  dea ls  w i th  what  you ’ve  jus t  sa id  Mr  Mole fe ,  
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namely,  tha t  peop le  who had ga ined money f rom PRASA 

un lawfu l l y  were  us ing  tha t  money to  f igh t  PRASA in  the  

Cour ts .   You then  say –  th i s  i s  a t  page 160,  

“An example  o f  th is  i s  the  guarantee,  you pu t  

guarantee in  quotes ,  tha t  ob l iges  PRASA to  pay 

a lmost  R800mi l l ion  to  S iyagena.   As  we have 

prev ious l y  adv i sed the  Min i s te r,  th is  document  was 

not  known by any PRASA o f f i c ia l .  We a re  s t i l l  

awa i t ing  the  rep l y  to  the  le t te r  addressed to  your  

o f f i ce  in  th is  regard .   S iyagena have now ins t i tu ted  10 

lega l  p roceed ings aga ins t  PRASA c la im ing payment  

o f  an  amount  o f  approx imate ly  R1.1b i l l i on  re la ted  to  

th is  ve ry  guarantee,  in  quotes” .  

MR MOLEFE:    So  the  po in t  we ’ re  mak ing ,  Cha i rperson,  

there  i s  tha t  here  is  a  –  we go to  Cour t ,  sudden ly  S iyagena 

produces a  document  and they  say you,  PRASA,  have  

g iven us  a  guarantee o f  R800mi l l ion ,  he re ’s  where  

somebody s igned  and we had never  seen tha t  document  

anywhere ,  Management  o f  PRASA who might  have been 

there  a t  the  t ime were  no t  he lp ing  to  de fend the  in te res t  o f  20 

the  company.   So  th is  i s  what  we mean,  where  peop le  use 

your  money to  f igh t  you and a t  th is  s tage,  i f  I  reca l l  we l l  

Cha i rperson,   i t  was jus t  a f te r  we  had los t  a  case aga ins t  

S iyagena on a  techn ica l i t y  based on the  purger  ru le ,  wh ich  

o f  cou rse  la te r  on ,  fo l low ing the  G i j ima Guma mat te r  they  
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changed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  was a  change,  ja  thank you .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Mole fe  Ms Ngoy i ’s  ev idence is  th is  i s ,  

tha t  a f te r  the  rev iew proceed ings,  the  f i rs t  rev iew 

proceed ings were  ins t i tu ted  in  2016,  in  response S iyagena 

brought  an  in te rd ic t  requ i r ing  payment  o f  th is  money and 

tha t  was the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  i t  had been d i scovered tha t  

there  was such a  cont rac t ,  tha t  addendum for  R800mi l l ion ,  

i s  tha t  what  you ’ re  re fer r i ng  to?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  what  I ’m  re fer r ing  to .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t  i s  a  con t rac t  tha t  was s igned by  

Mr  Montana a t  the  end o f  September  2014,  i s  tha t  you r  

reco l lec t ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  don ’ t  have the  de ta i l s  o f  the  cont rac t  fo r  

now but  he  wou ld  have been the  one s ign ing  as  the  GCE o f  

the  company.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  know tha t  –  I  have heard  ev idence,  I  

can ’ t  remember  whether  f rom you o r  f rom Ms Mar tha  Ngoy i ,  

I ’ ve  heard  ev idence o f  a  document  tha t  PRASA o f f i c ia ls  

were  look ing  fo r,  o r  ra ther  were  look ing  fo r  and they  20 

cou ldn ’ t  f ind  wh ich  had been s igned,  I  th ink ,  by  Mr  

Montana,  apparent ly  w i thout  any knowledge o f  any  PRASA 

o f f i c ia l ,  do  you know whethe r  the  document  you are  ta lk ing  

about  wh ich  S iyagena produced  when they took  you to 

Cour t  i s  tha t  document  o r  you  are  no t  sure  wh ich  – 
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because you have sa id  tha t  PRASA o f f i c ia ls  seemed not  to  

know about  tha t  document  un t i l  then?  Would  you know 

whethe r  tha t ’s  the  same document  o r  you might  no t  know? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  wou ld  have been the  same document ,  

fo r  me i t  ro l l s  ou t  o f  the  invest i ga t ions conducted by  our  

invest iga to rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i rperson,  when we dea l  w i th  Ms 

–  when we cont inue w i th  Ms Ngoy i ’s  ev idence we w i l l  

p roduce tha t  document .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    You spoke away f rom the  mic ,  so  tha t  

won ’ t  be  re f lec ted  on the  t ranscr ip t ,  ja ,  jus t  s ta r t  aga in .  

ADV SONI  SC:    When we produce –  when we lead Ms  

Ngoy i ’s  fu r ther  ev idence tha t  w i l l  be  one o f  the  documents 

to  wh ich  she w i l l  be  re fe r red .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson ear l ie r  on  I  d id  say i n  my –  

one o f  my in te rvent ions tha t ,  in  one o f  the  le t te rs  wr i t ten  to  

the  Min i s te r,  I  had ra ised concern  about  her  pers is ten t ly  

te l l ing  the  Board  to  per fo rm ye t  the  Board  d id  no t  have the  20 

Management  team.   I  see tha t  I  dea l  w i th  tha t  quest ion  in  

th is  same rep ly  to  the  Min is te r  and i t  i s  a t  page 163 and i t  

i s  the  las t  parag raph o f  …[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  tha t  le t te r.  

MR MOLEFE:    O f  tha t  le t te r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    O f  tha t  page 163,  do  you want  to  read  

tha t  paragraph in to  the  record?  

MR MOLEFE:    The paragraph reads as  fo l lows,  and aga in  

i t ’s  the  paragraph o f  the  le t te r  wr i t ten  by  the  Cha i rman o f  

the  Board  o f  D i rec to rs ,  myse l f  a t  the  t ime to  Min is te r  o f  

Transpor t  on  the  24 t h  o f  August  2016,  i t  says ,  

“The Min i s te r  ind ica ted  tha t ,  no tw i ths tand ing  the  

comple t ion  o f  an  independent  robust  p rocess,  to  

rec ru i t  a  permanent  g roup CEO,  the  Min is te r ’s  v iew 

was tha t  PRASA was not  ready fo r  such an 10 

appo in tment .   The reason we had consu l ted  the  

Min is te r  a round  our  recommendat ion  fo r  the 

pos i t ion  o f  the  group CEO was tha t  we fe l t  tha t  the 

appo in tment  o f  a  permanent  g roup CEO wi l l  ass is t  

w i th  s tab i l i t y.   We,  however,  de fer red  to  t he  

Min is te r ’s  p re ference to  second the  ac t ing  group 

CEO f rom the  Depar tment  o f  Transpor t ” .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now,  tha t  too ,  fo r  the  sake o f  

comple teness –  so  you had made a  recommendat ion  to  the 

Min is te r  o f  a  cand ida te  fo r  appo in tment  as  group CEO and  20 

what  you are  say ing  in  th is  parag raph,  i s  tha t  the  

Min is te r ’s  response was tha t  PRASA was not  ready  fo r  the  

appo in tment  o f  a  g roup CEO.   

MR MOLEFE:    She says so  bu t  she says so  a f te r  wa i t ing  

fo r  a  very  long t ime.  
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CHAIRPERSON:  A ve ry  long t ime,  yes ,  yes .    

MR MOLEFE:    I  hoped there  cou ld  be  o ther  mat te rs ,  where  

I  cons is ten t ly  sa id  to  her,  we wro te  to  you,  we gave you 

recommendat ions ,  can we p lease appo in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes,  yes ,  so  i t ’s  sounds a  very  s t range  

response to  me,  d id  she c la r i f y  why she thought  PRASA 

was not  ready fo r  a  permanent  g roup CEO,  I  wou ld  have  

thought  tha t  any organ isa t ion  needs a  leader,  a  pe rmanent  

leader  l i ke ,  yes terday.   I  don ’ t  unders tand the  idea o f  an  

organ isa t ion  no t  be ing  ready fo r  a  permanent  leader.    10 

MR MOLEFE:    She d idn ’ t  exp la in  but  c lear ly  as one would  

see th is  happens af ter  severa l  meet ings inc lud ing that  

meet ing wi th  the President  where an at tempt  was made to 

br ing Mr Montana back.   Of  course  one of  the reasons that  

they – they t r ied to  use to  just i fy  that  was conta ined in  th is  

repor t  to  Mr Radebe of  Mr Montana which we are looking fo r  

which says that  you know the Organisat ion for  Af r i can Uni ty  

had adopted a resolut ion that  commit ted South A f r ica to  

becoming a manufactur ing hub for  ra i l  and ro l l ing stock for  

the Af r i can cont inent .   And they say that  you therefore need 20 

a person wi th  knowledge of  th is  business l ike Mr Montana in  

that  th ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  seems to suggest… 

MR MOLEFE:   So that  he does not  say i t  here bu t  I  am 

saying i t  f rom my own… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   In teract ions.  

MR MOLEFE:   In teract ions wi th  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Chai rperson I  just  wonder i f  I  can ask 

the wi tness to  conf i rm because i t  may be important  Bongani  

has managed to locate  a document  that  may wel l  be  the  

document  that  the  wi tness was ta lk ing about .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you want  to  show the wi tness the 

document?  

ADV SONI SC:   I  just  want  to  show the wi tness.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja  show the wi tness.  

ADV SONI SC:   Because then we can run out  copies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  the meant ime ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   Then we can deal  wi th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

MR MOLEFE:   Th is i s  the repor t  o f  le t ter  to  the Min is te r.   

Not  the back one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja they wi l l  br ing i t  to  you Mr Molefe.   

They wi l l  b r ing i t  to  you.    

MR MOLEFE:   Ja th is  i s  the document .   [ ind is t inct  20 

00:02:41] .   So what  do you want  me to do?  Chai rperson 

th is  i s  the document… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry your  microphone is  o ff .   You 

just  swi tched off .  

MR MOLEFE:   Chai rperson th is  is  the document  I  was 
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ta lk ing about .   A repor t  on recent  developments at  PRASA 

and i t  is  –  i t  was addressed to Min is te r  Jeff  Radebe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MR MOLEFE:   Who at  that  t ime was respons ib le for  

moni to r ing and evaluat ion in  the presidency.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.   Okay no,  a t  least  now we know 

i t  is… 

MR MOLEFE:   I  am just  wor r ied tha t  we might  lose i t  again.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no we must  not  lose i t .   I  th ink what  

Mr Soni  has in  mind is  that  once you have conf i rmed as you 10 

have that  i t  is  the document  they can immediate ly  s ta r t  

running – pr in t ing  i t  and secur ing i t  to  make sure tha t  we do 

not  lose i t  and making sure they can g ive you a copy i f  you 

need a copy or  you might  have your  – a copy.   And then –  

and then Mr Soni  you can then see whether  you would le t  

Mr Molefe deal  wi th  the document  la te r  or  when? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   We thought  once we have got  the  copies,  

we wi l l  be able to… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja because you might  need to read i t  as 

wel l .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   F i rs t  ja .   But  a t  least  now that  we have 

got  i t  I  th ink that  i s  very important .   Ja.  
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ADV SONI SC:   I t  –  oh i t  is  a  b ig  f ind Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja thank you,  thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   Ms Molefe i s  there anyth ing e lse in  your  le t  

–  oh and there is  just  one par t  o f  your  le t ter  that  I  want  to  

refer  to  and that  i s  a t  165 where af ter  a l l  those bul le t  po ints  

in  the middle of  that  le t ter  you say,  the Board does not  have 

any reason to stop the invest igat ion at  th is  po int  and is  

sat is f ied that  s topping the invest igat ion wi l l  be harmfu l  to  

PRASA.   That  is  the stance of  the Board would I  be correct?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  wanted to  go ahead here to  [ ind is t inct  10 

00:05:10] .  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh sor ry,  sorry p lease do I  do not  want  to… 

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  o f  course Counsel  can guide me but  I  

thought  on paragraph 5 I  do no t  know i f  Counsel  would  

a l low me to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Remember to  look th is  s ide.   Yes as you 

d id previously.  

MR MOLEFE:   Chai rperson I  wonder i f  Counsel  would not  

l ike to  read that?  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   I t  is  a… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  par t  you would l i ke read in  the 

le t ter?  

MR MOLEFE:   There is  a  par t  I  would l i ke to  read.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja p lease read i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   The – i t  is  paragraph 5 of  the… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes page 164.  

MR MOLEFE:   Page 164 and i t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes read i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   The capt ion is  whether  the invest igat ion 

should be stopped and a deta i led repor t  be submi t ted to  the 

Min is te r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   And i t  goes onto say:  

“As we ind icated to  the Min is te r  a t  the meet ing of  17 Ju ly  

2015 and as c lear ly  ind icated f rom the above excerpts of  10 

the PFMA we bel ieve that  the Board has the responsib i l i t y  

to  inst i tu te and to  cont inue fo r  the forensic invest iga t ions in  

i ts  capaci ty  as the account ing author i t y  o f  PRASA.   We are  

sat is f ied that  the invest igat ion is  necessary,  i s  not  i r regular,  

is  cost  e ffect ive  and assis t  wi th  easing some of  the 

operat ional  bot t le  necks created by the past  b la tan t  fa i lure  

to  observe the law. ”  

I  do not  know Cha i rperson i f  I  should stop there and… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i f  that  was the important  par t  that  i s  

f ine but  i f  there i s  another  importan t  par t  you can ind icate.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   And then… 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Our Counsel  wi l l  ind icate i f  there is  

another  par t  he wants you to  look a t .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.    The – and you are qui te  r ight  Mr  



29 JUNE 2020 – DAY 226 
 

Page 69 of 204 
 

Molefe that  i s  an  important  po int  but  the point  I  wanted to  

make is  that  when you say the  Board does not  have a 

reason what  you are saying to  the Min is te r  is  in  terms of  

Sect ion 50 and 51 of  the PFMA.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   The Board must  act  accord ing to  i ts  own 

conscience and i ts  own bel ie f  and i ts  own unders tanding  

about  i ts  respons ib i l i t ies and cannot  take inst ruct ions f rom 

even the Min is te r.   That  – would  I  be encapsulat ing that  

problem? 10 

MR MOLEFE:   To the extent  that  the inst ruct ions are in  

conf l i c t  wi th  the law the Board is  not  ob l iged to  take those 

inst ruct ions Chai rperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   And you have ment ioned that  po int  

[ ind is t inct  00:08:10] .  

MR MOLEFE:   Other  point  we are making and that  is  why I  

went  back to  that  paragraph again because i t  restates that .   

And that  is  why probably the publ i c  should understand 

because somet imes people say but  what  i s  wrong wi th  th is  

Chai rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You are d isobeying the fu l l  [ ind is t inct  

00:08:35] .  

MR MOLEFE:   You are d isobeying the leadership.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is  the President ,  i t  is  the Min is te r  why do 
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you not  just  keep quiet  and do as they te l l  you?  But  in  the  

end,  I  th ink I  have my own responsib i l i t y  and my own 

in tegr i t y  a lso to  –  to  protect .   I  might  not  be hold ing  a h igh 

posi t ion in  society but  I  have a lso been heavi ly  done I  know 

the va lues and pr inc ip les that  have inspi red me,  guided me 

and why I  am involved in  what  I  am involved in  and – and 

why i t  is  necessary therefore not  to  equates in  anyth ing that  

v io la tes those va lues and pr inc ip les.  

ADV SONI SC:   And one of  the va lues that  the const i tu t ion 

imposes on a l l  reposi to r ies of  power.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Is  that  they must  exerc ise power in  an  

accountable manner.   That  i s  exact ly  what  you were  saying 

to  the Min is te r.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  –  that  is  correc t .  

ADV SONI SC:   And then you say r ight  a t  the end of  that  

paragraph – at  the – sor ry perhaps you should read the next  

paragraph because th is  goes to  the state of  knowledge of  

the Min is te r  where you say we have endeavoured.   I f  you 

could read that  in to the record Mr Molefe.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Am I  sure?  Okay Chai rperson thanks and 

that  is  page 165.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Just  above the th ree bul le t  po ints  at  the  

bot tom there.  
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“We have endeavoured to  keep you abreast  o f  the progress 

of  the invest igat ions.   This has been done th rough amongst  

others.   A meet ing wi th  you in  Rivonia focussing on the 

pre l iminary i r regular i t ies found in  the Swi fambo cont ract .  

This meet ing was held on 28 August  2015.   A meet ing at  

Werksman At torneys dur ing November af te r  the launch of  

the Review Appl icat ion in  respect  o f  Swi fambo cont ract .   

The last  wr i t ten repor t  was on the 7 Ju ly  2016. ”  

And of  course we – we go fu r ther  to  say:  

“ I t  is  regret tab le that  on 1 Ju ly  2016 I  requested a meet ing 10 

wi th  the Board fo r  you to  address i t  on a number of  issues 

inc lud ing th is  invest igat ion.   However,  to  date we have not  

yet  received a response. ”  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And then I  go on,  on  page 166 Cha i rperson 

the paragraph –  f i rs t  paragraph on that  page and now 

speaking on beha l f  o f  the Board and I  go onto say:  

“ I t  is  my considered v iew that  i t  w i l l  be sad day for  the  

Department  as a shareholder  and for  the c i t i zens of  South 

Af r ica i f  th is  invest igat ion does not  reach i t s  log ica l  20 

conclus ion.   I  t rust  that  th is  c la r i f ies  the Board ’s  s tance in  

th is  regard.   We shal l  in  correspondence to fo l low by the 

end of  August  p rovide you wi th  a  deta i led repor t  on the 

forensic invest iga t ions undertaken by Werksmans At torneys 

or  on the Board ’s inst ruct ions. ”  
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ADV SONI SC:   Now what  – sor ry you wanted to  say 

someth ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  –  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  I  d id  not  hear  you Mr Soni  just  

ra ise your  vo ice.  

ADV SONI SC:   Sor ry I  was going to  ask a quest ion but  I  –  I  

understood that  the wi tness want  –  no,  no p lease Mr  Molefe 

you… 

MR MOLEFE:   No,  no le t  me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes p lease dr ink – you may dr ink water  so  

that  we can proceed so there is  no problems because 

advisably adjourn  each t ime.  

MR MOLEFE:   No Chai rperson we – the – that  repor t  was 

g iven to  the Min is ter  and the Chai rperson should by now be 

aware we have regular ly  repor t ing to  the Min is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   On a range of  sensi t i ve issues.   And the 

Min is te r  obviously accounts to  the President  and the 

Cabinet .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  expect  that  you would have been repor t ing 

to  the Cabinet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   As wel l .   So i t  then means that  the 
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government  would  have become aware.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Of  the ser iousness of  the levels of  

corrupt ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  were tak ing p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   In  an organisat ion that  i s  expected to  spend 

R173 b i l l i on over  20 years.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Wel l  I  –  in  keeping wi th  what  you 10 

sa id and what  you have just  sa id I  th ink i t  i s  important  to  

look at  the last  par t  o f  page 165 of  your  le t te r.   You say 

there:  

“ I t  is  regret tab le”  

Wr i t ing to  the Min is te r.  

“That  on 1 Ju ly  2016 I  requested a meet ing wi th  the Board 

for  you to  address i t  on a number of  issues inc lud ing the 

invest igat ions.   However,  to  date we have not  yet  received a 

response. ”  

So I  guess i t  shows that  some of  the occasions where you 20 

were even afford ing the Min is te r  the opportuni ty  to  address 

the Board on var ious issues but  there were delays in  get t ing  

a response.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Now the mat ter  that  you referred to  the 

invest igat ion was th is  Swi fambo invest igat ion,  would that  be 

correct?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   Now that  is  the one where  the Supreme 

Court  o f  Appeal  and the High Court  sa id there was 

corrupt ion and the Const i tu t ional  Court  re fused to grant  

Leave to Appeal  against  the judgment  of  the Supreme Court  

o f  Appeal?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then – wel l  not  soon thereaf ter  th is  was in  

the August  24 the next  mi lestone that  happened is  the 

Min is te r  d issolves the Board.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   You say that  she d issolves the Board  on the 

8 March.   Now when she d issolved the Board d id she g ive 

any reasons? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe just  before you answer Mr  Molefe  

just  to  make sure  we get  everyth ing in  proper  sequence.   I  20 

th ink you sa id ear l ier  on  the Board was d issolved by the 

Min is te r  on the 8 March 2017,  i s  that  cor rect?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And d id the d isso lut ion take p lace by way 

of  the Min is te r  making an announcement  in  Par l iament? 
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MR MOLEFE:   That  is  so Chai rperson.   The Min is ter  went  

[ ind is t inct  00:16:32] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And sent  the act ing Di rector  Genera l  in  the 

Department  of  Transport .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   To reach to  Par l iament  the Port fo l io  

Commit tee on Transport  a  le t te r  –  the announcement  that  

the Board has been d issolved.   Of  course,  on the same day 

le t ters were sent  to  each one of  us as Di rectors.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  was not  wel l  on that  day so I  could not  go 

to  Par l iament .   I  had just  had an eye surgery.   But  on the 

same day I  wrote severa l  le t ters to  the Speaker of  

Par l iament .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   To the Chai r  o f  the Port fo l io  Commit tee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Deal ing wi th  what  I  fe l t  was not  the  correct  

way of  managing exerc is ing overs ight  on the af fa i rs  of  20 

PRASA but  a lso asking the Speaker of  Par l iament  to  in i t ia te 

an enqui ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   On Transport .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now so… 



29 JUNE 2020 – DAY 226 
 

Page 76 of 204 
 

MR MOLEFE:   Oh behal f  o f  PRASA 

CHAIRPERSON:   So i t  is  not  the  Min is ter  who made the 

announcement  in  Par l iament  i t  is  the DG? 

MR MOLEFE:   I t  was the act ing DG.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  reading a le t ter  f rom the Min is ter?  

MR MOLEFE:   From the Min is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the DG was reading that  le t te r  to  the 

Depart  –  to  the Port fo l io  Commit tee of  Transport?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now before  the –  th is  le t te r  was read in  –  10 

in  – before the Port fo l io  Commit tee had you a l ready been 

a le r ted by the Min is ter  that  the Board – your  Board was 

going to  be d issolved? 

MR MOLEFE:   Not  a t  a l l  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Not  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   So –  and d id you get  to  know 

about  i t  for  the f i rs t  t ime when maybe the media repor t  

heard about  what  was happening in  the Port fo l io  Commit tee  

before you got  the off i c ia l  le t ter  f rom the Min is te r  o r  d id  you 20 

get  the Min is te r  –  the le t ter  – Min is ter ’s  le t ter  f i rs t  then you 

heard that  i t  had – the le t ter  had been read in  Par l iament?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  was ca l led  Cha i rperson by one of  our  

d i rectors who was a delegate at  the Port fo l io  Commit tee 

meet ing.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And he ca l l s  me he says:   You are no  longer  

my Chai rman,  you are not  Chai rman any board because you 

have got  no board now.   You are –  you have been f i red.   He 

expla ins to  me what  happened in  Par l iament  and then of  

course when I  checked my emai l  box I  found that  a  le t te r  

had been sent  to  me advis ing  me that  I  have been 

d ismissed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  seems a very st range way of  –  of  –  

one would have thought  that  the Board would  be in fo rmed 10 

f i rs t  o r  a t  least  to  be a ler ted.   So –  so unless the le t ter  had 

been sent  f i rs t  to  t ry  and achieve that  but  because you 

might  not  have been a ler ted that  there was a le t te r  – an  

important  le t ter  –  urgent  le t te r  that  you should –  were –  

expect  in  your  emai ls  then you only  got  to  see i t  la te r.  

MR MOLEFE:   My recol lect ion Chai rperson is  that  the date 

on the le t ter  i s  the 8 March as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Same day.  

MR MOLEFE:   Bu t  besides – besides Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   There is  a  separat ion of  powers between the 

leg is la tor  and the  execut ive.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   The execut ive is  not  ob l iged to  go and 

d ismiss the Board  in  – in  a Por t fo l io  Commit tee meet ing.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   The Min is te r  should meet  wi th  the Board of  

Di rectors.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is  casa concerns.   Wel l  the Min is te r  

appoints and d ismisses d i rectors so i f  she does i t  proper ly  

fo l lows process we would not  even have gone to cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  the precise ly  because we too could not  

understand why she chose to act  in  a manner in  wh ich she 10 

d id.   We thought  i t  was improper for  us to  a l low abuse of  

power,  abuse of  author i t y  in  the  manner in  which i t  was 

done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   I  know that  previously I  asked you a 

quest ion and I  th ink you gave me an answer as to  whether  

th is  par t icu la r  Min is te r,  Min is te r  o f  Dipuo Peters whether  i f  

you look at  her  approach or  at t i tude towards the Board  

when the Board star ted and la ter  in  the l i fe  of  the Board 

whether  her  at t i tude towards the Board might  have changed.   

And I  th ink i f  I  recal l  cor rect l y  that  –  the impression I  got  20 

was that  you thought  her  at t i tudes towards the  Board  

changed at  a  la te r  s tage.   Is  that  r ight?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And my v iew is  that  i t  a l l  cent res around the  
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invest igat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And the fact  that  the Board is  perceived to  

be stubborn.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   When i t  is  to ld  do not  do th is ,  do not  

invest igate,  i t  says no,  no we wi l l  invest igate because… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   We have f iduciary du t ies to  be d ischarged.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   So everyth ing cent res around th is  – you 

know th is  invest igat ion.   We [ ind is t inct  00:22:28] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  were beginning  to  emerge.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   From that  invest igat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Molefe again just  expanding on the  

theme ra ised by  the Chai rperson the Min is ter  and – wel l  

through the DG,  act ing DG announces the d ismissal  o f  the 20 

Board on the occasion at  which the Board was appear ing 

before the Port fo l io  Commit tee.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now as I  understand i t  you d id no t  go to  

that  meet ing but  the rest  o f  the Board members went?  
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MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  a  s ign i f ican t  number of  d i rectors we 

normal ly  fee l  that  you do not  have to  take the ent i re  board  

to  a Por t fo l io  Commit tee and expand i ts  money in  hote ls  

and a i r  t i ckets  unnecessar i l y  so  normal ly  we take a 

reasonable number wi th  execut ives – execut ive 

management  to  go par t i cu la r ly  the Group CEO, the Chief  

Financia l  Off i cer  and the Company Secretary.  

ADV SONI SC:   And that  is  qu i te  an expensive… 

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  –  that  is… 

ADV SONI SC:   Sor ry.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  what… 

ADV SONI SC:   But  that  is  qu i te  an expensive bus iness to  

the Port fo l io  Commit tee f rom Pretor ia  in  Cape Town.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now i f  the Min is te r  was d ismiss ing the 

Board and had re f lected on th is  one would imagine that  she 

would have done i t  before the Por t fo l io  Commit tee actual ly  

met  because that  would have saved that  expense 

MR MOLEFE:   That  would have been the case or  af ter  the 

Port fo l io  Commit tee has met  and af ter  the Board had 20 

d ischarged i ts  dut ies to  the Port fo l io  Commit tee because 

that  wi l l  repor t  had to  account .   I t  d id  not  mat ter  i f  a f ter  a  

week or  so she decided now you have done your  job  go.   

But  then she does i t  in  the manner in  which she d id then 

which means actual l y  th is  i s  f ru i t less and wastefu l  
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expendi tu re.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  do  not  know whether  Mr Soni  was 

going to  ask th is  quest ion but  I  want  to  ask th is  quest ion.   

You have had t ime to ref lect  on the events that  happened 

throughout  your  – the term of  o ff ice of  your  Board at  

PRASA.   Are you able to  say whether  on your  analys is  of  

the events there  was – that  the d ismissal  o f  your  Board  

happened on the  day on which the Board was appear ing  

before the Port fo l io  Commit tee was a mere co inc idence or  

is  there some s ign i f i cance in  the convergence of  the 10 

Board ’s appearance before the Commit tee and the d ismissal  

and I  see you sa id the date the le t ters were s igned on the 

8 t h  on the same day.   Is  there a cer ta in  s ign i f icance in  these 

two th ings happening on the same day or  the d ismissal  

happening on the  day when the Board is  appear ing  before 

the Commit tee?  Or was i t  a  co inc idence or  i s  i t  a  mat ter  

you have not  had t ime to ref lect  o r  you would prefer  not  to  –  

to  leave i t  to  other  people to  analyse th is?  

MR MOLEFE:   Chai rperson the d i f f icu l t y  one has is  that  

there appears to  be a group of  people some of  the Min is ters 20 

inc lud ing the Pres ident  and members of  Par l iament  who was 

in  May go to  conferences and adopt  resolut ions on 

corrupt ion but  they do not  mean what  – what  they say.   They 

do not  mean to f ight  th is .   So the –  everyth ing p ivots  around 

the invest igat ion,  the f ight  against  corrupt ion.   So i t  is  a  – i t  
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is  an a l l - round mobi l i sat ion of  var ious vast  inst ruments at  

the d isposal  o f  those who do not  want  to  conf ront  

corrupt ion.   And they were found –  that  Por t fo l io  Commit tee 

maybe i f  Counsel  might  la te r  take us to  the le t ter  I  wrote to  

the Chai r  o f  the Port fo l io  Commit tee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  Por t fo l io  Commit tee i tse l f  says we do 

not  want  th is  Board,  d issolve i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Now i t  is  not  the i r  duty to  say to  a Min is te r  10 

d issolve the Board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   The Min is te r  has got  the execut ive author i ty.   

She must  decide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Whether  you know the Board is  serv ing i t s  

purpose or  not .   But  they saying a l l  o f  those th ings.   They 

are not  saying to  the Min is ter  we want  you to  account .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   For  s tay ing fo r  such a long t ime w i thout  a  20 

Group CEO for  such an important  company.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Company and somebody was reminding me 

by the way that  i t  was not  on ly the CEO, the Group CEO.  

The company a lso d id not  have a Group Chief  F inancia l  
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Off icer.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  has to  put  in  p lace f inancia l  cont ro ls .   I t  

must  ensure that  i t  manages the f inances of  the business 

a l located to  i t  by  Nat ional  Treasury to  Par l iament  p roper ly  

but  there is  no  Chief  Financia l  Off icer.   The Overs ight  

Commit tee that  should be demanding th is  th ing  is  not  

saying i t .   I t  is  worr ied about  why are you keeping the 

Chai rperson of  the Board?  Why are you keeping th is  

Board?  Why do you not  get  them out?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   So – so the – the – I  th ink the Min is te r  

reached a point  where she had to pander to  th is  th ing to  the  

demands of  the Port fo l io  Commit tee.   Secondly the meet ing 

we had wi th  the  President  and Min is te r  Jeff  Radebe was 

sending a c lear  message that  we do not  want  th is  Board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   We do not  want  th is  Board.   We do not  want  

th is  Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   So i t  must  go.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   So I  had sa id ear l ier  on  in  my evidence 

Chai rperson that  there was someth ing that  I  have a lso  

found st range wh i ls t  p ro fess iona l  o rgan isa t ions cou ld  
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invest iga te  a l l  k inds o f  th ings ve t ted  th rough the i r  normal  

regu la tory  bod ies  and so  on .  

 In  the  case o f  th i s  invest iga t ion  there  was a  demand 

tha t  Nat iona l  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency shou ld  ve t  the  peop le  

who were  invest iga t ing  a t  PRASA.   That  invest iga t ion  had  

begun to  shake the  t ree  so  much  tha t  there  was a  lo t  o f  

d iscomfo r t  in  many quar te rs  wh ich  somet imes make you 

wonder  whether  many o f  these peop le  were  no t  aware  o f  

the  wrongs tha t  were  happen ing  a t  PRASA and whethe r  

they themse lves  were  no t  benef ic ia r ies  o f  what  was 10 

happen ing  there  in  one way or  the  o the r.  

 So I  th ink  the  d ismissa l  o f  the  board  was p lanned,  

was be ing  d iscussed e lsewhere  and i t  was s taged in  such a  

way tha t  i t  must  g ive  max imum pub l ic i t y  and embar rass  the  

d i rec tors .   I  wou ld  have expected  the  Min is te r  to  ca l l  a t  

leas t  me,  as  the  Cha i r  o f  the  board ,  to  say do  not  be  

surpr i sed,  I  have cons idered th i s  and tha t  about  you r  board  

and I  have ar r i ved a t  a  conc lus ion  tha t  we shou ld  d isso lve  

i t .    

 I  wou ld  p robab ly  have sa id  ja ,  bu t  Min is te r,  le t  us  a t  20 

least  a r range fo r  you to  meet  w i t h  the  board  so  tha t  you  

can exp la in  to  us  and maybe then te l l  us  to  go  a t  tha t  

meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  there  –  to  your  knowledge was there  

anyth ing  tha t  the  Min is te r  o r  anyone e lse  m ight  have 
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expected tha t  the  board  wou ld  say be fore  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  tha t  the  Min i s te r  o r  somebody e lse  m ight  no t  

have wanted the  board  to  ge t  the  chance to  say because 

the  moment  you are  d ismissed I  take  i t  tha t  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  m ight  say  you have no –  once you are  no  longer  

a  board  we do not  –  we have no bus iness ask ing  you any 

quest ions so  you  s top  th is  appearance before  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  the  moment  you announce tha t  the  board  is  

d ismissed.   Do you know whether  there  was anyth ing  tha t  

the  board  may have been expected to  say tha t  somebody 10 

might  no t  have wanted to  board  to  say be fore  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  or  you  wou ld  no t  be  sure?  

MR MOLEFE:    The purpose fo r  the  board  appear ing  be fo re  

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  is  to  account  fo r  i t s  work  o f  the  

preced ing  year.   Now natura l l y  g iven what  we had been 

busy w i th ,  the  board  was go ing  to  have to  ta lk  about  

rampant  cor rup t ion ,  the  l i t iga t ions tha t  were  under  way.   

They wou ld  have had to  ta lk  about  the  po l i ce  re fus ing  to  do  

the i r  job ,  many repor ts  tha t  we had g i ven to  them,  c iv i l  

ac t ions taken and  so  on .    20 

They wou ld  no t  have loved tha t  to  happen and one  

o f  the  th ings tha t  wou ld  probab ly  had fea tured there  wou ld  

have been what  appears  in  the  Swi fambo mat te r  where  

mon ies  were  pa id  to  ind iv idua ls  who came to  say look,  you 

are  go ing  to  ge t  th is  b ig  cont rac t ,  you know,  you have got  
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to  sha re  tha t  money w i th  somebody,  you know?   

 So a l l  o f  those th ings may we l l  have been th ings  

tha t  made peop le  res t less  a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   I  do  no t  know how everyone 

fee ls ,  i t  does no t  fee l  –  i t  fee ls  l i ke  the  a i rcon i s  –  the  

heater  i s  tak ing  too  long to  make us  warm.   I  do  no t  know 

but  maybe when we come back a f te r  lunch i t  w i l l  be  f ine .   I  

th ink  you wanted to  ask  quest ion  be fore  we ad jou rn .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  want  to  jus t  ra ise  a  –  Cha i rperson,  you  

have ra ised someth ing  tha t  I  have not  thought  about  and I  10 

had not  asked the  w i tness to  th ink  about  bu t  perhaps we  

cou ld  ra i se  i t  because the  w i tness has ment ioned two 

le t te rs  tha t  he  had wr i t ten ,  one to  the  Speaker  o f  

Par l iament  and  the  o ther  to  the  Cha i rperson  o f  the 

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .   Cer ta in l y  the  le t te r  to  the  Speaker  o f  

Par l iament  i s  da ted  the  same day  as  they are  d i smissed  

and i t  may be a f te r  the  w i tness has looked a t  i t ,  he  can  

re f lec t  aga in  as  to  whether  there  is  a  connect ion  be tween  

the  t im ing  o f  the  d ismissa l  and the  issues you have ra ised.   

I t  has  on ly  occur red  to  me now,  Cha i rperson,  bu t  i f  there  i s  20 

someth ing  tha t  I  submi t  needs to  be  cons idered.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  does need to  be  looked a t  because i t  

i s  qu i te  ex t rao rd inary.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  the  Min is te r  who I  assume wou ld  
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have known in  advance tha t  the  board  wou ld  be  appear ing  

be fore  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  a  ce r ta in  da te  does not  

d ismiss  the  board  be fore  tha t  bu t  ac tua l l y  d i smisses the  

board  on  the  day or  when they are  supposed to  appear  and  

I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  i f  she  d ismissed the  board  be fore  the  

da te  she wou ld  have ach ieved the  same th ing  i f  pa r t  o f  her  

concern  was tha t  the  board  was  go ing  to  revea l  cer ta in  

th ings.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  co inc id ing  the  10 

d ismissa l  w i th  the  da te  o f  the  board ’s  appearance  before  

the  Commiss ioner  –  be fore  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  m ight  

have been based on some o ther  reason.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe  has ment ioned  

tha t  a lso  i t  m igh t  have been in tended to  embarrass  the  

board  and to  ge t  a  lo t  o f  pub l i c i t y  fo r  tha t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    C lear  pub l i c i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  a f te r  lunch we can wrap tha t  up .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  see i t  is  two minutes  past  one.   

Le t  us  take  the  lunch ad jou rnment  and we w i l l  resume a t  

two o ’c lock .  

ADV SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   And the  way i t  i s  co ld  here  

in  Jo ’bu rg ,  i t  makes some o f  us  who come f rom Durban  

want  to  go  back to  Durban.   Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Cha i r,  may I  p lace  on record  tha t  we  

have now re t r ieved tha t  document  and I  wou ld  l i ke  Mr  

Mot lana to  hand i t  up .   I  mean,  Mr  Mole fe ,  to  hand i t  up .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i s  tha t  the  repor t  wh ich  we have  

been ca l l ing  the  Turmoi l  a t  PRASA? 10 

ADV SONI  SC:    PRASA in  Turmoi l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i t  may be  tha t  i t  i s  conven ien t  to  

ca l l  i t  tha t  even  i f  tha t  i s  no t  the  head ing  tha t  appears  

because we –  as  long as  there  is  ment ion  o f  tha t  in  the  

body o f  th is  document .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  you  have  seen the  repor t ,  I  have  

not  –  there  i s  another  word  tha t  we can use to  ca l l  i t ,  tha t  

i s  f ine ,  so  I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  because Mr  Mole fe  

emphas ised ear l i e r  tha t  he  had no t iced tha t  i t  i s  no t  what  i t  20 

is  ca l led .   So tha t  somehow one may end up …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SONI  SC:    One o f  the  head ings is  PRASA in  Turmoi l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV SONI  SC:    One o f  the  head ings in  the  repor t  i s  

PRASA In terna l .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Somewhere  in  t he  repor t ,  you mean not  

a t  the  top?  

ADV SONI  SC:    One o f  the  head ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  a t  the  beg inn ing .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  conven ien t  to  ca l l  i t  tha t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  know what  document  we are  

ta lk ing  about  when anybody re fe rs  to  the  PRASA in  Turmoi l  

repor t  o r  document .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV SONI  SC:    So ,  Cha i rperson,  jus t  fo r  the  orde r  we  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink ,  Mr  Son i ,  you have confused 

both  me and Mr  Mole fe  about  wha t  you wanted –  about  the  

repor ts .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Oh,  so r ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  you want  h im to  hand i t  up  bu t  I  

suppose you wan ted h im to  ident i t y  i t  bu t  I  th ink  you le f t  20 

tha t  in  be tween.  

ADV SONI  SC:    So ,  I  was …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  can take  i t  f rom Mr  Mole fe .   

Sor ry,  le t  me take i t  f rom Mr  Mole fe .   Mr  Mole fe ,  I  am 

sor ry.    
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ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  g i ve  i t  to  me.   Yes,  so  tha t  i s  the  

document  ca l led  –  or  ra ther,  w r i t ten  a t  the  top :  

“Repor t  on  recent  deve lopments  a t  

PRASA. ”  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  so ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  you want  to  –  have you got  –  I  am 

sure ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  you have got  you r  own copy?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  do  have,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  do  you want  Mr  Son i  to  le t  10 

h im ident i f y  i t  so  tha t  we can admi t  i t? 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   We cou ld  ca l l  i t  as  you suggest ,  

Cha i rperson,  PRASA in  Turmoi l  and we cou ld  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  we do not  have to  wr i te  down on  

page 1  a t  the  top  PRASA in  Turmoi l ,  we can leave  i t  as  i t  

i s .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  I  meant  was,  anybody who says 

the  PRASA in  Tu rmoi l  repor t ,  as  long as we know which  

document  i t  i s .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  wou ld  be  f ine .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And we cou ld  inc lude i t  a t  the  end o f  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  Mr  Mole fe  to  ident i f y  i t  
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f i rs t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  do  you wan t  me to  take  h im th rough 

i t  –  no t  th rough i t  bu t  to  ident i f y  i t  f i rs t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    He can ident i f y  i t  f i rs t ,  Cha i rperson .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Mole fe ,  you have been re fer r ing  to  a  

document  p roduced by  Mr  Montana.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And you re fer red  to  i t  in  genera l  te rms as  10 

a  document  ca l led  PRASA in  Turmoi l .  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  so .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Is  th is  the  document?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  th is  i s  the  document ,  Cha i rperson,  

wh ich  is  wr i t ten :  

“Repor t  on  recent  deve lopments  a t  

PRASA. ”  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes and then the  las t  page …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    Made a t  27  Ju ly  in  the  las t  page and  i t  a lso  

s ta tes  tha t  the  repor t  compi led  by  Tshepo Lucky Montana.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and i t  has  go t  11  pages,  r igh t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    R igh t  a t  the  end you w i l l  see  i t  a t  the  

bo t tom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  i s  pages 1  to  11  so  i t  i s  an  11  page 



29 JUNE 2020 – DAY 226 
 

Page 92 of 204 
 

repor t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh,  11  page repor t ,  yes ,  Cha i rpe rson .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   What  do  you propose we mark  

i t  as  exh ib i t  what ,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Le t  me jus t  f ind… 

CHAIRPERSON:    You want  i t  to  be  inser ted?  We cou ld  

have i t  separa te .   We cou ld  have i t  separa te .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because un less  we add i t  a t  the  back  

o f… 10 

ADV SONI  SC:    I t  may be a  good idea,  Cha i rpe rson,  to  

have i t  as  a  separa te  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  a  separa te  document .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes because I  have no doubt  i t  w i l l  come 

up aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   Okay,  then we need to  know 

what  exh ib i t  i t  w i l l  be .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Sha l l  we make th is  EXHIBIT SS6A? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Exh ib i t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    SS6 -  Mr  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  SS6 and we  20 

can make th is  6A .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  shou ld  we not  make  i t  SS7 

because when you say. . .  

ADV SONI  SC:    There  is  a l ready a  7 ,  as  I  unders tand i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i s  there  another  one because when 
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you  say 6A i t  w i l l  g ive  the  impress ion  tha t  i t  comes  before  

6 .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   I  w i l l  j us t  check.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  las t  exh ib i t  we have 

admi t ted?  Even March,  there  may  be o ther  documents  tha t  

we admi t ted  or  o therw ise  we cou ld  use SS6A,  as  you say.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Can I  make the  suggest ion ,  Mr  

Cha i rperson,  can  we have i t  as  6A prov is iona l l y  and then 

when we have worked out  what  i s  the  las t  SS number  we 

cou ld  then conver t  i t  to  the  number  a f te r  tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    My d i f f i cu l t y  i s  t ha t  we w i l l  re fe r  i t  w i th  –  

we w i l l  use  and then la te r  we change.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Oh,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  th is  bund le  D cons is t s  o f  Mr  

Mole fe ’ s  a f f idav i t  and annexures there to ,  i s  i t  no t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   Yes,  i t  does ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Shou ld  we not  –  and the re  i s  no  o ther  

bund le  tha t  has go t  annexures to  h is  a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  on l y  

th is  one.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then shou ld  we  not  pu t  i t  a t  the  back so  

tha t  i t  becomes s imply  an  annexure? 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  no t  an  annexure  because the  

a f f idav i t  –  we l l ,  the  a f f idav i t  does,  I  th ink ,  re fe r  to  i t  
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a l though because  i t  was not  ava i lab le  i t  was not  annexed.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    But  I  th ink  we can put  i t  a t  the  end and 

we –  i t  w i l l  become in  te rms o f  pag ina t ion  as  a  PSM331.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  th ink  le t  us  do  –  what  was the  

document  be fore  tha t?   What  was the  document  be fore  

tha t?   Was i t  PM11?  PM12?  PM15?  Ja ,  i t  looks  l i ke  the  

las t  document  i s  PM15.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i f  we –  le t  us  make i t  PM and  

annexure  even though –  because i t  i s  re fe r red  to  in  the  

a f f idav i t ,  i s  i t  no t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  jus t  no t  g iven an annexure  number .  

ADV SONI  SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  th ink  le t  us  make i t  annexure  PM16.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  tha t  be  a l r igh t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  le t  us  mark  i t  PM16 and then in  te rms 

o f  the  pag ina t ion  i t  w i l l  be  PSM333 and I  wr i te  SS6  before  

PSM.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   So i f  you  re fer  to  i t  as  PM16 or  

PRASA in  Tu rmoi l  we w i l l  know wh ich  one you are  ta lk ing  

about .  



29 JUNE 2020 – DAY 226 
 

Page 95 of 204 
 

ADV SONI  SC:    Ta lk ing  about ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you.  

PRASA IN TURMOIL DOCUMENT HANDED IN AS PM16 

ADV SONI  SC:    Can we re fer  to  th is  a  l i t t le  la te r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  la te r .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  w i l l  l ead Mr  Mole fe  on  i t  a  l i t t le  la te r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now,  Mr  Mole fe ,  we were  s t i l l  dea l ing  w i th  

the  d ismissa l  by  the  Min is te r  o f  the  board  on  the  8  March.   

When the  Min is te r  announced he r  dec is ion ,  what  was your  10 

react ion  to  i t?   I  am ta lk ing  about  ac t i ve  reac t ion  in  

re la t ion  to  he r  dec i s ion .   But  pe rhaps l e t  me ask more  

d i rec t l y .   D id  you cha l lenge the  dec is ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  d id ,  Cha i rpe rson ,  I  ca l led  the  res t  o f  the 

d i rec tors  and suggested tha t  we cha l lenge the  dec i s ion .   I  

d id  a lso  say,  o f  course ,  regard less  o f  whether  they jo ined 

me in  do ing  so  o r  no t ,  I  was go ing  to  cha l lenge i t ,  so  –  and  

tha t  i s  what  we d id ,  we ins t ruc ted  Webber  Wentze l  f i rm o f  

a t to rneys to  be  our  a t to rneys-o f - record .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   You then took the  dec i s ion  to  quote  20 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry ,  Mr  Son i ,  i t  i s  more  log ica l  fo r  

us  to  dea l  w i th  the  reasons,  i f  any ,  tha t  were  g iven by  the  

m in is te r  fo r  d ismiss ing  the  board  and what  Mr  Mole fe  

thought  o f  those reasons before  we go to  cha l leng ing ,  i s  i t  
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no t?  

MR MOLEFE:    There  shou ld  be  a  le t te r  o f  the  m in is te r ,  

very  scanty .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry ,  yes ,  I  d id  no t  hear ,  jus t  

repeat ,  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  sa id  there  is  a  le t te r  tha t  s imp ly  d ismisses 

us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  was …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    Reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  i t  does not  even g ive  

much reasons to  say pe r fo rmance or  someth ing  to  tha t  10 

e f fec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  what  I  wou ld  l i ke  Mr  

Son i  to  t rave rse  f i rs t .   We must  –  because you have to ld  us  

tha t  the  –  you have to ld  us  tha t  the  ac t ing  DG read the  

le t te r  o f  d ismissa l  to  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .   So we do 

need to  see –  to  ident i f y  the  le t te r ,  i f  i t  i s  here .   I f  i t  i s  no t  

here  then I  must  be  to ld  i t  i s  no t  here  because maybe f rom 

i t  we w i l l  see  the  reasons.   Or i f  the  reasons are  no t  there ,  

Mr  Mole fe  can ind ica te  whethe r  a t  some s tage or  another  

p r io r  to  the  cha l l enge in  cour t  o f  the  dec is ion  the  Min is te r  20 

d id  g i ve  her  reasons or  was asked to  g i ve  reasons and 

what  was her  response.   I  th ink  i t  i s  more  na tu ra l  i f  we  

cover  tha t  f i rs t .  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  an  issue  tha t  i s  covered  in  the 

judgment ,  tha t  i s  why I  wanted to  go  to  the  judgment .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  dea l  w i th  i t  now even i f  i t  is  in  the  

judgment  because when one is  l i s ten ing  to  the  s to ry  the  

f i rs t  th ing  when one is  to ld  tha t  the  Min is te r  d ismissed the  

board ,  the  next  th ing  you want  to  know is  why.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  i s  be t te r  to  hear  i t  now even i f  the 

reason the  cour t  dea ls  w i th  them la ter  on .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   So,  in  o ther  words,  what  I  want  to  

know,  do  we have the  le t te r  tha t  was read to  par l iament  10 

where  the  Min is te r  communica ted  the  –  or  tha t  was wr i t ten  

to  the  board ,  to  members  o f  the  board  say ing  you a re  be ing  

d ismissed and these are  the  reasons,  i f  they  were  g iven,  

and then the  react ion  to  those reasons,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

know what  he  thought  o f  those reasons.   P robab ly  d id  no t  

th ink  much o f  them,  tha t  i s  why they dec ided to  go  to  cour t .  

MR MOLEFE:    To  cour t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  i s  the  –  I  am look ing  a t  ge t t ing  

the  s to ry  in  a  log i ca l  way.  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  unders tand.   As  i t  un fo lded.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .   The cour t  la te r  on  –  we can say  

what  d id  the  cour t  say  about  those reasons,  bu t  tha t  i s  

la te r .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  p lace  on record ,  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  the  

DG’s  le t te r  i s  someth ing  we have  on ly  heard  about  th is  
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morn ing  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime.   I  had thought  un t i l  th is  morn ing  

tha t  the  Min i s te r  had announced i t  a t  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  bu t  tha t  le t te r  i s  no t  par t  o f  the  documents  

be fore  you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and –  so  even in  t he  cour t  

p roceed ings tha t  ensued i t  was not  par t  o f  those…? 

ADV SONI  SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was not  pa r t  o f  th is .  

ADV SONI  SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  Mole fe ,  have you found tha t  10 

le t te r  by  any chance?  I  th ink  you are  look ing  fo r  i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    The le t te r  wou ld  be  rea l l y  addressed to  

each one o f  the  d i rec tors  by  the  Min is te r.   I t  wou ld  no t  be  

the  one read in  par l iament .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was not  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   The one read in  par l iamen t  wou ld  

have been addressed to  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee?  

MR MOLEFE:    Wou ld  have been addressed to  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  adv is ing  them tha t  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  the  d ismissa l .  

MR MOLEFE:    That  the  board  is  be ing  d i sso lved.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   But  even i f  you do no t  f ind  –  

i f  you  can f ind  the  le t te r  tha t  was addressed to  you ,  we can  

dea l  w i th  i t .   I f  you  do not  f ind  i t  you  can jus t  te l l  me what  
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your  reco l lec t ion  is  o f  what  reasons i t  gave,  i f  i t  gave any.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  w i l l  do ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Wel l ,  d id  she g i ve  any reasons a t  the  t ime 

she d ismissed you,  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  wou ld  ra ther  wa i t  to  see the  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The le t te r.  

MR MOLEFE:    My reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  the  reasons were  

rea l l y  no t  substant ive .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    They s imp ly  sa id  poor  per fo rmance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  d id  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  why in  cour t  i t  was d ismissed as  an  

i r ra t iona l  dec is ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  you can do,  Mr  Son i ,  o f  course ,  i s  

to  look  a t  the  reasons as  were  unders tood in  cour t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    They a re  qu i te  revea l ing ,  Cha i rperson,  

tha t  i s  why I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe  cannot  g ive  an  answer.   I  w i l l  

re fe r  you to  a  paragraph o f  the  judgment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Which  addresses th is  ve ry  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  a l r i gh t .   Le t  us  proceed.   I f  

the  le t te r  i s  no t  there ,  le t  us  proceed and then we w i l l  see  

how the  cour t  dea ls  w i th  i t .   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  i t  i s  –  when you  

say somebody has been d ismissed in  c i r cumstances tha t  
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appear  to  be  s t range the  f i r s t  th ing  you want  to  know is ,  

why was the  pe rson d i smissed,  what  was the  react ion ,  

be fore  you hear  what  happened in  cour t  la te r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  what  happens in  cour t  ac tua l l y  

exp la ins  in  a  sense the  fac t  tha t  no  reasons were  g i ven.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Le t  us  go  ahead.   I f  we f ind  

the  le t te r  la te r  on  we can come back to  i t  bu t  tha t  i s  f ine ,  

le t  us  go  ahead.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Okay.   So,  Mr  Mole fe ,  may I  ask  you to  

look  a t  bund le  A and i t  i s  the  judgment  o f  the  cour t  in  the 10 

mat te r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say i t  i s  bund le  A?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  bund le  A .  

MR MOLEFE:    I s  i t  th is  one?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  have –  oh ,  there  i t  i s .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  do  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page?   That  i s  bund le  A  o f  

EXHIBIT SS1.  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  r igh t ,  yes .   SS2,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  i s  the  page?  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Page 83,  tha t  i s  where  the  judgments  are .   

The repor t  s ta r ts  page 83 and you w i l l  see ,  Cha i rperson,  i t  

has  Mr  Mole fe  and the  o ther  board  members  aga ins t  the  

Min is te r  o f  Transpor t  and members  o f  a  newly  appo in ted  

board .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on one second?  

ADV SONI  SC:    A t  page 83,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  page 83?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  the  peop le  who were  pag ina t ing  

here  depar ted  f rom the  norm.   You know,  these bund les ,  

the  numbers ,  the  pag ina t ion  is  supposed to  be  sequent ia l  

f rom page 1  up  to  the  las t  page.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  see tha t  the  f i rs t  document  goes up  10 

to  page 59.   The next  document  s ta r ts  f rom scra tch .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes. ,  

CHAIRPERSON:    On page 1 ,  i t  s ta r ts  the  pag ina t ion  

a f resh.   I t  shou ld  no t  be  l i ke  tha t .   Okay,  page 83?  

ADV SONI  SC:    O f  SS2.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  i s  now –  ja ,  w i l l  you  jus t  make  

sure  tha t  these th ings are  checked beforehand because the  

number ing ,  the  pag ina t ion ,  there  must  be  cons is tency w i th  

every th ing .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Because when  I  see page 59,  I  th ink  

okay,  I  am on ly  20  pages away f rom 83 on ly  to  f ind  tha t  

when I  th ink  I  have reached the  twent ie th  page i t  i s  no t  83  

and I  s t i l l  a  long  way because the  pag ina t ion  has  s ta r ted  

a f resh.   Yes,  okay,  I  have got  the  judgment .  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Now,  Mr  Mole fe ,  can I  ask  you in  respect  

o f  tha t  judgment ,  cou ld  you tu rn  to  page 124,  paragraph 

51?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  am on 124,  pa ragraph 51,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say pa ragraph 81?  

ADV SONI  SC:    51 ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    F ive  one?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  yes .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now in  the  ea r l ie r  paragraphs the  judge  10 

dea ls  w i th  the  du ty  to  g ive  reasons fo r  admin is t ra t i ve  

ac t ion  and then a t  parag raph 51 he se ts  ou t  what  reasons 

were  g i ven.   Cou ld  you read tha t  in to  the  record  p lease?  

MR MOLEFE:    Parag raph 51,  Cha i rpe rson reads as  

fo l lows:  

 “For  the  f i rs t  t ime the  Min i s te r  pu rpo r ted  a t  p ress  

conference tha t  she he ld  on  13 March 2017 to  

jus t i f y  her  dec is ion  to  remove the  re levant  d i rec to rs ,  

she d id  tha t  th rough the  med ia  ins tead o f  th rough  

the  concerned d i rec to rs .   She s ta ted  tha t  the  board  20 

was found want ing  re la t ing  to ,  amongst  o the rs ,  the  

dec l in ing  pe r fo rmance,  lack  o f  good governance ,  

lack  o f  f inanc ia l  p rudence and ever  de te r io ra t ing  

pub l i c  conf idence  due to  spats  o f  in f igh t ing . ”  

ADV SONI  SC:    Okay,  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  s top  there .   Was  
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tha t  the  f i rs t  t ime you heard  the  jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  the  

d ismissa l  o f  the  board  on  the  13 t h?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  was the  f i rs t  t ime.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    That  was the  f i rs t  t ime,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  you were  d ismissed on the  8 t h  bu t  the  

f i rs t  t ime you were  g iven a  reason  so  to  speak was  on the 

13 t h?  

MR MOLEFE:    The media ,  the  med ia ,  the  pub l i c  were  

g iven a  reason.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   Yes,  no ,  tha t  i s  an  impor tan t  

fac tor  to  remind tha t  she was ta lk ing  to  the  med ia .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And not  ta lk ing  to . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And not  to  the  board  and to  yourse l ves.   

Yes,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    As  emphas ised by  the  judge.  

CHAIRPERSON:    By  the  judge.  

ADV SONI  SC:    By  the  judge,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    And then in  the  next  –  then the  judge says 

what  she had sa id  in  her  answer ing  a f f idav i t .   Cou ld  you 

read tha t  in to  the  record?  

MR MOLEFE:     

“ In  her  answer ing  a f f idav i t  she se t  ou t  two  
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fundamenta l  reasons fo r  her  dec is ion .   F i rs t l y ,  she  

c la ims tha t  the  t r igger  fo r  the  re levant  d i rec tors ’  

remova l  was the i r  dec i s ion  to  te rm inate  Le tsoa lo ’ s  

secondment  to  PRASA.   She s ta tes  tha t  the  board  

was removed because the  board  ac ted  in  un ison in  

f rus t ra t ing  the  ac t ions o f  Mr  Le tsoa lo  and u l t imate l y  

remov ing  h im.   Fur the rmore . . . ”  

And I  am on now page 125,  Cha i rperson.  

“Fur thermore ,  she c la imed tha t  she substant ia l l y  

compl ied  w i th  the  procedura l  fa i rness,  ob l iga t ions in  10 

respect  o f  th is  compla in t  because  she wro te  to  t he  

board  on  1  March 2017 and asked i t  to  exp la in  i t s  

pub l i c  spat  w i th  Le tsoa lo  and to  fu rn ish  reasons  

why she shou ld  no t  in te rvene in  o rder  to  res tore  

good governance w i th in  PRASA.   Second ly ,  the  

Min is te r  c la imed tha t  she had w ide - rang ing  

concerns about  the  board  management  o f  PRASA.   

She cons idered  i t  to  have been invo lved in  

cor rup t ion  and in  i r regu lar  expend i tu re  s ince  i t s  

appo in tment .   Qu i te  c lea r ly ,  nowhere  does she s ta te  20 

tha t  she a f fo rded the  re levant  d i rec to rs  an 

oppor tun i ty  to  be  heard  on  these issues befo re  she  

took the  dec is ion  to  remove them f rom o f f i ce . ”  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Cha i r ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  can I  ask  you to  tu rn  

to  paragraph 56?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Does anybody fee l  l i ke  i t  i s  warmer  than  

before  lunch?  

ADV SONI  SC:    I t  i s  s l igh t l y  warmer .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  s l igh t ly  warmer ,  okay.   Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  i s  s l igh t ly  warmer ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  th is ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  i s  a f te r  the  judge  

dec ides tha t  she was se t t ing  as ide  her  dec is ion  and  th is  is  

the  th i rd  reason he g ives .   Can you  p lace tha t  on  record :  

MR MOLEFE:    Paragraph 56 o f  the  judgment ,  Cha i rperson,  10 

reads:  

 “Th i rd ly  and las t l y ,  the  Min is te r ’s  dec i s ion  to  

remove the  concerned d i rec tors  was so  

unreasonab le  and d i sp ropor t ionate  as  to  be  

arb i t ra ry  and i r ra t iona l .   The board  took a  dec is ion  

to  te rm inate  Le tsoa la  a f te r  i t  had sought  and  

obta ined lega l  adv ice .   The dec i s ion  to  te rm inate  to  

te rm inate  Le tsoa lo ’s  appo in tment  was thus p la in l y  

reasonab le  g iven  the  fac t  tha t  i t  had a  d iscre t ion  to  

te rm inate  h i s  appo in tment  a t  w i l l .   The Min is te r  20 

shou ld  have accepted tha t  the  board ’s  dec is ion  to  

te rm inate  h is  secondment  ra the r  than d isc ip l in ing  i t  

fo r  i t .   Her  dec i s ion  was accord ing ly  un reasonab le  

on  tha t  bas i s  a lone.   The dec i s ion ,  however ,  i s  

rendered who l ly  d isp ropor t ionate  by  the  fac t  tha t  
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the  Min i s te r  appears  to  have g i ven  no cons idera t ion  

to  the  ser ious  and pre jud i c ia l  impact  o f  the  

who lesa le  remova l  o f  the  board  on PRASA’s  

in te res t . ”  

ADV SONI  SC:    Okay,  you can s top  there .   Can I  then ask  

you to  look  a t  paragraph 60?  I f  you  cou ld  jus t  read the  

f i rs t  sentence?   

MR MOLEFE:    Paragraph 60 ,  Cha i rperson,  the  f i rs t  

sentence reads as  fo l lows.  

“ I  have reached  a  conc lus ion  tha t  the  app l i cants ,  o r  10 

shou ld  I  say  the  removed d i rec tors ,  have proved 

tha t  they have  a  c lea r  r igh t  to  cha l lenge the  

dec is ion  taken by  the  Min is te r  and fu r thermore ,  to  

have the  dec i s ion  rev iewed and  se t  as ide  or  to  

ob ta in  an  order  suspend ing  the  opera t ion  o f  the  

no t ices  o f  remova l .   The removed d i rec to rs…”  

Okay,  tha t  i s  the  sentence,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   And then i f  you look a t  page 135,  

parag raph 3 ,  the  cour t  se ts  as ide  the  dec is ion  to  remove  

the  members  o f  the  board  and in  parag raph 6  orders  the  20 

Min is te r  to  pay the  costs ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  whatever  reasons the  Min i s te r  

fu rn ished to  the  cour t  fo r  the  dec i s ion  to  remove your  

board  were  found  to  be  want ing  by  the  cour t .  
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MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  so ,  Cha i rperson.   So maybe  we w i l l  

s t i l l  ge t  to  know the  rea l  reasons f rom the i r  s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now a f te r  the  –  a f te r  you took the  

dec is ion  to  cour t  bu t  be fo re  the  dec i s ion  o f  the  cour t ,  the 

change and they have already discussed i t ,  where Minister  

Peters was removed as Minister of  Transport  and Mr Joe 

Maswanganyi  was appointed minister.   Is that  correct? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  is so,  Chai rperson.   That . . .  by the way,  I  

should also say that  immediate ly af ter she announced the 10 

removal  of  our board,  she appointed what she cal led an 

inter im board.    

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.   And uh,  of  course,  short ly af ter  that  the 

president  uh,  reshuff led the cabinet  and she was uh,  

replaced by Minister Maswanganyi .    

ADV SONI SC:   Now, what has Minister Maswanganyi ’s uh,  

approach towards the board?  The. . .  uh,  Minister Peters had 

dismissed the board.   You had been reinstated.   What was 

his approach to your reinstatement and your cont inued 20 

existence as a board? 

MR MOLEFE:    Uh,  immediately when Min ister Maswanganyi  

and me was appointed,  I  wrote him a let ter congratulat ing 

him and welcoming him and saying that  uh,  the board would 

uh,  wish that  he. . .  he comes and meet wi th  the board.   Uh,  
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and of  course,  I  a lso advised him that  uh,  the. . .  the court  

had reinstated us.   Um, he. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    In the meant ime,  whi le you are wai t ing for 

the outcome of  the court  appl icat ion,  there was an inter im 

board that  was um, uh,  in operat ion or they wai ted 

because. . .  for the outcome of  the appl icat ion wi thout  put t ing 

in place an inter im board? 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  the inter im board had been put  in p lace.   

Uh. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    But  i t . . .  i t . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  had to go once you . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    I t  had to go . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .whi le. . .  whi le you wai t ing on the case,  

ja.  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  probably had one or two 

meet ings. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .and let  i t  go.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   I  can. . .  d id Mr Maswanganyi  20 

respond posi t ively  to your request  for resignat ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    Mr Maswanganyi  did not  respond posi t ively.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He did not  respond at  al l  or he did 

respond but  . . .  

MR MOLEFE:    He. . .  he did not  respond to my let ter.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Um, and I  th ink I  have got  correspondence 

uh,  in that . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . in that  regard which we.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . I  can avai l  to the court .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Uh,  he showed me af ter that ,  a lso served 

not ice on us.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    A smal l  detai l  and given reasons,  detai led 

reasons why we should be uh. . .  he. . .  he demanded that . . .  he 

gave us seven days.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Uh,  to show cause why we should not  be 

removed . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .as a board for. . .  for fa i lure to perform.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    He has. . .  he has not  even met wi th th is  

board but  he wanted to dismiss i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   The correspondence you are talk ing 

about,  i f  we do not  have i t  here,  i t  wi l l  be important  to have 

i t .  
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MR MOLEFE:    I t . . .  i t . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Between yoursel f  and . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   I  was just  going to that  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is here now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i t  is here?  Oh, okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    [ Indist inct  00:03:39]  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Molefe,  can I  ask you to look at  page 176 10 

which is Annexure PM10 to your aff idavi t?  

MR MOLEFE:    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sorry.   Are we going back to the 

other bundle 3 or are we staying wi th th is one? 

ADV SONI SC:   Oh,  sorry.   We are going to bundle. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.   Uh,  you just  announce i f  done.  so 

that  uh. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .whoever reads the t ranscr ipt  wi l l  

understand. . . [ intervenes]   20 

ADV SONI SC:   And how.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Then now we are deal ing wi th a di fferent  

bundle or exhibi t .   Okay,  what  page?  We are now 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   On page 170,  Chai rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    We are going back to Bundle D which 

is. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Page 25. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Page.. . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   And then Annexure PM10 is page 170.    

CHAIRPERSON:    [No audible reply]   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  page 170.   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   So this is the minis ter ’s let ter to the board in  

which he g ives not ice that  he intends dismissing the board 10 

and asks you to make representat ions why you should not .  

MR MOLEFE:    That  is correct ,  Chai r. . .  Chairperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now, in fact ,  we are just  looking forward.   

The. . .  he did not  go uh,  ahead with his threat  to. . .  to  

terminate the. . .  the board or. . .  or the cleaning of  the board.  

MR MOLEFE:    He did not  go ahead with the t reat  

Chairperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   Just  in br ief  then,  would you 

say. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sorry mister. . . [ intervenes]   20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .Soni .   I  was t ry ing to look for the date 

to see. . .  of  the let ter to see how soon af ter he was 

appointed,  he sent  th is let ter.  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh.  
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MR MOLEFE:    But  I  see no date has provided where he 

signed and I  do not  see any date on page 1 of  the let ter.  

ADV SONI SC:   You are qui te r ight .  [ laugh]    

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

ADV SONI SC:   I  must  have missed. . .  I  d id not  see that .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What is your recol lect ion Mr Molefe as to 

how soon af ter he had appointed,  he sent  the board th is 

let ter uh,  PM10? 

MR MOLEFE:    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Or is  that  something you are not  able to 10 

remember? 

ADV SONI SC:   I f  you look at  paragraph 99 of  your  aff idavi t  

uh,  Mr Molefe at  page 25,  you wi l l  see you give a date there.  

MR MOLEFE:    Page.. .?  

ADV SONI SC:   Page 25 of  your aff idavi t ,  paragraph 99.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  let  me see.  

ADV SONI SC:   No,  your aff idavi t  here uh,  Mr Molefe.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  am looking at  my. . .  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Uh,  page 25.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Page 25,  paragraph 99.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You give. . .  you gave the date of  

5 June 2017.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In paragraph 99 . . . [ intervenes]   
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MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .as a date when Minister Maswanganyi  

asked the board to show court  why i t  should not  be 

dissolved.  

MR MOLEFE:    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So then that . . .  that . . .  that  is r ight  there.   

You conf i rm that  that  is the date? 

MR MOLEFE:    That . . .  that  is correct ,  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   And you then responded through PM10 10 

which appears at . . .  ah,  sorry.   Through PM11 which appears 

at  page 179.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  is correct ,  Chai rperson. 

ADV SONI SC:   And in essence,  again because that  much 

happened as a resul t  of  th is,  you asked for more t ime so that  

you could give a more considered response to h is inv i tat ion? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  is correct ,  Chai rperson. 

ADV SONI SC:   Now, he did not  go ahead with the threat  to  

terminate the chai rman of  the board but  you said he 

achieved the same resul t  through a di fferent  means.   What 20 

do you mean by that? 

MR MOLEFE:    He. . .  we asked for t ime extension and he 

gave us only day because he said [ laughs] . . .  h is in i t ia l  

t imel ine was a year.   The 21s t  uh-uh,  of  June.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  
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MR MOLEFE:    And he said,  “okay,  I  g ive you unt i l  the 22nd”.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Uh-uh,  so the. . .  and I  am saying he is 

achieving the uh,  seeking to achieve the same object ive,  the 

same goal  of  uh,  the previous uh,  minister  through uh,  a  

di fferent  uh,  means.   And. . .  and he. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What did he do? 

MR MOLEFE:    Uh. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He achieved the same resul t  through 

di fferent  means.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What does he do? 

MR MOLEFE:    So. . .  so what he did was. . .  by the way,  I  

should say that ,  when I  wrote to the minister,  I  a lso advised 

him that  there were vacancies on the board.   That  the board 

did not  have a quorum.  And he needed to speedi ly appoint  

uh,  di rectors to those vacancies.  

 Even i f  he was not  to fo l low the tedious process of  

nominat ions,  there were two di rectors who were working for  

government.   One was in his department.   The other one 20 

would have come from the Nat ional  Treasury.  

 A vacancy there arose because that  individual  who 

was a nominee of  Nat ional  Treasury resigned as an 

employee of  Nat ional  Treasury and that  could not  cont inue 

as a representat ive of  Nat ional  Treasury on the board.  
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 So I  was asking him to f i l l  uh,  those posts.   And uh,  

so he did not .   Uh,  he refused to do so.   So achieved the 

dysfunct ional i ty o f  the board by simply not  discharging his  

responsibi l i ty as a minister to appoint  a board so that  the 

board could funct ion properly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So uh. . .  ja.   Were there two vacancies or  

were there more than two vacancies? 

MR MOLEFE:    There. . .  there were four vacancies.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There were four vacancies? 

MR MOLEFE:    Uh,  four.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    But  you know to create a quorum you 

needed two.. .  up two appointments? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  is correct ,  Chai rperson. 

CHAIRPERSON:    And you. . .  you are saying that  those two 

appointments could be somebody of  his department and 

somebody f rom Nat ional  Treasury? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then the board would be able to  

funct ion properly? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  is t rue.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  okay.   And. . .  but  he. . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    He. . .  he does not  do i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He did not  do i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Uh. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Did he respond in any way? 
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MR MOLEFE:    He. . .  he did respond in a very i r rat ional  

manner.   He says,  “no,  i t  takes a long t ime to. . .  to appoint  

di rectors”.   He has got  to fo l low the process of  nominat ion as 

requi red by the law.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m? 

MR MOLEFE:    And then he says,  “wi th regards to these 

nominees of  the department,  even i f  they come from those 

departments,  I  must  st i l l  take them to the cabinet” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m? 

MR MOLEFE:    [ laughs]   For the cabinet  to. . .  to decide.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Now,  the. . .  the cabinet  is unl ike. . .  i t  is to say 

to the Min ister of  Finance. . .  when the Minister of  Finance 

says,  “my nominee . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . ” to that  board is th is person. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . ”whom I  t rust . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . ”works for th is department”.   They would 20 

not  say,  “no,  no. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .no,  we cannot.   We chal lenge you”.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    He,  as a resul t  of  what. . .  what  he is,  he does 
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not . . .  he. . .  he can not i fy the cabinet . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . that  I  have nominated so and so on that  

board and then we have got  th is nominee of  Nat ional  

Treasury.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Not  to say to the cabinet  “decide for me 

whether I  can nominate. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . ”my employee. . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . ”who in terms of  the law,  I  am prepared to  

nominate. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . ”and appoint  as a di rector to that  board”.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    But . . .  but  he was saying that .   So clear ly the 

intent ion was not  bad.  

CHAIRPERSON:    But  of  course uh,  i f  he. . .  I  mean, once the 

board did not  have enough di rectors or members to be 20 

quorate,  that  was an i tem matter on i ts own.  The f i l l ing of  

those posi t ions was urgent  because i t  meant the board could 

not  s i t ,  is i t  not? 

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was an urgent  matter.     

CHAIRPERSON:    And the . . . [ intervenes]   
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MR MOLEFE:    The quest ion is  whether there was the 

intent ion. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So. . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    . . . to have a funct ion ing board.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So. . .  so. . .  so one would have expected 

that  he would have appreciated the urgency and would. . .  and 

would have known that  the cabinet  i tse l f  would regard the 

matter as urgent  i f  he says,  “ the board of  PRASA cannot 

operate because i t  does not  have enough members of  the 

board.   I  need at  least  appointed.   Here is  my nominee.   10 

Here is the nominee of  the Minister of  Finance”.  

 There is no reason why the. . .  the cabinet  performing 

i ts dut ies the way i t  should,  would not  have regarded that  as 

urgent  now.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  is correct ,  Chai rperson. 

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Ms Molefe,  there you make a sl ight ly 

di fferent  point  that  in the second sentence at  paragraph 100,  

you say,   20 

“ I  later found out  that  the di rectors were lobbied to 

res igned f rom their  respect ive posi t ions on the 

board”.    

Who.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sorry,  what page? 
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ADV SONI SC:   Sorry,  Chai rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Page? 

ADV SONI SC:   Page 25.  

CHAIRPERSON:    25.  

ADV SONI SC:   Paragraph a hundred.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Thank you.    

ADV SONI SC:   Are you there Mr Molefe?  

MR MOLEFE:    On what page are we on? 

ADV SONI SC:   Page 25,  paragraph 100,  the second 

sentence.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Oh,  the aff idavi t?  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Okay.   Um.. .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink he should read paragraph 100 in  

i ts ent i re context .  

ADV SONI SC:   So that  i t  is on record.   Okay,  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes.   Read that  paragraph Mr Molefe.  

CHAIRPERSON:    “When everything else fai led,  he 

at tempted to weaken the board by ensuring that  i t  d id not  

have a quorum” 20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And that  is the reference to the Minister 

Maswanganyi  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    And that  is the point  I  made earl ier on.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That . . .  that . . .  the E is reference to 

Minister Maswanganyi? 
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MR MOLEFE:    That  is Minister Maswanganyi .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cont inue.  

MR MOLEFE:    “ I  later found out  that  the di rectors were 

lobbied to resign f rom their  respect ive posi t ions on the 

board.   The intent ion being to isolate me as the chai rman so 

that  I  could not  be effect ive”.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    “Some directors including the representat ive 

of  the Nat ional  Treasury did resign”.   And I  have given the 

ci rcumstances under which that  one resigned.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.   

MR MOLEFE:    “They were not  replaced.   The nominee of  

the Department  of  Transport  stopped at tending board 

meet ings.   These developments lef t  the board ineffect ive as 

i ts quorum could not  be formed”.  

 Now, the. . .  I . . .  I  was advised by some of  my di rectors 

um, that  they were actual ly approached and asked to resign.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Look this side again.  

MR MOLEFE:    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   Look at  me.  [ laughs]  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  I  am learn ing the hard way how 

. . . [ indist inct  00:16:59]  [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  

MR MOLEFE:    Refraining to . . . [ ind ist inct  00:17:02]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  you were advised by some 
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of . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    My. . .  by my di rectors.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    They were lobbied to resign.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That . . .  that  they have been approached 

and asked to resign.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   Uh,  in  fact ,  one of  them told me that  

the act ing director  general . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.   

MR MOLEFE:    . . .promised her that  “ i f  you resign,  we wi l l  10 

appoint  you to another board.   Do not  worry”.   For now, you 

know?   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    He would not . . .  he wi l l  appoint  you again.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Um, of  course uh,  the chair  of  the Audi t  

Commit tee resigned and the chair  of  uh,  the Human Capi tal  

Commit tee uh,  also resigned. 

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Um, so i t  was qui te clear that  that  was a 20 

dr ive to uh,  to make th is board dysfunct ional .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Because of  the big job that  i t  was 

doing. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  
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MR MOLEFE:    . . .which other people cannot . . . [ indist inct 

00:18:04]  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  Uh,  are you able to te l l . . .  g ive us 

the names of  the board members who resigned around that  

t ime? 

MR MOLEFE:    Uh,  i t  was uh,  Zodo Manwazi(?) [00:18:15]  

who was the chair  of  the Audi t  and Risk Commit tee.   Um, 

and Mr Pi tsane,  Bernard Pi tsane.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.   Uh. . .  wel l ,  there. . .  there have been 10 

another di rector,  by the way.   I  should have said this.   Who 

had res igned much earl ier but  i t  had noth ing to do wi th. . .  

wi th th is uh-uh. . .  um, she is an at torney by t rade.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Uh,  Ms Kesho.  Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.   Um, f rom KZN.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    From Kwazulu Natal .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    So uh,  that  was the posi t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So the. . .  were there two who resigned 

roundabout th is t ime when you say i t  looked l ike there was 

an at tempt to render the board dysfunct ional? 

MR MOLEFE:    Correct  so.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    And i t  is two that  you have told me about? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And there was one,  I  th ink one of  them.. .  

d id you say one of  them told you that  expl ic i t ly  that  he had 

been approached or she had been.. . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    She.   She.  

CHAIRPERSON:    She.  

MR MOLEFE:    But  she refused to res ign.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  but  that  one refused to resign? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  one refused to res ign.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.   The other two resigned but  of  course,  

they al l  said,  “no,  we are not  lobbied.   I t  is okay”.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   Um, so um, because . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .part  of  the d i ff icul ty uh,  Chai rperson we 

have. . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    . . . is that  uh,  there are people who are 

experience things but  would not  have the courage to come 

and talk here.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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MR MOLEFE:    That  is the problem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    With that .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i t  is a ser ious problem. 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  i t  is a ser ious problem because a person 

would say,  “ th is col league of  mine resigned and he. . .  he also 

t r ied to persuade me to resign but  I  refused”.   But  i f  I  were to 

say to that  person “come and. . .  the story you told me, go and 

say to the commission”.   Yes,  you see?  Uh, he might ,  of  

course. . .  the Commission has got  the power to 10 

subpoena.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    There is no way we can. . .  we can 

compare.  

MR MOLEFE:    You can do that .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We can compare.   Because i t  is . . .  i t  is  

very important  that  the Commission understands how i t  came 

about that  in certain SOE’s,  for example,  corrupt ion reached 

the kind of  levels that  we have heard about  in the 

Commission.  

MR MOLEFE:    H’m? 20 

CHAIRPERSON:    How did that  happen?  What was the 

method used by those people who sought to uh,  engage in 

corrupt ion?  Is i t  t rue that  the sought to remove people 

who.. .  who wanted to do the r ight  th ings,  who were not  

prepared to do wrong?   
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Is i t  t rue that  they sought to remove them, make i t  

d i ff icul t  for them to do their  jobs so that  they could then 

br ing people who would dance to thei r  tunes?   

I f  that  is t rue,  the Commission needs to hear that  and 

people who have knowledge of  these th ings,  when they do 

not  come forward to te l l  the Commission,  i t . . .  i t  makes i t  

d i ff icul t .    

And i t . . .  what  the Commission is  doing is t ry ing to  

see what caused these problems so that  i t  can look at  

recommendat ions that  i t  can make to say going forward,  10 

what measures should be in place to make sure that  um, the 

count ry is a bet ter  count ry than uh,  a count ry that  is mired in  

corrupt ion and state capture and so on.    

So. . .  so one wishes that  there wi l l  be more people 

who come forward and say:  

“This is what I  know.   This is what happened.  I . . .  I  do 

not . . .  I  know that  certain of  my f r iends would not  l ike 

me to come before the Commission and say th is 

th ing.    

I  know my party would not  l ike me to come and say 20 

this th ing.    

I  know that  my minister  or whoever would not  l ike me 

to. . .  to do this th ing but  I  bel ieve that  I  owe i t  to the 

count ry to come to the Commission because I  love 

my count ry more.    
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I  want  th is country to be made a bet ter country.    

I  do not  want to see i t  mi red in corrupt ion the way the 

present  is mi red in corrupt ion”.  

 So I  just  wish that  there would be more people who 

would do that  because,  at  the end of  the day,  i f  the 

Commission does not  get  to get  a l l  the informat ion and to 

understand how these things happened, i t  cannot come up 

wi th good recommendat ions because i t  has not  been enabled 

to have proper understanding on how these things happened.  

 So that  is why I  cont inue.   I  cont inue to be gratefu l  10 

that  you. . .  you have been able to come here and share wi th  

the Commission al l  the experiences that  you are aware of  

and that  you went through yoursel f  and your  board. . . .  your  

board members.  

 I  hope that  other board members um, uh,  wi l l  be 

cooperat ive wi th the Commission and uh,  share what they 

know.  Thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   What the Chai rperson has said is. . .  goes 

back thousands of  years in  Ancient  Rome when Caesar ’s 

. . . [ indist inct  00:23:54]  is asked why he said,  “because I  20 

love. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease raise your  voice Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh,  sorry.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Your voice goes down and. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Sorry.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   What he says,  “ I  k i l led him because I  love 

Rome more than I  love Caesar”.   And that  is exact ly  the point  

you are making Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is what human nature needs to go beyond.  

But  let  me.. .  Mr Molefe,  when I  check at  another th ing raised 

by the Chairperson.   The Chai rperson pointed out  that  i t  was 

important  for a  board to funct ion because i t  has been such 

an important  job in the R 173 bi l l ion enterpr ise.  10 

 Now, everybody knows that  the term of  the board was 

going to end on the 31s t  of  July.   Where there any at tempts 

made to f i l l  the vacancies that  would ar ise on the 

31s t  of  July? 

MR MOLEFE:    No. . .  no at tempt was made Chairperson to 

prepare for the t ime when the term of  off ice of  the then 

board was coming to an end.   So i t  was going to be deal t  

wi th as i f  i t  is an af ter- thought.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now.. . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    But  uh,  on the resignat ion. . .  I  must  make this  20 

point .   On the. . .  on the res ignat ions of  the di rectors,  I  was 

saddened deeply when the chai rperson of  the Audi t  and Risk 

Commit tee of  the board was one of  those who resigned.  

 And resigning at  a t ime when the board is busy wi th 

the audi t  for that  year,  f inal isat ion.   Who was supposed to go 
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and give an account for how i t  wi l l  be used,  the f inances 

appropriated to by uh,  PRASA.  

 But  that  chair  of  the Audi t  Commit tee goes away and 

that  is a funct ion backed by the chai r  of  the Audi t  

Commit tee.   So. . .  so I . . .  I  th ink i t  is important  that  people 

explain thei r  act ions as wel l .   I t  is a very important  posi t ion 

of  a professional .  

 And. . .  and i t . . .  i t  shows how for  experienced people 

could lead to a col lapse of  a very important  organ of  state 

which served the poor people to please somebody who is 10 

into my off ice elsewhere.   Uh,  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now at . . .  at . . .  why the level  uh,  Mr Molefe.   

The minister,  the previous Minister Dipuo Peters,  dismisses 

the board on the 8 t h of  March.   I t  is qui te clear  that  they do 

not  want the board.   Then the Minister Maswanganyi ,  he 

comes.  He says,  “p lease tel l  me why I  should not  dismiss 

you?”  So i t  is qui te clear that  the powers that  be did not  

want your board.   But . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    Ja,  i t  was clear.  

ADV SONI SC:   . . . they want you to  further a gap.   Wants to 20 

appoint  a  new board.   Have you any idea why they did not  

put  any steps in place,  and as you have pointed out  ear l ier 

f ive and a hal f  years later,  we st i l l  do not  have a permanent 

board? 

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  I  do not  know Chairperson.   But  I . . .  I . . .  
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i t  boggles my mind also.   I  mean,  i f  you take the Minister  

Maswanganyi  of  Transport ,  he wri tes to the board in  June.   I  

th ink i t  was something l ike the 14t h of  June.   He says,  “show 

me cause why I  should not  dismiss you al l?”.   Now he wri tes 

that  let ter. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ear l ier? 

MR MOLEFE:    . . .and he notes that  at  the end of  

July. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.   

MR MOLEFE:    . . . the term of  off ice of  that  board is ending.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  so the point  you are making is,  he st i l l  

wants to dismiss the board at  a t ime when.. .  in  a few weeks’ 

t ime, the term of  the board wi l l  expi re anyway? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Chairperson.   He should have used that  

t ime to ident i fy di rectors he wanted to serve on the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    And run the process.   I t  does not  make sense 

to d ismiss people when they are lef t  wi th a few weeks.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    Even. . .  even Minister Dipuo 20 

Peters. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.   

MR MOLEFE:    . . .d ismiss the di rectors in  

March. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.   
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MR MOLEFE:    . . .when.. .  at  the end of  July.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    The term of  off ice is ending.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    And you have fa i led to discharge your  own 

obl igat ions to what that  board. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.   

MR MOLEFE:    . . .which in terms of  the shareholder  

compact . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.   10 

MR MOLEFE:    . . .you should be discharging because i t  is  

one-way uh,  st reet .   Where. . .  when. . .  when the board had to 

perform, the minister required to g ive the necessary support  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.   

MR MOLEFE:    . . . f rom the department and the execut ive to  

enable the board and management to do their  work.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.  H’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    But  she chooses rather not  to do that .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H’m.   20 

MR MOLEFE:    And focus on remov ing  the  Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    And a l l  o f  these th ings they ga in  momentum 

a f te r  the  meet ing  o f  Ju ly  o f  2015 te l l  us  Mr  Montana you  

go,  and a f te r  the  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident  and Min is te r  
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Je f f  Radebe where  we sa id  in  the  meet ing  tha t  as  fa r  as  we  

are  concerned th is  man ’s  cont rac t ing  is  end ing  he ’s  go t  no  

l i fe t ime employment  w i th  the  company,  the  Board  has go t  

no  in ten t ion  to  re t rea t  on  h is  dec is ion .   We have asked h im 

to  s tay  prev ious ly,  he  to ld  us  he  doesn ’ t  want  to  s tay.   So,  

a l l  o f  these th ings –  and by  the  way I  keep coming  back to  

th is  th ing ,  they come a lso  aga ins t  the  backdrop  o f  the  

Swi fambo mat te r  where  now,  you  know,  we ’ l l  p rove in  the  

Cour t  tha t  there ’s  huge cor rup t ion  here .   We have th is  

l i t i ga t ion ,  the  S iyagena mat te r  and  so  on ,  so  a l l  o f  th is ,  you 10 

can see tha t  there  i s  a  re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  

de termined f igh t  aga ins t  co r rup t ion  by  the  Board  on  one  

s ide  and those tha t  don ’ t  want  tha t  work  to  cont inue and 

we had nobody to  p ro tec t  tha t  Board .   A t  some po in t  I  was 

the  on ly  one dea l ing  w i th  the  issue o f  cor rup t ion ,  a t  one 

po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And th is  was a t  a  t ime when you had 

prev ious l y  to ld  the  top  6  o f  the  Govern ing  par ty,  you had  

to ld  the  respons ib le  Min i s te r  –  Min is te r  respons ib le  fo r  

PRASA what  was go ing  on,  you  were  busy t ry ing  to  ge t  20 

cor rup t ion  –  a l legat ions o f  co r rup t ion  invest iga ted  p roper ly  

and o f  course ,  you had res is ted  the  suggest ion  –  I  don ’ t  

know i f  i t  was a  suggest ion  or  by  –  on  your  ev idence  by  the  

fo rmer  P res ident  to  say,  the  Board  must  take  back Mr  

Montana o r  rev iew i t s  dec i s ion  about  Montana.   So,  a l l  o f  
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these th ings were  happen ing  a f te r  a l l  o f  th is  had  

happened,  i s  tha t  r igh t?    

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  so  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    So  bas ica l l y,  what  peop le  are  say ing  is  tha t  

we ’ re  go ing  to  show them tha t  power  res ides here  no t  w i th  

them.   Someth ing  s im i la r  to  what  we are  exper ienc ing  in  

the  Un i ted  S ta tes  o f  Amer ica  now where  the  Pres ident  o f  

the  count ry  i s  perce i ved to  be  do ing  th ings tha t  a re  f lou t ing  

the  const i tu t ion  and doesn ’ t  respect  the  ru le  o f  law but  10 

because he ’s  a  power fu l  man w i th  b ig  mon ies ,  peop le  jus t  

suppor t  what  he  is  do ing  and  then they a l lowed the  

impeachment  p rocess aga in ,  h is  co l leagues,  even  when  

they know tha t  they are  wrong,  they s tood beh ind  i t .   Then 

the  next  th ing ,  what  does he do,  he  goes and remove a l l  

the  good –  the  best  p rosecutors  ou t ,  he  once prom ised he 

goes to  the  Cour t  he  wants  the  Judges to  be  –  those who 

wou ld  ignore  the  bas ic  tenets  o f  the  law and the  

const i tu t ion  and defend h im as a  person and we have seen 

i t  here .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MOLEFE:    We have seen i t  w i th  ou r  own Pres ident  and 

a l l  o f  those peop le  represent ing  the  Govern ing  par t y  in  

Par l iament .   We’ re  behav ing  as  i f  we d idn ’ t  see anyth ing  

wrong w i th  how pub l ic  funds  were  appropr ia ted  fo r  
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persona l  benef i t s .   They defended tha t  pos i t ion  un t i l  the 

Cour ts  dec ided –  okay because we are  fa i l ing  to  do  what  

you ’ re  supposed to  do ,  we as  a  Cour t  w i l l  te l l  you  what  the  

r igh t  th ing  is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H ’m.   

MR MOLEFE:    So ,  there  is  a  danger  in  a l low ing th is  k ind  

o f  abuse o f  power,  abuse o f  o f f i ce  by  anybody,  because i t  

can lead to  losses o f  l i ves ,  i t  can  dest roy  the  economy and 

l i ve l ihoods o f  o rd inary  c i t i zens and i t  i s  impor tan t ,  

there fo re ,  tha t  there  must  be  peop le  tha t  s tand up  aga ins t  10 

th is  and by  the  way,  and I  sa id  so  be fore ,  the  fundamenta l  

i ssue tha t  d r ives  us  to  be  our  va lues and pr inc ip les ,  ra ther  

than to  say,  I  have a  membersh ip  card ,  th is  pa r ty,  I  love  

these co lours  o f  th is  par ty,  i t ’s  no t  about  the  par ty,  i t ’s  

about  the  l iber t ies ,  the  r igh t s  and f reedoms o f  o rd inary  

South  A f r i cans because even when peop le  engaged in  

cha l leng ing  the  o ld  sys tem i t  was  not  so  tha t  a  par t i cu la r  

par t y  must  be  the  one tha t  must  be  one tha t  i s  in  power  i t  

was so  tha t  Sou th  A f r i cans must  be  ab le  to  choose who 

must  govern .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m yes,  no  thank you Mr  Mole fe .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Mole fe  on  a  number  o f  occas ions 

you ’ve  re fer red  to  the  Swi fambo mat te r,  you remember?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes s i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Now I  jus t  want  to  po in t  ou t ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  
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I  don ’ t  need to  take  e i the r  the  w i tness or  you there ,  tha t  in  

fac t ,  the  judgement  in  the  H igh  Cour t  in  the  Swi fambo 

mat te r  was handed down on the  3 r d  o f  Ju ly  

2017…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Dur ing  the  –  2017,  tha t  wou ld  be  the i r  

las t  month ,  the  las t  month  o f  the  Board .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I t ’s  about  the  t ime tha t  a l l  o f  these th ings 

were  coming out  and the  s ign i f i cance o f  tha t  w i l l  come out  

in  la te r  ev idence as  Mole fe  i s  go ing  to  tes t i f y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay tha t ’s  f ine .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  tha t  da te  i s  impor tan t  Cha i rpe rson 

because you wou ld  th ink  tha t  where  a  Board  has saved the  

count ry  R3.5b i l l i on  there  wou ld  be  a  reward  in  te rms  o f ,  do 

fu r ther  serv ice  fo r  the  count ry  bu t  they are  snuf fed  ou t  as  

Mr  Mole fe  says by  ge t t ing  peop le  no t  cont inue serv ing  on  

the  Board ,  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  we l l  one keeps on look ing  fo r  

pa t te rns  because  there  was ev idence in  re la t ion  to  Dene l  

tha t  the  Board  tha t  was there  be fore  2015 o r  tha t  le f t  in  

2015,  i f  I ’m not  m is taken,  I  don ’ t  know whether  the  20 

Cha i rperson was  Ms van Rensburg  or  Pro fessor  van 

Rensburg  had done a  very  good job ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  the  

Min is te r  o f  Pub l i c  Enterpr i ses  had a lso  commended them 

for  the i r  good work  and sa id  tha t  they are  –  they shou ld  

cont inue,  they were  go ing  to  have the i r  te rm extended but  
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acco rd ing  to  Ms  van Rensburg  tha t  changed inexp l i cab ly  

and they were  a l l  e i ther  d ismissed or  a l lowed to  go  when  

the i r  te rm exp i red  and –  except  fo r  two Board  members ,  ja  

okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  tha t  i s  –  seems to  be  the  pa t te rn .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now,  your  Board ’s  te rm o f  o f f i ce  ended 

then in  Ju ly.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And –  because you were  no t  re -appo in ted  10 

and were  any o f  the  o ther  –  we l l  were  any o f  the  o ther  

Board  members  appo in ted  to  any o f  the  in te rn  Boards?  

MR MOLEFE:    There  is  the  –  t he  law requ i res  tha t  the 

Board  shou ld  have a  representa t i ve  o f  the  South  A f r i can  

Loca l  Government  SALGA so tha t  was the  on ly  pe rson re-

appo in ted ,  Mr  Xo l i le  George.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He was coming f rom…[ in tervenes ] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Am I  say ing  re-appo in ted  to?  

ADV SONI  SC:    To  the  in te rn  Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry  he  was coming f rom your  20 

Board .  

MR MOLEFE:    He was coming f rom my Board ,  he  had a lso  

been in  the  prev ious…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  he  cont inued?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    He knows PRASA more  than anyone.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  was he the  on ly  member  o f  you r  

Board  tha t  cont inued beyond the  t ime o f  your  Board? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  so  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now,  Mr  Mole fe  can we go on –  we ’ve  now 

dea l t  w i th  the  Min is te r  o r  f i rs t l y  we dea l t  w i th  the  P res ident  

then the  Min i s te r.  On a  number  o f  occas ions,  you ’ve  

ment ioned Par l iament  and the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  what  10 

s teps d id  you make to  secure  pro tec t ion  fo r  your  Board  

f rom Par l iament  and/or  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .  

MR MOLEFE:    Maybe before  we dea l  w i th  tha t ,  

Cha i rperson,  we  shou ld  a lso ,  maybe counse l  knows 

whethe r  he  wants  to  b r ing  i t ,  th is  Min is te r,  Maswangany i  

sent  two bus iness men to  my house,  bo th  o f  whom came 

f rom h is  p rov ince ,  L impopo…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry  jus t  ra ise  your  vo i ce  a  b i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bo th  o f  whom came f rom the  p rov ince,  

L impopo.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    George Sebu le la  and So lo  Rasta  to  come 

and say to  me,  l ook  man –  i n  fac t  they were  the  ones who 

got  to  know,  even before  me,  tha t  some o f  my D i rec tors  

had res igned –  some o f  the  D i rec tors  had res igned  and so  
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they  come,  they say,  your  D i rec tors  have 

res igned…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  be fo re  you knew.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MR MOLEFE:    And you know,  the  Min is te r  says we  shou ld  

come and ta lk  to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We shou ld  come and?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ta lk  to  you,  ask  you,  to  agree to  an  

amicab le  separa t ion ,  tha t  he  is  w i l l i ng  to  o rgan ise  a  med ia  10 

br ie f ing  press  conference where  he  w i l l  announce tha t  you  

and h im have ag reed to  par t  ways,  tha t  you have ag reed to 

–  you have dec ided to  res ign .   I  sa id  to  the  Min is te r  –  to  

these gent lemen go and te l l  the  Min is te r  tha t  i f  tha t  i s  what  

he  wants  to  communica te  to  me,  he  shou ld  ra ther  come and  

do i t  h imse l f ,  le t  i t  no t  be  you.  I  thought  tha t  was an  

impor tan t  po in t  tha t  needs to  be  made because i t  

emphas ises the  ex ten t  to  wh ich  –  and the  lengths  to  wh ich  

they were  prepared to  go ,  to  ge t  th is  Board  ou t  o r  

espec ia l l y  the  Cha i rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  d id  they share  w i th  you any  

reasons why he  was say ing  th i s ,  why the  Min i s te r  had  

asked them to  say th is  to  you or  was i t  s imp ly  tha t  he  was  

say ing ,  the  two o f  you were  no t  see ing  eye to  eye  and I ’m 

say ing  tha t ,  knowing tha t  you sa id  you had hard l y  worked  
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w i th  h im here  and then he sent  you a  le t te r  to  show cause 

why you shou ld  –  the  Board  shou ld  no t  be  d ismissed? 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  they d idn ’ t  say  tha t  Cha i rpe rson,  the 

on ly  reason they were  la tch ing  on  was tha t ,  look ,  you now 

do not  have a  comple te  Board  you don ’ t  have a  quorum.   

Which  is  what  you w i l l  see  la te r,  when I  have a  meet ing  

w i th  the  Min is te r  wh ich  wou ld  have  happened before  these  

guys came because I  ins is ted  on  meet ing  w i th  h im to  say,  

look  I  need to  ta lk  to  you about  PRASA and you need to  

come and meet  w i th  the  Board .   He was not  in te res ted  in  10 

any o the r  th ing  I  wanted to  say to  h im,  h is  f i rs t  p r ize  was  

to  d r ive  home the  fac t  tha t  there  is  no  quorum so we don ’ t  

have a  Board  and he is  no t  go ing  to  appo in t  a  Board ,  so  

he ’s  bas i ca l l y  say ing ,  why don ’ t  you go.   So,  these guys 

come now to  con t inue what  he  was te l l ing  me when I  met  

h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  cou ld  i t  mean tha t  he  was re luc tan t  

to  take  any ac t ion  tha t  you cou ld  cha l lenge in  Cour t  and 

wanted you to  agree to  res ign ,  fa i l ing  wh ich  then ,  you ’d  

jus t  have to  be  there  bu t  no t  be  ab le  to  do  anyth ing  20 

because the  Board  d id  no t  have a  quorum? 

MR MOLEFE:    I  th ink  ear l ie r  on ,  he  wanted to  f ind  an  easy  

way o f  …[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Get t ing  r id  o f  you.  

MR MOLEFE:    D isso l v ing  the  Board  because as  we can 
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see ,  by  June he  had mustered enough courage now,  to  

want  to  take  us  to  Cour t  on  wh ich  he  a t tempt  he  re t rea ted  

as  soon as  we wro te  to  h im and to ld  h im tha t ,  you ’ re  

ac tua l l y  t ry ing  to  ach ieve the  same th ings tha t  your  

p redecessor  t r ied  to  ach ieve but  you ’ re  t ry ing  to  do  i t  by  

d i f fe ren t  means.   So,  I  th ink  he  wanted to  do  i t  qu ie t l y,  I  

th ink  he  d idn ’ t  want  damage,  maybe pub l i c i t y  o r  someth ing  

because when you do i t  tha t  way,  you are  the  on ly  one who  

ta lks  and say,  no  the  Cha i rman came,  he  sa id  to  me he ’s  

res ign ing ,  I ’ ve  accepted h is  res ignat ion ,  i t  was a  c l in ica l  10 

way o f  do ing  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And about  when was tha t  meet ing ,  d id  

those two gent lemen come to  you? 

MR MOLEFE:    I  have to  check bu t  I  th ink  around Apr i l  o r  

so ,  maybe somewhere  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That ’s  Apr i l  2017?  

MR MOLEFE:    2017,  Apr i l /May 2017.  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  jus t  more  or  less  about  the  t ime he  

came because he  was appo in ted  the  end o f  March?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And he had not  even met  you  or  the 

Board  in  your  capac i ty  as  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  Board  and the  

Board?  

MR MOLEFE:    He had never  met  the  Board ,  bu t  I  had  
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asked to  see h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    To  persuade h im ,  f i rs t l y,  tha t  he  has to  

make sure  tha t  h is  nominee a t tends meet ings,  tha t  Nat iona l  

Treasury  sends i t s  representa t i ves  and beg in  the  process  

o f  f i l l i ng  the  vacant  post  bu t  we were  no t  ab le  to  d iscuss 

much when I  met  h im,  he  was not  in te res ted  in  the  a f fa i rs  

o f  PRASA.   H is  main  bus iness was to  see how soon th i s  

Board  cou ld  go .  

CHAIRPERSON:  D id  you,  by  any chance know each o ther  10 

be fore  he  became Min is te r,  the  two o f  you,  I ’m  jus t  

wonder ing  why somebody who has jus t  been appo in ted  as  

Min is te r  o f  Transpor t  who i s  asked by  the  Cha i rman o f  the  

Board  o f  PRASA for  a  meet ing  and to  be  i n t roduced to  the  

Board  won ’ t  seem to  be  keen on tha t  bu t  the  next  th ing  he  

wants  the  Board  to  show cause why they shou ld  no t  be  

d ismissed?   

MR MOLEFE:    I  go t  to  know h im when he was a  member  o f  

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  t ranspor t  bu t  he  had  been a  

young member  o f  the  govern ing  par ty,  a  member  o f  the  20 

youth  league and I  th ink ,  la te r  on  he  worked  fo r  the 

government  o f  L impopo but  I  d idn ’ t  know h im tha t  we l l .   I  

go t  to  rea l l y  see h im a t  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  meet ings,  

so  we don ’ t  rea l l y  have any h is to ry  o r  re la t ionsh ip .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Now,  Mr  Mole fe ,  jus t  be fore  we f in ish  w i th  

the  need fo r  a  Board  are  you aware  tha t  in  te rms  o f  the 

PFMA,  every  pub l i c  en t i t y  must  have a  Board  o f  cont ro l  

because tha t  i s  the  Account ing  Author i t y  fo r  tha t  pub l i c  

en t i t y?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And was th i s  ever  d iscussed a t  any  t ime in  

your  meet ings w i th  e i ther  o f  the  Min is te rs ,  Min is te r  D ipuo 

Peters  or  Min is te r  Maswangany i?  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l  Cha i rperson  w i th  regard  to  Min is te r  10 

D ipuo Pete rs  i t  was not  necessary  to  d iscuss i t  because 

the  Board  was there ,  the  on ly  t ime when the re  were  

prob lems wi th  the  Board  was  when she dec ided,  

un i la te ra l l y  and w i thout  any due process o r  no t i f ica t ion  to  

the  D i rec tors  tha t  she was d isso l v ing  the  Board ,  so  –  and 

once she had done so ,  I  mean,  the  ba t t le  l ines  were  drawn 

there  was no t ime to  negot ia te ,  sa fe  now in  Cour t  now to  

say what  counse l  i s  say ing  now in  the  Cour t  papers  wh ich  

is  what  we d id .   The o ther  Min i s te r,  knows ve ry  we l l  as  a  

fo rmer  member  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  and a lso  hav ing  20 

worked in  government ,  knew tha t  the  Board  needed to  be  

there  fo r  S ta te  owned ent i t ies  and in  fac t ,  when you read  

h is  long le t te r  to  me,  to  the  Board ,  addressed to  me,  he 

does say tha t  the  Board  is  the  Account ing  Author i t y,  so  he  

knows ve ry  we l l .   So  we –  Cha i rpe rson,  I  say,  th is  Min is te r  
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the  las t  one,  Maswangany i ,  never  made t ime to meet  w i th  

the  Board  except  when I  met  h im a lone and in  tha t  ins tance  

I  ra ised the  fac t  tha t  the  Board  has to  go  and account  in  

Par l iament ,  the  f inanc ia l  yea r  i s  and has jus t  ended and  

we ’ re  f ina l i s ing  the  aud i t  we ’ve  go t  to  go  to  the  Board ,  

we ’ve  go t  to  go  and repor t  the  annua l  repor t s  to  the  Board .   

So tha t  i s  a l l  I  cou ld  say and,  no t  in te res ted  in  tha t ,  he 

s imp ly  says,  ja  bu t  your  rea l  Board  does not  have a  

quorum.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And he shou ld  be  p lay ing  a  c r i t i ca l  ro le  10 

to  make sure  tha t  the  Board  has a  quorum because  one o f  

the  nominees –  one o f  the  peop le  who must  be  Board  

members  i s  f rom h is  depar tment  and anothe r  one  shou ld  

come f rom the  depar tment  o f  h is  co l league in  Treasury?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  he  knew Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SONI  SC:    S i r  I  don ’ t  want  to  f log  the  po in t  bu t  th is  i s  

what  concerns me,  you ear l ie r  sa id  tha t  the  PRASA Act  

doesn ’ t  make prov is ion  fo r  an  in te r im Board .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    So ,  they must  have known tha t  what  they  

are  do ing  is  no t  in  compl iance w i th  the  law but  they ’ve  

done so  fo r  f i ve  and a  ha l f  years .   I ’m  jus t  emphas is ing  the  

po in t  tha t ,  tha t ’s  the  ex ten t  to  wh ich  your  Board  appears  to  

have i r r i ta ted  them a t  the  very  least .  
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes Cha i rpe rson,  the  –  ja  I  don ’ t  know 

because,  how they w i l l  jus t i f y  tha t  and I  don ’ t  know how 

the  Cab ine t  a l lows tha t  to  happen,  I  don ’ t  know how the  

Pres ident  o f  the  count ry  and Deputy  Pres ident  o f  the  

count ry  wou ld  a l low fo r  th is  th ing  to  cont inue,  I  don ’ t  know 

how the  Min is te r  o f  F inance,  who runs Treasury,  wou ld  

a l low th i s  to  go  on  because even  i f  the  Cour t  m ight  have 

wanted to  fo rg i ve  you,  they m igh t  have sa id ,  maybe we l l  

you know,  government  cannot  a l l ow fo r  a  vacuum to  ex i s t  

they needed to  f ind  someth ing  to  run  bu t  the  fac t  tha t  when  10 

they have the  t ime they are  no t  even beg inn ing  the  process 

o f  ensur ing  tha t  a  substant ive  Board  has been appo in ted .   

I t ’s  someth ing  tha t  i s  inexp l i cab le ,  o f  cou rse  I  must  say  

tha t  Min is te r  Mba lu la  has recent ly  come in  and I  saw tha t  

he  has adver t i sed,  maybe PRASA wi l l  now have a  Board  

a f te r  spend ing  f i ve  years  w i thout  a  Board  o f  cont ro l .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Mole fe ,  can we then go on to  the  issue 

I  ra ised w i th  you about  you r  approach to  Par l iament .   Now,  

we know you approached the  Speaker  o f  Par l iament  and  

you d id  so  in  wr i t ing ,  i s  tha t  cor rect?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  so  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And the  le t te r  tha t  you wro te  to  her  i s  

Annexure  PM12 to  your  a f f idav i t ,  i t  appears  a t  Bund le  D,  

page 183,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  so  Cha i rpe rson.  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Now,  in  essence ,  what  d id  you want  Ms 

Mbete  to  do  in  her  capac i ty  as  Cha i rperson o f  –  I  mean as  

Speaker  o f  Par l iament?  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson we had t r ied  every th ing  in  the  

book.   We had d i scussed w i th  Min is te rs ,  we had a t tempted 

to  repor t  in  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees,  we had been to  Cour ts ,  

we had t r ied  the  Law Enforcement  Agenc ies  to  ass is t ,  we  

were  no t  ge t t ing  the  he lp  we needed.  I  thought  Par l i ament ,  

as  the  Nat iona l  Body tha t  represents  the  who le  count ry  

m ight  be  w i l l i ng  to  know what  i s  happen ing  in  PRASA 10 

because Par l iament  i s  the  one,  by  the  way,  tha t  approves 

appropr ia t ion .   When the  Min i s te r  o f  F inance comes and  

presents  the  budget  var ious depar tment ,  hav ing  been  

a l loca ted  ce r ta in  amounts  o f  money must  s t i l l  have tha t  

approved by  Par l iament .   So i t  was impor tan t  tha t  the  

Speaker  o f  Par l iament  takes in te res t  in  PRASA and what  

was I  ask ing  fo r,  I  was ask ing  fo r  a  pub l i c  inqu i ry  because  

you had th is  many s tor ies  tha t  a re  be ing  to ld  in  the  

newspapers  and  what  the  Cha i rperson w i l l  read  in  th is  

repor t  tha t  was wr i t ten  by  Mr  Montana fo r  Mr  Radebe,  a l l  20 

k inds o f  l ies .   Now I  needed to  have Par l iament  conduct  a  

robust  pub l i c  inqu i ry  and then I  was prepared to  sub jec t  

myse l f  to  tha t .   That  le t te r  went  w i thout  acknowledgment ,  

up  to  now.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now,  I  see tha t  le t te r,  i f  you  look a t  page  
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183,  tha t  le t te r  was cop ied  to  the  Cha i rperson o f  SCOPA,  

the  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Transpor t ,  

the  Ch ie f  Whips  o f  SCOPA and  the  Ch ie f  Whips  o f  the 

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .  

MR MOLEFE:    That ’s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now,  in  suppor t  o f  your  request  fo r  a  

pub l i c  inqu i ry  o r  Par l iamentary  inqu i ry  you ra ise  a  number  

o f  po in t s  in  parag raph 5 ,  in  essence,  what  were  you  say ing  

to  Ms Mbete?  

MR MOLEFE:    Shou ld  I  read the  paragraph? 10 

ADV SONI  SC:    In  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  no t  much came out  

bu t  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  ind ica te  because we jus t  want  to  know 

what  i s  i t  tha t  was brought  to  her  a t ten t ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l  I  was br ing ing  to  her  a t ten t ion ,  the  

fac t  tha t  PRASA does not  have a  group CEO and tha t  i t  i s  

impor tan t  fo r  PRASA to  have the  group CEO and there fore  

to  invest igate,  they shou ld  ge t  the  m inutes  tha t  wou ld  

account  fo r  tha t  in  a  sense.  

 And the  second one was to  dea l  w i th  a  number  o f  

cont rac ts ,  in fo rmed them about  c i v i l  p roceed ings tha t  were  20 

under  way to  the  tune o f  R7 b i l l i on  and the  fac t  tha t  we a re  

bas ica l l y  seek ing  to  have them set  as ide  and then,  o f  

course ,  the  s teps tha t  were  be ing  taken by  way o f  

d isc ip l in ing  employees who were  found to  have conducted  

themse lves in  a  manner  unbecoming.    
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Then,  o f  course ,  I  dea l t  a lso  w i th  my engagement  o r  

PRASA’s  engagement  w i th  the  D i rec tora te  fo r  P r io r i t y  

Cr ime Invest iga t ions,  the  Hawks,  and the  NPA and the  

repor ts  tha t  were  g iven them in  te rms o f  the  requ i rement  o f  

the  Prevent ion  and Combat ing  o f  Cor rup t  Act iv i t ies  Act .    

 So  rea l l y  to  g ive  a  s ta tus  repor t  and to  say these  

are  cha l lenges,  they requ i re  a  deeper  inqu i ry  by  par l iament  

and i t  shou ld  be  a  pub l i c  one.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And then you make ment ion  in  paragraph 

6  about  comments  made by  members  o f  the  Por t fo l io  10 

Commi t tee  on  the  7  and 8  March tha t  yea r.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson ,  i t  i s  the  meet ing  tha t  I  

cou ld  no t  a t tend  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Transpor t  

and tha t  meet ing  was happen ing  over  two days.   The repor t  

I  go t  f rom the  d i rec tors  was  tha t  they were  s imp ly  

sub jec ted  to  abuse,  insu l ts .   The  agenda tha t  they were  

g iven on wh ich  the  d iscuss ion  was supposed  to  be 

conducted was jus t  ignored,  every th ing  was jus t  a t tacked,  

a t tacked about  Swi fambo,  why are  you go ing  to  cour t  w i th  

these peop le ,  why are  you appo in t ing  pr i va te  invest iga tors  20 

when you shou ld  be  us ing  the  South  A f r i can  Po l ice  

Serv i ces?  But  we know South  A f r i can Po l ice  Serv i ces  was  

cr ipp led  by  tha t  t ime,  you were  no t  go ing  to  ge t  anyth ing  

ou t  o f  them a t  the  t ime because sys tems were  b roken.    

 So bas i ca l l y,  tha t  i s  what  we were  say ing  and I  was  
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ind ica t ing  tha t ,  o f  course ,  our  te rm  o f  o ff i ce  i s  a lso  end ing  

soon and tha t  i t  was impor tan t  tha t  fo r  those mat te rs  be  

dea l t  w i th  and wou ld  l i ke  to  accoun t  on  those mat te rs .    

ADV SONI  SC:    So  based on tha t  you fo rmal ly  asked fo r  a  

par l iamentary  inqu i ry  in to  the  a f fa i rs  o f  PRASA? 

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    What  was the  react ion  to  th is  le t te r?  

MR MOLEFE:    No response,  no  acknowledgement ,  up  to  

today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  f rom the  Speaker,  what  about  the  10 

o ther  peop le  tha t  you cop ied?  

MR MOLEFE:    None o f  them.   I  th ink  SCOPA.   SCOPA was 

in  the  process o f  a r rang ing  fo r  us  to  meet  and not  an  

inqu i ry  per  se  but  we d id  go  to  SCOPA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    To  repor t  on  some o f  these mat te rs  and 

they a l so  came to  v is i t  PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  save fo r  tha t  there  was no response  

and noth ing  ac t ive  was done to   -  f rom par l iament ’s  s ide  to  20 

probe PRASA.  

MR MOLEFE:    There  was noth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you a t  any s tage get  to  know 

whethe r  par t i cu la r ly  the  Speaker  d id  rece ive  your  le t te r?  

D id  you get  to  know whether  fo rma l ly  o r  in fo rmal l y?  
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MR MOLEFE:    I  asked the  company secre ta ry  i f  the  le t te r  

wou ld  have been sent  by  emai l  bu t  i t  wou ld  a lso  have been  

hand de l i vered.   I  d id ,  I  d id  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  was assured by  the  company secre tary  

tha t  i t  was de l i ve red.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  had been sent .  

MR MOLEFE:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV SONI  SC:    Then you a l so  on  the  same day,  th is  i s  the  10 

8  March,  you wro te  to  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  on  Transpor t  and tha t  le t te r  i s  a t  page 187 and 

i t  i s  marked annexure  PM13,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now in  th i s  le t te r  you ment ion  a  number  o f  

po in ts  wh ich  are  s im i la r  to  the  po in ts  tha t  you make to  the  

Speaker.   I f  I  cou ld  jus t  s ta r t  o f f  a t  paragraph 5 .   You say:  

“The above invest iga t ions have  revea led  more  

i r regu lar i t ies  and  cor rup t ion  and ob l iged the  board  

to  take  the  fo l low ing s teps. ”  20 

And you ind i ca te  tha t  those s teps …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    I s  tha t  parag raph 5? 

ADV SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  pa ragraph 5  on  page 188,  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Can you ind i ca te  what  you sa id  to  the 
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Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  as  to  the  s teps the  board  had  taken?  

I f  you  cou ld  jus t  summar ise  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  the  –  rea l l y,  the  contents  o f  th is  le t te r  

a re  more  o r  less  s im i la r  to  what  –  tha t  o f  the  Speaker  o f  

Par l iament .   We were  aga in  ind ica t ing  tha t  the  Aud i to r -

Genera l ’s  repor t  o f  2014/2015  f inanc ia l  yea r,  wh ich  

ident i f ied  i r regu lar  expend i tu re  to  the  tune o f  550  mi l l ion 

was –  shou ld  I  no t  jus t  ra ther  read because,  you know,  to  

ta lk ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  d i f f i cu l t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  i f  you  can ident i f y  impor tan t  10 

fea tures  tha t  you  can read,  you can read.   I  th ink  Mr  Son i  

i s  t ry ing  to  avo id  tha t  …[ in te rvenes ]  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  i t  i s  bas i ca l l y  t o  say what  we have been 

do ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    There  has been the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  

repor t ,  Aud i to r -Genera l ’s  repor t ,  there  have  been  

invest iga t ions tha t  we have conduc ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    And the re  a re  cer ta in  s teps tha t  we had 20 

taken.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    To  respond to  a l l  o f  those th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    And we ind i ca ted  tha t  a l though,  fo r  
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example ,  in  2014/2015 i r regu lar i t ies  amounted to  550.   

I r regu lar i t ies  fo r  2015/2016 were  now go ing  to  over  R14 

b i l l i on  and we w i l l  show what  –  tha t  a l l  o f  these were  

uncovered by  the  invest iga t ions tha t  we had conduc ted.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Mole fe ,  I  suppose what  I  am t ry ing  to  

do  and  can I  jus t  make my po in t .   On tha t  same day you  

wro te  to  the  Speaker  and you wro te  to  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .    

To  the  Speaker  you say ho ld  an  inqu i ry  in to  PRASA 

but  to  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  i t  10 

appears  tha t  the  purpose o f  your  repor t  i s  to  say g i ven a l l  

tha t  I  have ind ica ted  to  you tha t  we have done,  you ought  

to  t rea t  us  w i th  more  respect  and you say tha t  a t  paragraph 

9 .    

Would  tha t  –  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  d raw a  d is t inc t ion  

be tween the  two  le t te rs  where  the  purpose o f  –  o r  the  

d i f fe rences between the  purposes o f  the  two le t te rs .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  the  essence o f  my le t te r  

was tha t  we are  do ing  our  job ,  we a re  respond ing  to  a l l  

these i r regu la r i t ies  tha t  have happened and the  resu l ts  20 

show what  e f fo r t  we a re  mak ing  to  ach ieve r  good 

governance but  your  commi t tee  has so  fa r  no t  been 

in te res ted  in  the  exerc is ing  o f  i ts  overs igh t  to  focus on  

th ings wh ich  a re  germane to  good governance.   

 On the  cont rary,  you a l low the  meet ings o f  the  
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commi t tee  to  be  chaot ic ,  you  a l low members  o f  the  

commi t tee  to  a t tach  management  and d i rec tors  and a t tack  

the i r  persons and  tha t  rea l l y,  look ing  a t  what  we are  do ing  

to  f i x  th is  o rgan isa t ion ,  you shou ld  be  showing a  mod icum 

o f  respect  to  the  board  o f  d i rec to rs  o f  PRASA and  I  sa id 

p lease,  manage your  meet ings proper l y  now.   

 You do not  send  peop le  an  agenda tha t  says we  

requ i re  you to  come and repor t  o r  account  on  the  fo l low ing 

issues.   They get  there ,  you have fo rgo t ten  about  tha t  

agenda,  peop le  are  a l l  over  the  p lace,  they are  ta lk ing  10 

about  pe rsona l  th ings,  there  i s  no th ing  about  the  count ry,  

about  the  company.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Son i ,  Mr  Mole fe  ear l ie r  on  

asked whethe r  he  cou ld  jus t  read th is  le t te r.   I t  i s  no t  a  

shor t  le t te r  bu t  I  th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  le t  us  ask  h im to  read  i t .   Mr 

Mole fe ,  p lease jus t  read tha t  le t te r  in  fu l l ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  very  

impor tan t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .   Le t  me t ry.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  i s  the  le t te r  addressed by  Mr  

Mole fe  to  Ms D ike led i  Magadz i  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  

Transpor t .   I  th ink  she was the  Cha i r  and i t  appears  as  

annexure  PM13 a t  page 187.   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    The sub jec t  o f  the  le t te r,  Cha i rperson,  i s :  
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“B r ie f ing(?)  12.46  by  Passenger  Ra i l  Agency o f  

South  A f r i ca  on  serv i ce  de l i very  a t  Met rora i l . ”  

1 .  As you are  aware ,  I  send my apo logy to  the  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Transpor t ,  PCOT,  

ind ica t ing  tha t  I  was not  in  a  pos i t ion  to  t rave l  to  

Cape Town.   I ,  however,  fo l lowed the  proceed ings  

o f  the  PCOT.   I  was shocked to  learn  tha t  the  

en t i re  f i rs t  day  o f  the  PCOT proceed ing  was 

about  a  mat te r  tha t  the  Board  o f  Cont ro l ,  the  

BOC of  PRASA,  was not  asked to  b r ing  to  the  10 

a t ten t ion  o f  the  PCOT.   We were  inv i ted  to  

appear  be fore  the  PCOT under  the  gu ise  tha t  we  

were  go ing  to  d iscuss Met ro ra i l  opera t ions.   We 

prepared a  presenta t ion  fo r  the  POCT on th i s  

bas is  and spent  money in  ensur ing  the  p resence  

o f  PRASA’s  o f f ic ia ls  c r i t i ca l  to  opera t ions to  

appear  be fo re  the  POCT.   

2 .  The leadersh ip  o f  PRASA is  aggr ieved tha t  the  

BOC and key o f f i c ia ls  o f  PRASA were  brought  

in to  the  [ indist inct]  14.18  Chambers  o f  Par l iament  20 

to  d iscuss a  mat te r  tha t  shou ld  no t  occupy the  

t ime and a t ten t ion  o f  the  PCOT and were  

sub jec ted  to  a  bar rage o f  fa lse  accusat ions,  

g ross ly  [ indist inct ]  14.33  members  and  

assass ina t ions o f  character  under  your  watch .   I  
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request  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  PCOT to  urge  

members  to  des is t  f rom abus ing  the  

par l iamentary  pr iv i leges and  immuni ty  by  

assa i l ing  the  characters  o f  leadersh ip  o f  PRASA 

by un founded and spur ious accusat ions w i thout  

p roduc ing  any ev idence.  

3 .  As the  account ing  au thor i t y  o f  PRASA the  board  

apprec ia tes  tha t  par l iament  in  genera l  and your  

commi t tee  in  par t i cu la r  i s  one  o f  the  most  

impor tan t  s takeho lders  tha t  PRASA has to  10 

account  to .   However,  in  the  in te res t  o f  p roper  

account ing  and mutua l  respect  the  board  cannot  

be  ambushed w i th  a  top ic  tha t  does not  add va lue  

to  the  work  o f  PRASA and be sub jec ted  to  a  

s i tua t ion  where  tha t  top ic  i s  t rea ted  in  a  way tha t  

i s  g ross l y  un fa i r  and is  a  d is t rac t ion  f rom the  

work  o f  the  commi t tee .  

The le t te r  o f  Mr  Le tsoa lo  i s  a  very  s imp le  one and  

has been dea l t  w i th  and fo rmal ised by  the  board  

and the  m in i s te r.   In  accordance w i th  good 20 

governance the  Min is te r  has rece ived a  

comprehens ive  repor t  on  3  March 2017.   On 1  

March 2017 the  m in is te r  te rm inated the  secondment  

o f  Le tsoa lo .   Now before  you and your  commi t tee  

accuse the  board  o f  be ing  i nvo lved in  d ispute  a f te r  
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d ispute ,  the  board  has been engaged in  a  d i f f i cu l t  

p rocess o f  res tor ing  orde r,  good corpora te  

governance and enforc ing  cont ro l s  in  an  ins t i tu t ion  

where  these have been de l ibera te ly  and  

sys temat ica l l y  dest royed over  severa l  years .  In  th is  

regard  we u rge you to  fami l ia r i se  yourse l ves w i th   

(a )  The Aud i to r -Genera l ’s  repor t  o f  2014/2015 

f inanc ia l  year  wh ich  ident i f ied  i r regu la r  

expend i tu re  to  the  tune o f  550 mi l l ion .   

Accord ing  to  the  PFMA the  board  is  ob l iged to  10 

invest iga te  the  ins tance o f  i r regu la r  

expend i tu re ,  and  

(b)  The Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t  en t i t led  Dera i led  

wh ich  found w idespread maladmin is t ra t ion  and  

breakdown o f  processes and sys tems and  

recommended tha t  the  board  and Nat iona l  

Treasury  invest iga te  eve ry  cont rac t  above 10  

mi l l ion  and conc luded between 2012 and 2015.  

(c )  The Aud i to r -Genera l ’s  repor t  o f  2015/2016 

f inanc ia l  year  wh ich  ident i f ied  i r regu la r  20 

expend i tu re  to  the  tune o f  14  b i l l i on .   Th i s  

i r regu lar  expend i tu re  was uncovered by  the  

invest iga t ions tha t  were  conducted under  the  

purv iew o f  the  board  o f  PRASA. ”  

Now paragraph 5 :  
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”The above invest iga t ions have  revea led  more  

i r regu lar i t ies  and  cor rup t ion  and ob l iged the  board  

to  take  the  fo l low ing s teps.  

(a )  P rov ided about  69  repor ts  in  te rms o f  Sect ion  

23  o f  the  Prevent ion  and Combat ing  o f  Cor rup t  

Act iv i t ies  Act .  

(b )  Ass i s ted  the  Hawks in  the i r  invest iga t ions o f  

the  a l leged co r rup t ion  and money launder ing  

in  Swi fambo and S iyangena cont rac ts .  

(c )  Launched a  rev iew app l ica t ion  in  respect  o f  10 

the  S iyangena and Swi fambo cont rac ts . ”  

6 .  Opera t iona l l y  the  invest iga t ions  ass is ted  

PRASA to  ident i f y  those cont rac ts  tha t  were  

awarded to  peop le  who had ne i ther  the  

capac i ty  nor  the  ab i l i t y  to  car ry  ou t  the  

cont rac ts  tha t  were  awarded to  them.   These 

cont rac ts  a re  the  reasons fo r  the  constant  

fa i lu re  in  opera t ions.  

7 .  I t  i s  very  easy  fo r  any pe rson who is  

ob l i v ious to  the  amount  o f  tha t  cor rup t ion  20 

and incompetence tha t  we d iscovered in  the  

wake o f  the  depar tu re  o f  the  fo rmer  Group  

CEO to  assume tha t  a l l  the  cha l lenges o f  

PRASA were  caused by  the  board .   We,  we 

have f rank l y  and honest ly  shared ou r  
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f rus t ra t ions  and cha l lenges w i th  the  PCOT.  

 As s ta ted  above,  i t  i s  th rough our  

invest iga t ions tha t  we have  uncovered  

a lmost  14  b i l l i on  in  i r regu lar  expend i tu re .   

Th is  i s  a lmost  90  percent  o f  PRASA’s  annua l  

expend i tu re .   I t  i s  a lmost  imposs ib le  to  

ensure  qua l i t y  se rv ices  where  a lmost  a l l  the  

expend i tu re  i s  i r regu lar.  

8 .  The board  has  imp lored management  to  

p roceed w i th  the  qua l i t y  assurance o f  the  10 

dra f t  tu rnaround s t ra tegy and process as  per  

the  d iscuss ion  o f  November  2016.   We 

be l ieve  tha t  once th is  has been adopted  

PRASA wou ld  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  show the  

pos i t i ve  and qua l i t y  f ru i t s  o f  the  money tha t  

i s  spent  by  the  f i scus to  suppor t  the  work  o f  

th is  impor tan t  cog in  our  economy.   

9 .  We imp lore  you to  ensure  tha t  PCOT avo ids  

sensat iona l  nar row s ideshows o f  ind iv idua ls  

and focus on  const ruc t i ve l y  in te r rogat ing  the  20 

presenta t ion  on  Met rora i l  opera t ions as  per  

the  inv i ta t ion .   We va lue  any const ruc t i ve  

engagement  tha t  s  meant  to  improve the  

exper ience o f  m i l l i ons  o f  commuters  tha t  

PRASA is  mandated to  move every  day.   We 
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had expected tha t  the  PCOT wi l l  focus on  

th is  and not  on  a  mat te r  tha t  concerns a  

t r ipar t i te  agreement  tha t  has lapsed. ”  

So tha t  i s  the  le t te r.  I  needed to  say,  by  the  way,  

Cha i rperson,  when I  wro te  th is  l e t te r,  one o f  the  d i rec tors  

in  par l iament  had imp lored me to  –  because a f te r  they  

br ie fed  me,  they sa id  no ,  wr i te  to  the  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    And I  d id  tha t  immedia te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Thank you.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Cha i rperson,  you are  qu i te  co r rec t ,  i t  

i s  impor tan t  tha t  th is  le t te r  i s  on  reco rd .   I  was t ry ing  to  

shor t  c i rcu i t  bu t  I  th ink  i t  was led  by  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  i t  i s  no t  c r i t i c i sm on your  

par t  because you do know tha t  we a re  t r y ing  to  s t r i ke  a  

ba lance between  be ing  qu ick  and  – bu t  a t  the  same t ime 

do ing  jus t i ce  to  the  issues.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  i s  no t  c r i t i c i sm on your  pa r t ,  i t  i s  

jus t  tha t  wh i le  Mr  Mole fe  was g i v ing  ev idence I  had  a  look  20 

a t  i t  and I  though t  i t  i s  impor tan t .   Ac tua l l y  –  ja ,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    No,  bu t  w i th  respect ,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  i s  

the  ba lance I  shou ld  have s t ruck .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Le t  h im read the  le t te r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    No to  th is  le t te r  d id  you get  any response,  

Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    No response,  Cha i rperson.   That ,  

Cha i rperson,  i s  now a  deputy  m in i s te r,  she is  now a  deputy  

m in is te r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  the  ba l l  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and d id  she ever  acknowledge  

rece ip t  o f  th is  le t te r?  

MR MOLEFE:    No acknowledgement ,  no th ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    You wr i te  to  the  Min is te r  o f  Transpor t ,  

Min is te r  Maswangany i  a f te r  h is  appo in tment  and as  I  reca l l  

you  request  a  meet ing  fo r  h im to  meet  the  board .   There  is  

no  response,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   There  is  no  response? 

MR MOLEFE:    No response,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  may be o ther  le t te rs  you wro te  to  

wh ich  there  was no response but  you wr i te  to  –  you a l so  

wr i te  to  the  Speaker  o f  Par l iament  ra is ing  very  impor tan t  

i ssues about  PRASA.   You get  no  response.   You  copy a  

number  o f  peop le  in  par l iament  and except  fo r  the 20 

Cha i rperson o f  SCOPA i t  looks l i ke  nobody reacts  o r  even  

acknowledges rece ip t  and  you wr i te  to  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Transpor t  to  wh ich  PRASA and  

the  board  accounts ,  you ra ise  very  impor tan t  i ssues ye t  

aga in  you get  no  response,  no t  even an acknowledgement  
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o f  rece ip t .   I s  that  r igh t?   That  i s  what  happened.    

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  what  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  what  happened,  Cha i rpe rson.   The  

message in  tha t  s i lence is  ve ry  c lear,  we do not  wan t  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  tha t  i s  what  I  am …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    You shou ld  no t  be  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  I  am …[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    So  we a re  no t  go ing  to  d ign i fy  you  w i th  an  

answer.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  I  am t ry ing  to  unders tand  

because the  lack  o f  response cou ld  be  ine f f i c iency,  cou ld  

be  incompetence  but  i t  cou ld  be  –  cou ld  a lso  be  jus t  a  

re fusa l  to  dea l  w i th  you and can i t  be  incompetence w i th  a l l  

o f  these peop le?   Can i t  be  ine f f i c iency w i th  a l l  o f  these 

peop le  or  i s  i t  tha t  a l l  o f  them were  s imp ly  no t  p repared to  

in te rac t  w i th  you?  And I  th ink  f rom what  you have sa id ,  

you wou ld  th ink  tha t  i t  p robab ly  was not  incompetence or  

ine f f i c iency,  i t  was an a t t i tude based on not  want ing  to  dea l  

w i th  you o r  –  maybe I  do  no t  know whether  th is  was a  way 20 

o f  dea l ing  w i th  you,  i t  was an a t t i tude tha t  we do not  want  

to  have anyth ing  to  do  w i th  you.  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  I  wro te  many le t te rs ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    A t  leas t  I  know tha t  Mr  Sean Abrahams 
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rep l ied  my le t te rs .   He was not  go ing  to  do  wha t  I  was  

say ing  he  shou ld  do  but  I  a t  leas t  he  rep l ied ,  you  know?  

Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now,  Mr  Mole fe ,  in  your  le t te r  to  the 

Cha i rperson o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  you ta lk  about  the  

meet ing  o f  the  7 t h  and 8 t h  o f  2017 –  7 t h  and 8 t h  March  2017.   

But  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  you then go on to  say bu t  tha t  i s  how 

th roughout  ou r  tenure  as  board  members  we had been 

t rea ted  and I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  dea l  w i th  tha t  because you 10 

dea l  w i th  i t  f rom paragraph 105 o f  your  a f f idav i t .   Or  i f  you  

cou ld  jus t  f rom reco l lec t ion  ind i ca te  to  the  Cha i rperson  

tha t  what  happened a t  tha t  meet ing  was not  someth ing  new 

to  us .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson,  i t  was rea l l y  no t  

someth ing  new and aga in ,  th ings changed a f te r  we  agree 

w i th  Mr  Montana  tha t  he  wou ld  no t  ge t  anothe r  cont rac t  

and a f te r  we ins is t  tha t  as  a  board  we shou ld  do  what  the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  i s  ask ing  us  to  do ,  answer  the  quest ions  

she is  ask ing  and invest iga te  those mat te rs  tha t  she  20 

wanted us  to  d iscuss.   So a l l  o f  tha t  and up  to  the  

d ismissa l  o f  Mr  Montana.  

 So we s tar t  see ing  th is  behav iou r.   I  was go ing  to  

say,  Cha i rperson ,  tha t  i f  one looks a t  some o f  the  th ings  

tha t  I  say,  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  was say ing  to  my 
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d i rec tors ,  they a re  pre t ty  s im i la r  to  the  contents  o f  th is  

repor t  tha t  was …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Turmoi l  in  PRASA repor t?  

MR MOLEFE:    The PRASA in  Tu rmoi l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The PRASA in  Turmoi l  repor t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Now i t  does g ive  one the  impress ion  tha t  i t  

too  was shared w i th  them.   So i t  i s  an  organ ised group.   

The bas is  o f  tha t  o rgan isa t ion  i s  how to  ge t  r id  o f  th is  

board ,  how to  s top  the i r  invest iga t ions in to  co r rup t ion .  

 Now repeated ly,  there fo re ,  when the  d i rec tors  went  10 

to  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  i t  was jus t  a  c i r cus .   I t  was a  

c i rcus ,  somet imes somebody jus t  s tands up and say we  

unders tand and  employee somewhere  is  be ing  purged  

because he is  no t  wanted,  he  is  no t  suppor te r  o f  th is  board  

or  because you  be l ieve  he is  a  suppor te r  o f  Lucky 

Montana.   Now you do not  have tha t  nonsense,  tha t ’s  what  

the  Depar tment  o f  Transpor t  shou ld  invest iga te  i f  i t  th inks  

tha t  the  Board  is  no t  do ing  what  i t  i s  supposed to ,  bu t  tha t  

i s  what  they a re  do ing .   We o f ten  go t  the  impress ion  tha t  

there  i s  some k ind  o f  rehearsa l  be fore  we appear  be fore  20 

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .   Our  engagements  were  a lways  

host i le  and acr imon ious,  and when  peop le  asked quest ions  

i t  was someth ing  ak in  to  peop le  who have gone th rough 

chorography o f  some po in t ,  you know your  par ty  t h is  one 

p layed,  and somet imes you wou ld  see tha t  they sa t  
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somewhere  wr i t ing  quest ions  and they d is t r ibu ted  

quest ions amongst  themse lves and you l i te ra l l y  hear  them 

say ing  hav ing  covered tha t  one  tha t  quest ion ,  hav ing  

covered tha t  quest ion ,  i t  i s  no t  about  them l i s ten ing  to  the 

repor ts  tha t  i s  p laced before  them and then respond ing  to  

tha t  repor t ,  i t  i s  about  what  they  were  to ld  by  somebody 

f rom outs ide  to  ask  the  D i rec tors  when they come to 

Par l iament .  

 So tha t  i s  how tha t  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  was p lay ing  

i t s  ro le  and when  you say to  them we need to  focus  on  the  10 

bus iness o f  the  commi t tee  they say you are  no t  go ing  to  

te l l  us  how to  do  our  job .  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    You w i l l  look  a t  the  Cha i rpe rson but  

I  want  to  ask  you in  re la t ion  to  what  appears  t o  be  a  

choreographed p resenta t ion  on  the i r  s ide  d id  tha t  app ly  

on ly  to  the  ru l ing  pa r ty  o r  was i t  among the  oppos i t ion  

par t ies  as  we l l?  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was main ly  the  ru l ing  par ty,  i t  was the 

ru l ing  pa r ty,  you  wou ld  have thought  tha t  the  ru l ing  par t y  

knowing tha t  i t  i s  the  government  o f  the  day and the  SOE’s  20 

tha t  i t  i s  in  charge o f  tha t  they wou ld  t ry  to  ass i s t  those 

SOE’s  to  do  the i r  job  proper ly  and  pro tec t  them.   I t  wasn ’ t  

so .  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    Sure ly  –  can I  ask  you,  because i t  

i s  re la ted  to  th is  i ssue;  in  parag raph 108 on page 27 o f  
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your  a f f idav i t  i f  you  cou ld  j us t  read tha t  in to  the  reco rd  

because I  want  to  ask  a  coup le  o f  quest ions a round tha t  

re la t ing  to  the  ro le  o f  the  d i f fe ren t  par t ies  in  the  por t fo l io  

commi t tee .    

MR MOLEFE:    The parag raph  108 reads as  fo l lows 

Cha i rperson:  

“ In  my v iew the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  focused on 

t ry ing  to  f ind  wrongdo ing  w i th  the  invest iga t ions  

commiss ioned by  the  BOC,  the  appo in tment  o f  

Werksmans and regu la tory  o f  BOC meet ings. ”  10 

Now –  shou ld  I  wa i t  –  now when you ta lk  about  i r regu la r i t y  

o f  the  Board  mee t ings then I  am pleased tha t  I  ment ioned  

i t  be fore .   When you go to  the  PRASA in  Turmoi l  document  

there  i s  a  long compla in t  the re  and ac tua l l y  i t  l i s ts  the  

number  o f  meet ings tha t  the  Board  have.  

 Now tha t  was d i scussed c lear l y  w i th  th is  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  and the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  has become h i s  

Master ’s  Vo ice  on  th is  i ssue,  tha t  you are  meet ing  too  

much,  you ho ld  too  many meet ings.   You shou ld  be  meet ing 

on ly  four  t imes.    Now the re ’s  nowhere  where  meet ings are  20 

res t r i c ted  to  four  t imes,  the  Companies  Act  requ i res ,  and o f  

course  the  Pub l ic  F inance Management  Act  wou ld  a lso  say 

so ,  tha t  the  Board  shou ld  meet  a  m in imum of  four  t imes pe r  

annum,  bu t  the  meet ings o f  a  Board  are  de termined  by  the  

work  tha t  has to  be  done,  and fo r  a  long t ime by  the  way  
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these meet ings were  tak ing  p lace and they were  no t  be ing  

pa id  fo r,  there  was on ly  somewhere  i t  was the  end when 

tha t  happened and i t  tu rned out  tha t  the  Min is te r  had not  

approved a  po l i cy  and I  sa id  we l l  i f  the  po l i cy  has no t  been  

approved money must  be  pa id  back and I  was the  f i rs t  to  

pay i t  back.  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    Now you say,  and th is  i s  my po in t ,  

tha t  in  your  le t te r  o f  the  8 t h  o f  March 2017 you say to  the 

Cha i rperson o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  tha t  we have  

invest iga ted  the  fo l low ing mat te r,  the  Swi fambo mat ter,  the 10 

S iyangena mat ter  and other  mat ters worth b i l l ions of  Rands.   

You say here that  instead of  concent rat ing on the 

wrongdoing of  possib le  tenderers  and management  they 

were concent rat ing on th ings that  they sa id the Board was 

doing,  notwi thstanding that  the  amounts you were  ta lk ing  

about  were b i l l i ons of  rands.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    What  I  want  to  ask  in  tha t  

connect ion  is  bu t  sure ly  the  oppos i t ion  par t ies  wou ld  have 

sa id  no  but  what  a re  you do ing  about  S iyangena,  can you 20 

g ive  us  a  repor t ,  can you g ive  us  a  repor t  on  Swi fambo,  we 

understand you have taken them to Court ,  o r  was there not  

a  vo ice fo r  them? 

MR MOLEFE:    No there  was a  vo i ce ,  I  mean they were  

ask ing  about  those,  there  were  a lso  those who were  
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genu ine ly  concerned about  opera t ions o f  Met rora i l ,  

espec ia l l y  in  the  Western  Cape,  so  they were  ask ing  and 

by  the  way I  can  now say so ,  tha t  when i t  became c lear  

tha t  th is  commi t tee  is  no t  in te res ted  in  what  we are  do ing  I  

inv i ted  w i l l i ng  Par l iamentar ians,  even f rom the  oppos i t ion ,  

to  v is i t  and see,  meet  w i th  the  i nvest iga tors  to  see the  

work  tha t  we were  do ing ,  because  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  

was not  a l low ing tha t  space fo r  a  p roper  repor t ,  o r  i f  i t  was  

there  i t  was not  a l low ing fo r  a  d iscuss ion  o f  tha t  repor t .  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    So  when you say you ca l led  w i l l i ng  10 

Par l iamentar ians  are  you say ing  Par l iamenta r ians who 

were  no t  pa r t  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  bu t  who were  

in te res ted  in  PRASA’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    No,  no ,  no ,  who were  par t  o f  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee .  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    Oh.  

MR MOLEFE:    Some o f  them o f  course  wou ld  have  been in  

SCOPA.  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    And were  there  a lso  members  o f  the  

ru l ing  par ty  o r  none o f  the i r  members?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    No there  were  no t  members  o f  the  ru l ing  

par ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  what  you a re  say ing  is  d id  you g ive  

an  open inv i ta t ion  to  ind iv idua ls  who were  members  o f  the  

commi t tee  who  were  in te res ted  in  coming  to see 
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    No,  no ,  no ,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was ind i v idua ls  tha t  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was ind iv idua ls  who were  showing  

in te res t  in  what  we were  do ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    And who were  rea l i s ing  tha t  s i t t ing  in  those  

sectors  o f  meet ings they were  no t  go ing  to  ge t  p roper  

in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Were  meet ings o f  the  commi t tee ,  10 

as  fa r  as  you know,  be ing  mechan ica l l y  recorded,  as  fa r  as  

you know? 

MR MOLEFE:    They are  supposed  to  be .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  because i t  wou ld  be  good to  ge t  the  

t ranscr ip ts  o f  what  was be ing  sa id ,  par t i cu la r ly  in  meet ings 

be tween the  Board  and th is  commi t tee  over  the  years  tha t  

you have ind ica ted  here ,  2015,  2016,  2017.  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  wou ld  ce r ta in ly  be  good to  do  so  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  d idn ’ t  hear  tha t .  20 

MR MOLEFE:     I  sa id  i t  w i l l  be  good,  i t  w i l l  be  he lp fu l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .    I  have been to ld  tha t  – I  

don ’ t  know whether  w i th  a l l  por t fo l io  commi t tees,  bu t  w i th  

some commi t tees or  a l l  commi t tees don ’ t  record  in  

Par l iament ,  they  make notes  and on ly  the  Nat iona l  
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Assembly  reco rds  mechan ica l l y,  so  I  don ’ t  know to  what  

ex ten t  tha t  in fo rmat ion  i s  cor rec t ,  bu t  i f  there  i s  a  

t ranscr ip t  o r  t ransc r ip ts  we shou ld  t ry  and get .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  and i f  we don ’ t  ge t  tha t  we 

never the less  shou ld  t ry  and get  maybe two or  so  o ther  

peop le ,  e i ther  f rom the  Board ,  your  Board ,  o r  f rom the  

Commi t tee  who can te l l  us  some o f  the  th ings tha t  were  

happen ing  in  tha t  Commi t tee  du r ing  the  t ime o f  you r  Board ,  

you have sa id  in  paragraph 106 o f  your  a ff idav i t  the 10 

meet ings o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees du r ing  2015 ,  2016 

and 2017 cou ld  best  be  descr ibed as  chaot ic .     

 So  i t  i s  very  impor tan t ,  you get  pu t  in  a  commi t tee  

in  Par l iament  so  tha t  you can exerc i se  a  very  impor tan t  

respons ib i l i t y  o f  overs igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  now members  o f  a  commi t tee  ins tead  

o f  do ing  the i r  job  they m ight  ac tua l l y  no t  be  do ing  the i r  job  

proper ly  wh i le  an  en t i t y  such as  PRASA was los ing  b i l l i ons  

o f  Rands th rough  cor rup t ion ,  i t  w i l l  rea l l y  be  very  impor tan t  20 

to  see exact ly  what  was happen ing .   Were  they tu rn ing  a  

b l ind  eye to  mass ive  co r rup t ion  tha t  you wanted  to  te l l  

them about ,  resu l t ing  in  the  count ry  los ing  b i l l i ons  in  tha t  

en t i t y,  b i l l i ons  o f  Rands in  tha t  en t i t y,  and they were  

in te res ted  in  o the r  th ings.    Le t  us  know i f  tha t  i s  what  was 
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happen ing  so  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  know i f  there  are  t ransc r ip ts  

so  tha t  these th ings can be put  in  the  open,  because  I  keep  

on say ing  when we see SOE’s ,  o r  a  number  o f  them,  be ing  

in  the  pos i t ions  in  wh ich  they are  now in  2020 f inanc ia l l y  

we have got  to  go  back and say when d id  i t  s ta r t ,  bu t  

Par l iament  was supposed th roughout  to  be  oversee ing ,  to  

be  exerc is ing  ove rs igh t  and where  was i t  as  the  s i tua t ion  in  

each o f  these SOE’s  was deter io ra t ing  every  year,  where  

was Par l iament ,  what  was Par l iament  do ing?  Where  were  

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees,  what  were  they do ing  about  i t? 10 

 So I  th ink  Mr  Son i  you know there  shou ld  be  an 

a t tempt  to  t ry  and see i f  you can  get  t ranscr ip ts ,  i f  there  

are  any t ranscr ip ts  o f  a l l  o f  those meet ings be tween the  

Board ,  th is  Board  and the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  du r ing  those 

years .  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    Yes,  okay.   Mr  Mole fe  when the  

Par l iamentar ians who d i sp layed a  genu ine  in te res t  i n  f i x ing  

up  PRASA’s  prob lems,  i f  I  can  pu t  i t  tha t  way,  when they 

met  w i th  you and o ther  members  o f  the  Board ,  what  was  

the i r  impress ion  o f  the  –  sor ry  –  what  was the i r  impress ion  20 

o f  what  the  Board  was uncover ing?   I  mean we have  

heard ,  because  we have seen  the  cour t  repor ts  l i ke  

Swi fambo,  S iyangena,  what  was the i r  react ion? 

MR MOLEFE:    Any normal  be ing  wou ld  be  shocked by  the  

leve l ,  the  ex ten t  o f  th is  cor rup t ion ,  and they were  shocked  
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and they wanted  ac t ion .   They wanted ac t ion .   And when  

the  Cha i rpe rson says were  they no t  concerned tha t  these  

th ings were  happen ing .   I f  they  were  concerned,  they 

wou ld  have suppor ted  my e f fo r ts  to  compel  the  Hawks to  

invest iga te  the i r  cases and to  exp la in  to  us  why they are  

no t  d ischarg ing  the i r  const i tu t iona l  du ty.   That  shou ld  have  

been the  work  done by  Par l iamentar ians,  so  they were  no t  

do ing  i t .  

 Bu t  I  am say ing  the  oppos i t ion  was suppor t ing ,  look  

Swi fambo,  because they – somet imes they are pol i t i ca l  10 

par t ies so they w i l l  t ry  to  score  po ints against  one another.   

The ar t i c les we were reading th is  morn ing,  we were  looking 

at  th is  morn ing there is  a  sect ion where the EFF speci f ica l l y  

ra ises concern about  the fact  that  PRASA was spending 

R3.5bi l l ion on locomot ives that  are dysfunct ional ,  that  are  

not  f i t  for  purpose.  

 So we want  people to  be saying these th ings f rom al l  

k inds of  par t ies because i t  is  about  the count ry now,  i t  is  

not  about  sectar ian in te rest ,  i t  is  about  a l l  o f  our  people.  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    I  am ra is ing  i t  in  the  contex t  o f  how 20 

a  democracy can bet te r  funct ion  i f  you  have more  e f fec t i ve  

pub l i c  rep resenta t i ves ,  even i f  they  be long to  a  m inor i t y  

par ty.   For  example  cou ld  a  Par l iamentar ian  no t  wr i te  to  

the  Hawks and say bu t  what ’s  happen ing  to  the  Swi fambo 

mat te r,  what ’s  happening to  the S iyangena mat ter?  
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MR MOLEFE:    I  suppose i f  Par l iamenta r ians cou ld  do  tha t ,  

tha t  i s  what  Dr  He len  Suzman used to  do ,  those many 

years  when she was the  on ly  Par l iamenta r ian  o f  the  PFP,  

bu t  i f  there  i s  a  par t i cu la r  agenda  tha t  i s  be ing  pu rsued,  

and you have the  govern ing  par ty  t ha t  has go t  a  leader  l i ke 

the  cu r ren t  Pres ident  o f  the  Un i ted  S ta tes  who is  do ing  

what  he  is  do ing ,  peop le  a re  dy ing  o f  Cov id -19  and he  

doesn ’ t  encourage peop le  to  be  l i ke  you Cha i rpe rson and  

me wear ing  masks,  he  jus t  goes there ,  he  organ ises  indoor  

b ig  meet ings and  he breaks the  sys tem to  appo in t  c ron ies  10 

as  prosecutors ,  as  judges,  so  i f  the  Hawks are  run  by  

cron ies ,  peop le  w i th  a  par t i cu la r  agenda,  no t  agenda o f  

en forc ing  the  ru le  o r  ensur ing  the  ru le  o f  law,  i f  they  are  

no t  ensur ing  the  ru le  o f  law they can –  oppos i t ion  can  

gu ide  to  them,  no th ing  w i l l  happen.   Noth ing  w i l l  happen.  

 As  the  Honourab le  Cha i rperson wou ld  have not iced 

in  many ins tances in  th is  count ry  t h ings go t  r igh t  on ly  a f te r  

the  cour t s  dec ided on tha t ,  because peop le  don ’ t  want  to  

do  what  they are  supposed to  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  is  such a  p i t y  because  20 

somet imes peop le ,  no t  somet imes ,  very  o f ten  peop le  who 

might  want  to  take  i ssues to  Cour t  don ’ t  have money to  

take  those issues  to  Cour t  and then –  so  i t  i s  jus t  in  cer ta in  

c i rcumstances where  somebody is  ab le  to  ass i s t  o r  some 

organ isa t ion  is  ab le  to  ass is t  to  b r ing  mat te rs  to  cour t  bu t  
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i f  Par l iament  were  to  p lay  i t s  par t  cor rec t l y  and i f  i t  were  to  

p lay  i t s  pa r t  cor rec t l y  i t  seems tha t  there  i s  a  l o t  o f  damage 

tha t  cou ld  be  p revented f rom happen ing  and a  lo t  o f  

f inanc ia l  loss  tha t  cou ld  be  prevented,  tha t  the  count ry  

wou ld  o therwise  su f fe r.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  t rue  Cha i rperson.    Jus t  to  re tu rn  to  

the  po in t  tha t  was made by  Counse l ,  yes  indeed  i f  and 

what  the  Cha i rpe rson is  say ing  now,  i f  indeed peop le  who  

go to  Par l iament  unders tand tha t  they are  pub l i c  

rep resenta t i ves  they m ight  have got ten  in  there  us ing  a  10 

par t y  t i cke t ,  bu t  once they a re  in  Par l iament  they  are  no t  

rep resent ing  sectar ian  in te res t  o f  a  pa r ty,  they represent  

those o rd inary  men and women in  the  v i l lages,  in  the  

townsh ips ,  on  the  fa rms,  who are  poor,  they have become 

the  vo i ce  o f  the  peop le  because  those peop le  cannot  be  

there  a t  Par l iament  in  the i r  m i l l i ons ,  so  they must  make  

sure  tha t  what  they say there  and what  they dec ide  

cor rec t l y  re f lec t  the  exper iences o f  the  peop le  tha t  they  

c la im to  rep resent ,  so  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  do  tha t ,  and I  do  

th ink  tha t  as  Counse l  says tha t  i f  we have more  and more  20 

o f  such peop le  our  democracy w i l l  func t ion  be t te r,  because 

i t  wou ld  mean even the  most  power fu l  o f  the  par t ies  w i l l  

no t  take  fo r  g ran ted the  suppor t  o f  the  vo ters ,  they  wou ld  

know tha t  the  vo te rs  w i l l  learn  someth ing  fu r ther  by  

l i s ten ing  to  the  oppos i t ion  because the  oppos i t ion  is  
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ta lk ing  to  those th ings tha t  a re  touch ing  the i r  sou ls  and  

the i r  hear ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And in  the  process a  l o t  o f  money tha t  i s  

los t  to  cor rup t ion  cou ld  be  used fo r  the  needs  o f  the  

peop le ,  because the  needs o f  the  peop le  –  the  peop le  have 

a  lo t  o f  needs tha t  need government  to  a t tend to ,  and  

those needs need money.   Now i f  Par l iament  doesn ’ t  do  a  

job  proper ly  and  cor rup t ion  leve l s  jus t  keep on go ing  up 

then the  money tha t  i s  los t  th rough cor rup t ion  goes to  a  

few,  ins tead o f  be ing  ab le  to  be  used fo r  the  major i t y  o f  10 

c i t i zens.  

 Yes Mr  Son i  I  see we are  –  we have gone past  four  

o ’c lock  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  i f  poss ib le  tha t  we f in ish  w i th  Mr  

Mole fe  because I  am sure  he  wou ld  l i ke  to  be  ab le  to  go  

and do o ther  th ings.  Can we con t inue Mr  Mole fe ,  i s  tha t  

a l r igh t  w i th  you?  

MR MOLEFE:    Now? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  s t ra ight  ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    I  am happy to  cont inue unt i l  we f in ish Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes okay,  okay.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    I  w i l l  ta lk  less going forward.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no that  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:    No,  that  you cannot  do because th is  is  

go ing to  be an important  par t  o f  your  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  a l l  o f  the th ings that  you have been 
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saying are important .  

ADV SONI SC:    Yes,  now you then say that  a t  paragraph 

111 that  you were concerned and you used some st rong 

language,  could you read that  in to the record what  you say 

at  paragraph 111? 

MR MOLEFI:    I t  reads as fo l lows Chai rperson.  

“ I  found the conduct  o f  the members of  the Port fo l io  

Commit tee to  be  d isgracefu l  and i t  appeared f rom 

thei r  l i ne of  quest ion ing that  they appeared to  have 

been lobbied to  compel  the BOC to stop the  10 

invest igat ions.   The loot ing of  the  publ i c  purse and 

hold ing those responsib le for  such loot ing  

accountable appears not  to  be important  to  them at  

a l l . ”  

Now the pat tern Chai rperson here  is  the same,  I  mean you 

go to  – you look at  the conduct  o f  Min is te r  Maswanganyi ,  

you look at  the conduct  o f  Min is ter  Dipuo Peters much la te r,  

now in  2017,  and you look at  the conduct  o f  the President  

and Min is te r  Radebe that  evening  in  a meet ing,  i t  is  a l l  

about  how do we f rust rate th is  d r ive to  end cor rupt ion.  20 

 Now I  don’ t  know what  i t  is  that  a l l  o f  these people  

have in  common,  what  i s  i t  that  draws them so c lose  to  one 

another  that  they would not  d isagree on issues that  are so 

obvious.  

ADV SONI SC:    Now you ment ioned that  they even asked 
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for  the invest igators,  namely Werksmans At torneys,  to  be 

subjected to  an SAA vet t ing.  

MR MOLEFI:    That  is  so.   That  is  so Chai rperson.  

ADV SONI SC:    And you say that  that  is  the f i rs t  t ime that  

any invest igator  had been subjected to  that  requi rement .  

MR MOLEFI:    Invest igator  or  invest igat ion,  I  don’ t  mind i f  

an invest igator  who is  invest igat ing a government  

department ,  because government  departments deal  a  lo t  

wi th  c lass i f ied in format ion,  i f  the  State Secur i t y  says we 

have got  to  make sure that  these people are going to  have 10 

access to  c lass i f ied documents are vet ted,  a re people who 

can be t rusted,  i t  is  understandable,  but  you cannot  go out  

there in  the genera l  publ i c  o f  South Af r ica and say every 

company must  be vet ted by State Secur i ty  Agency,  they 

have got  far  more work to  do to  protect  the count ry  than to  

wor ry about  vet t ing people who are invest igat ing  corrupt  

ind iv iduals.   

ADV SONI SC:    Then the last  l ine  of  paragraph 112 you 

say you l ink i t ,  th is  requi rement  to  cer ta in  regulat ions where  

you te l l  the Chai rperson what  those regulat ions are.  20 

MR MOLEFI :    Wel l  I  th ink  i t  is  d i f f icu l t  to  remember  

speci f ica l l y  now but  we had . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes you can read i t  i f  you – i f  that  wi l l  

make i t  easie r  fo r  you.   Paragraph 112.  

MR MOLEFI:    No,  no i t  won’ t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh i t  won’ t ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFI:    There had been revelat ions that  people who 

were in  in te l l igence you know got  involved in  cor rupt  

act i v i t ies there had been repor t  about  the i r  o ff ices  being 

broken in to,  in format ion d isappear ing.   There are instances 

actual ly  a lso of  monies d isappear ing f rom those off i ces.    

 Now we are being asked,  and some of  them of  

course have been impl icated in  some of  the cont racts in 

these companies,  inc lud ing PRASA,  now have been asked 

that  they should be the ones who vet  the invest igators.   The 10 

invest igators are  going to  invest igate and they have to  

invest igate the i r  conduct  as wel l  as serv ice providers to  

PRASA,  so i t  d id  not  make sense to me to ask for  that  to  be  

done except  where you are looking fo r  an e legant  way of  

f rust rat ing the invest igat ions wi thout  appear ing to  be doing  

so.  

ADV SONI SC:    Then could you read f rom the last  l ine of  

paragraph 112 on page 27,  the word star t ing moreover  th is  

requi rement  of  the SSA invest igat ion.   

MR MOLEFI:    Should I  read i t?  20 

ADV SONI SC:    Yes p lease,  just  f rom the last  l ine onto the  

next  page.  

MR MOLEFI:     

“ I t  was a lso st range to me that  such SSA vet t ing was 

only requi red fo r  Werksmans and not  for  any other  
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serv ice provider  conduct ing invest igat ions at  

PRASA.   Moreover,  th is  requi rement  only  emerged 

as more and more  corrupt ion was exposed. ”  

ADV SONI SC:     Sorry the sentence cont inues on the next  

page.  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh,  okay sorry.   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:     Perhaps you should read that  sentence 

again,  i t  is  qu i te  key Mr Molefe.  

MR MOLEFE:    “ I t  was st range to me . . .  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:     No,  no,  no star t ing wi th  “moreover” .  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Oh.  

“Moreover,  th is  requi rement  only emerged as more  

and more cor rup t ion was exposed,  par t i cu lar ly  Mr 

Osler  Mashaba revealed that  18mi l l ion had been 

paid to  ind iv iduals who c la imed to  be co l lect ing the  

funds on behal f  o f  the government  par ty.  

ADV SONI SC:     Now can I  ask you where d id you get  that  

in format ion f rom that  Mr Mashaba,  Mashaba had co l lected  

R18mi l l ion fo r  the  govern ing  par ty?   Mr  – a lso  Mashaba wel l  

o f  course the invest igat ion was repor ted in  the media and 20 

everywhere but  he began to worry.   He apparent ly  became 

suspic ious that  he – he was being  invest igated.   He knew i t  

had to  be because he was par t  o f  Swi fambo,  he was the 

Chai rman of  Swi fambo that  is  a  company that  got  that  b ig  

cont ract  for  the locomot ives.   He sent  someone to approach 
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a  cer ta in  Mr Phi lemon Mamabolo who worked for  PRASA in  

the secur i ty  d iv is ion main ly  in  the  business invest igat ions 

uni t .   I  th ink that  is  what  that  DIU stands for.   And he sa id  

he wanted to  meet  wi th  the Chai rman of  the Board of  

PRASA – oh th is  ind iv idual  who was unknown advised 

Mamabolo that  Mashaba wants to  meet  wi th  h im.   So they 

met  wi th  Mamabolo somewhere in  Pretor ia  in  an  I ta l ian  

restaurant .   A t  that  meet ing he to ld  h im that  he bel ieved 

that  he was being invest igated and he was worr ied  that  he  

might  lose a l l  the  assets that  he had accumulated work ing  10 

hard fo r.   And he d id not  want  to  lose what  he had as a 

resul t  o f  the cont ract  o f  Swi fambo.   He was a man who was 

running l ike f i l l ing stat ions.   He had a l l  k inds of  th ings and 

he had an engineer ing consul t ing business AM Engineer ing.   

So he wanted to  meet  wi th  me as the Chai rman of  the Board  

so Mamabolo asked me,  I  agreed to meet  wi th  h im.   We met 

in  Sandton at  the Maslow Hote l .   I  had asked one of  our  

d i rectors Ms Mat la la ,  Shei la  Mat la la  to  accompany me and 

so i t  was Mr Mamabolo.   Mashaba came and he repeated 

what  he had to ld  Mamabolo to  say that  he is  worr ied  that  he 20 

might  lose everyth ing that  he  has and he real l y  i s  begging  

that  we should no t  take whatever  he asks.   He worked hard 

for  which had noth ing to  do wi th  Swi fambo and he sa id that  

he – he actual ly  had not  known the founder of  Swi fambo 

before.   The founder of  Swi fambo was Makhensa Mabunda 
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or  Mabunda Makhensa.   Makhensa had approached h im and 

asked h im to jo in  h im become a d i rector  o f  Swi fambo and 

become a Chai rman thereof  tha t  there was a  tender 

opportuni ty  at  PRASA for  the locomot ives.   He wants them 

to b id for  that  tender.   So – so he goes on and Mashaba of  

course had agreed.   But  Mashaba says,  I  am prepared to 

co-operate provided you guys wi l l  not  take my assets.   So 

he star ts  te l l ing us a story about  the var ious people whom 

he paid money to  and as he was ta lk ing I  sa id,  look I  do not  

th ink I  want  to  go  around saying you paid money to  people 10 

unless you can demonst rate by way of  bank deposi ts  that  

you actual ly  pa id  money to  these people and g ive  us the 

names of  those people or  the i r  companies and so on.   So he 

sa id he d id not  have the documents but  he – he cou ld make 

them avai lab le.   And when he made the documents that  is  

how we got  to  know about  th is  R80 mi l l ion.   He d id  say that  

there were other  monies that  he  paid.   I  th ink he paid 

another  R90 000.00 and he paid another  R1 050 000.00 but  

those monies he sa id he d id not  have proof  because he was 

– he was g iv ing cash.   Now who are the ind iv iduals he was 20 

paying money to?   One of  them was a person who was born 

in  Angola,  a  lady  ca l led Mar ia  Gomez.   She ran a company 

ca l led,  I  th ink i t  was ca l led S imi lex and then the other  one 

was an at to rney George Sabelo.   I  th ink at  the t ime Sabelo  

was work ing fo r  I  th ink Bowmans.   I  cannot  remember 
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exact ly.   So – so  these are the monies I  cannot  remember  

the rest  o f  the monies but  they are paying qui te  a number of  

companies.   I  deal t  wi th  those deta i ls  in  one of  the  

appl i cat ions in  the Swi fambo Appl icat ion  when I  was st i l l  the 

Di rector  o f  PRASA.    

ADV SONI SC:   Can I  just  in  re ference to what  you have 

just  sa id your  ev idence in  the Swi fambo mat te r  by  way of  

a ff idavi t .   May I  ask you to  look at  Bundle D page 259? 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  the same bundle in  f ront  o f  you is  

i t  not?  10 

ADV SONI SC:    I t  is  the same bundle in  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   The same bundle ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh the same bundle okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Page 259.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Okay 

ADV SONI SC:   So Mr Molefe have you got  i t?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  got  i t .   I  got  i t .  

ADV SONI SC:   The t i t le  o f  the  document  is  a  rep ly ing 20 

aff idavi t ,  do you see that?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  see yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now I  am just  po int ing out  so that  we can 

put  i t  in  context .   Th is i s  your  rep ly ing aff idavi t  in  the 

Swi fambo mat te r,  would that  be cor rect?  
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MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   We d id not  inc lude the whole reply ing  

aff idavi t  we just  inc luded the par ts  re la t ing to  the mat te rs 

you have deal t  wi th  now.   But  can I  ask you in  your  founding 

aff idavi t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Before you do so.  

ADV SONI SC:   Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  fo r  the sake of  completeness the 

Swi fambo mat te r  is  as i t  appears  f rom the aff idav i t  o f  Mr 

Molefe at  page 259 was case number 2015/42219 in  the  10 

Gauteng Local  Div is ion of  the High Court .   The mat ter  be ing  

Passenger Rai l  agents of  South Af r ica versus Swi fambo Rai l  

Leasing Pty L imi ted.  

ADV SONI SC:   As you p lease.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now in  – in  your  rep ly ing – in  your  founding 

aff idavi t  you d id not  ra ise th is  i ssue about  Mr Mashaba’s 

te l l ing you about  the payment  of  funds.   Is  that  correc t? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   Yes.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Because that  is  a  compla int  he makes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink you might  need to expla in  to  h im 

that  you are refer r ing to  the founding aff idavi t  that  he f i led 

in  the Swi fambo mat te r.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Sorry.   You recal l  the case that  was 
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made out  in  the or ig ina l  –  wel l  in  the founding aff idavi t  in  

the Swi fambo mat ter  Mr Molefe? 

MR MOLEFE:   The – the case that  we were making was one 

of  ask ing the cour t  to  consider  and set  as ide the arb i t ra t ion  

step in  the – in  the cont ract  between Swi fambo and PRASA.   

And the reason we wanted that  set  as ide and us proceeding  

immediate ly  fo r  the appl i cat ion to  set  as ide the cont ract  on 

the basis that  i t  actual l y  never  ex is ted.   I t  was inval id  at  the 

in i t ia l  because cer ta in  condi t ions  which should have been 

met  were not  met .   And i t  was our  v iew that  t ime that  i f  we 10 

were to  go the –  you go the route of  a rb i t ra t ion.   I f  you 

d isagree about  e lements of  the cont ract  but  you – you do 

not  accept  that  the cont ract  ex is ts  but  in  th is  instance we 

were saying i t  does not  ex is t  so there should not  be  a need 

for  a rb i t ra t ion but  o f  course you cannot  just  exc lude i t  

un less the cour t  set  i t  as ide.  

ADV SONI SC:   The – I  am making a s l ight ly  d i f feren t  po int .   

In  your  o r ig ina l  –  in  your  founding a ff idavi t  you d id… 

MR MOLEFE:   In  the Swi fambo mat ter?  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes in  the Swi fambo mat te r.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   And i t  is  not  th is  one th is  is  a  rep ly.  

ADV SONI SC:   Th is i s  your  rep ly ing aff idavi t .  

MR MOLEFE:   So why do we not  go  to  the founding one? 

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no Mr… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh but  I  th ink he might  have someth ing… 
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MR MOLEFE:   I t  makes i t  d i f f i cu l t .  

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Because I  wi l l  not  remember.  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Molefe when you f i rs t  gave evidence.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   We went  through the judgment  of  Just ice  

Francis.   We went  through the judgment  of  Just ice Lewis.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  yes.  

ADV SONI SC :   You remember?  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Because they th ink that  th is  was corrupt .   

Mr Mth imkhulu so  ca l led Doctor  Mth imkhulu had set  as ide –  

had ta i lor  made the cont ract  for  Swi fambo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Do you remember i t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   So th is  mat ter  that  you are ra is ing now was 

not  ra ised in  that .   But  you do ra ise i t  in  the reply ing 

aff idavi t .   The on ly reason that  is  important  is  –  because I  20 

want  to  go to  Mr Mashaba’s response to what  you say which  

is  a lso inc luded in  these papers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   I  am just  t ry ing to  or ientate you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV SONI SC:   So that  we can dea l  wi th  your  ev idence in  a  

systemat ic  way.  

MR MOLEFE:   Let  me understand.   In  that  case the issue 

was the cont ract  is  not  va l id .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And that  i s  what  the cour t  found.  

MR MOLEFE:   Probably then the lawyers would have held 

that  to  go in to the deta i l s  about  Mashaba does not  p rove 

anyth ing wi th  regard to  that .  

ADV SONI SC:   I  am not  c r i t ic i s ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  maybe we can deal  wi th  i t  th is  10 

way.   Mr Soni  you obviously  have looked at  h is  founding 

aff idavi t?  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you know tha t  he d id not  say anyth ing  

about  th is  issue.   You can say to  h im that  he can accept  

that  you have checked and he d id  not  say – say anyth ing  

about  th is  i ssue and then put  the quest ion that  you want  to  

put .  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is  t rue and the cour t  d id  not  deal  wi th  i t .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   So you – but  in  your  rep ly ing aff idavi t  20 

you deal t  wi th  th is  p iece of  ev idence you now l inked today 

to  say Mr Mashaba had approached you to say,  p lease come 

to my rescue,  do not  take away a l l  my – a l l  my assets.   

Remember you sa id that  a  l i t t le  ear l ier?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   So is  i t  correct  that  when you look at  

paragraph 9 of  your  aff idavi t  what  you have sa id today is  a  

summary of  what  is  conta ined in  paragraph 9 of  your  

aff idavi t .  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   In  other  words,  you have deal t  wi th  how the  

– the approach was made to you through Mr Mamabolo and 

Mr Mamabolo and what  happened a t  the Maslow Restaurant .  

MR MOLEFE:   That  –  that  is  correc t .  

ADV SONI SC:   There is  just  one th ing though that  I  want  to  10 

deal  wi th  i s  the payment  schedule that  he gave to you and 

you found that  a t  page 283.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2  – on page? 

ADV SONI SC:   283.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  th ink le t  us just  get  tha t  in  the 

correct  context .   A t  the meet ing  that  you had wi th  Mr  

Mashaba and Ms Mat la la  you sa id that  Mr Mashaba said he  

d id not  have wi th  h im on that  occasion in format ion about  or  

proof  o f  payment  – proof  o f  payment  in to the bank accounts  

of  the ind iv iduals concerned,  is  that  r ight?  20 

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Did – d id –  were arrangements made 

for  h im to la te r… 

MR MOLEFE:   He d id not  –  he d id not  – he – that  day he 

d id not  have any documents.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja that  is  what  you sa id ja .  

MR MOLEFE:  Any documents…[ intervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Were ar rangements made for  h im to  

provide such proof  a t  a  la ter  date and more in format ion? 

MR MOLEFE:   I t  was made fo r  h im to provide i t  to  

Mamabolo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mamabolo.  

MR MOLEFE:   Who duly co l lected i t  and brought  i t  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  th ink that  is  –  le t  us – then we can 

move to the schedule ja .  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  Now is  the document  at  page 283 the  

document  that  he gave to Mr Mamabolo? 

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   And… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry do you say 283? 

ADV SONI SC:   283 Chai r  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Is  that  a  schedule  of  payments made – wel l  

that  he sa id he had made? 

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Th is i s….  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry what  I  have at  283 is  

someth ing that  has got  loan payments.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  the top is  i t  –  a re we on the same 
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page? 

ADV SONI SC:   That  i s  –  that  is  –  yes Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   Now the Chai rperson is  ra is ing an important  

issue is  he at  the  meet ing had sa id  to  you that  he wi l l  send 

a schedule of  payments he had made.   Because you sa id,  

but  look you te l l ing me that  you have paid these people but  

where is  the proof  o f  payment?  

MR MOLEFE:   Hm that  is  t rue,  tha t  is  what  I  d id .   Because I  

was not  go ing to  be able to  do anyth ing wi th  what  he just  10 

to ld  me verbal ly.  

ADV SONI SC:   Ja.   Now he then sent  you th is  document  

but  as the Cha i rperson points out  th is  does not  say  

Schedule of  Payments i t  says Loan Payments.   Do you see 

that?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   But  that  is  what  the  document  i s  headed.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   What  d id  you understand notwi ths tanding  

what  the documents – what  the document  i s  headed? 20 

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  I  understood i t  to  be payment  and I  

understood that  the  record ings of  payments  and loaned was 

merely fo r  purposes of  bookkeeping and audi t ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So le t  us go back one – one step back.   

Subsequent  to  the meet ing that  you had wi th  Mr Mashaba 
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and Ms Mat la la ,  Mr Mamabolo was a lso in  the meet ing? 

MR MOLEFE:   He was in  the meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja subsequent  to  that  meet ing when Mr 

Mashaba gave th is  schedule to  Ms Mamabolo d id you 

understand f rom Mr Mamabolo that  he sa id th is  is  the  

schedule of  payments that  I  promised to g ive or  someth ing 

to  that  e ffect?  

MR MOLEFE:   No when – Chai rperson when in  a meet ing  

where I  was present  and my – and Mr Mashaba was present  

and Ms Mat la la  he sa id that  he pa id these monies to  these 10 

people and I  say the names Mar ia Gomez and her  company.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And Sabelo Nkosi  –  Nkosi  Sabelo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And Knowles Husain.  I  th ink Sabelo was 

work ing fo r  Knowles Husain when I  t r ied to  remember the  

company.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   And he was wi th  tha t  f i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   So I  understood i t  be payments not  loans.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.   So when you got  th is  – these 

documents your  understanding was th is  document  ref lects  

the payments that  Mashaba had to ld  you about?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then can I  ask you to  p lease look at  page 

285.  

MR MOLEFE:   285? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   What  is  that  document?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry before you go to  285.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Soni  do you not  want  us to  –  do you 

not  want  h im to  te l l  us what  schedule – th is  schedule 

ref lects?  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  283? 

ADV SONI SC:   I  was t ry ing  – but  I  could  do that  

Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay wel l  i f  you are… 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   I t  answers the quest ion whether  i t  was 

a loan.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  answers your  quest ions okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Or  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay that  is  f ine.   That  i s  f ine.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   So i f  you look at  285 what  is  that  document  

there Mr Molefe on the face of  i t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  i t  appears obviously i t  is  an invoice.  

ADV SONI SC:   From whom? 

MR MOLEFE:   From – f rom Simi lex was a company owned 
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by Ms Gomez.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Mar ia  Gomez.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SONI SC:   I f  you look just  under the – the heading of  

that  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink i t… 

ADV SONI SC:   I t  says d i rectors.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sorry are we looking on the same 

page?  On my document  –  my bundle the name Simi lex 10 

appears at  page 286 and on page 285 which I  th ink is  the 

page that  you re ferred to  Mr Son i  un less I  have missed 

someth ing.  

ADV SONI SC:   No I . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have got  consul t ing engineers.  

ADV SONI SC:   No you are abso lute ly  r ight  Chai rperson.   

Because i t  is  in  I  guess middle misread the 5 – I  misread 

the 6 for  the 5.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Oh okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   But  i t  is  286 I  am sor ry.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So the idea is  you want  h im to ta lk  about  

page 285? 

ADV SONI SC:   286.  

CHAIRPERSON:   286 ja  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  there is  no 285 here.  
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ADV SONI SC:   No that  i s  the document .  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh is  th is  286 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   286 has got… 

MR MOLEFE:   S imi lex.  

CHAIRPERSON:   S imi lex ja .  

ADV SONI SC:   Sor ry Chai rperson.  

MR MOLEFE:   Okay page 285.   Oh 285 is  there.   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay we are deal ing wi th  286.   What  is  the 10 

document  at  286? 

MR MOLEFE:   So th is  is  an invoice .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is  an invoice Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   From whom to whom? 

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is  an invoice f rom Simi lex  to  AM 

Consul t ing Engineers.   Now AM Consul t ing Engineers is  a  

company of  Mr Mashaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   That  AM stands for  Auswel l  Mashaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   And S imi lex was? 

MR MOLEFE:   Was a company owned by Mar ia  Gomez.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   And you wi l l  see that  Mr Molefe i f  you look 
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under S imi lex the name Simi lex i t  te l ls  you who the  

d i rectors are,  you see that?  Right  a t  the top.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   And who are the d i rectors?  

MR MOLEFE:   The d i rectors are  Mar ia  Cruz Gomez and 

Domingos Gomez.   I  th ink Domingos Gomez is  her  husband.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then we may as wel l  for  the sake of  

completeness ind icate that  that  invoice is  dated the 1 10 

January 2014.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  i s  invoice number  002/SML/2014 

and i t  is  for  a  to ta l  amount  of  R100 – is  that  –  what  – how 

much is  that?  R14 100 000.00 is  that  cor rect?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Do you see that  Mr  Molefe? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes I  do Chai rperson 

ADV SONI SC:   Now I  just  want  to  go back now to page 283 20 

wi th  th is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Before you do so Mr Soni ,  Mr Molefe are  

you able to  see the descr ip t ion o f  serv ices in  respect  o f  

which th is  invoice  was being issued?  Are you able to  read 

what  the nature o f  the serv ice – serv ices were – was? 
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MR MOLEFE:   The descr ip t ion of  serv ices i t  says  serv ice 

rendered IRPTM planning and p lanning development .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Development  and implementat ion.  

MR MOLEFE:   And implementat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And in  terms of  the rate is  says 30% 

of  the to ta l  amount .   You are able to  see that?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  can see a 30% of  the to ta l  amount .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay Mr Soni  you can then proceed to 

– to  283 I  th ink you sa id.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   So i f  you look at  the schedule that  we 10 

looked at  there a t  page 283 you wi l l  see that  amount  has 

been ref lected in  the th i rd  l ine of  the payments.   Do you see 

that?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before that  Mr Soni  I  th ink le t  us – le t  us 

get  h im to f i rs t  te l l  us what  is  re f lected in  th is  schedule.   

Obviously that  wi l l  inc lude what  you are ta lk ing about .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe just  to  read what  is  in  the schedule 

there.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And dates.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you able to  read Mr Molefe the dates,  

the payee and the amount  as ref lected in  th is  schedule at  

page 283? 
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MR MOLEFE:   Oh 283.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where the schedule of  payment  – 

payments appears.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  am going to  do so Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  i f  i t  is  easy otherwise Mr Soni  you 

can read i t  in .  

MR MOLEFE:   The – there is  one payee there S imi lex.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And 1,  2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  5 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Appears 5 t imes and then of  course there are  

only the dates wr i t ten there was on the 6 May 2014,  20 of  

January 2014,  10  January 2014.   The other  par t  does not  

have the dates.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh I  am sor ry.   I  am sor ry Mr Mole fe.   Let  

me just  qu ick ly  read i t  the way we – I  th ink we should.   

Accord ing to  th is  schedule on the  6 May 2014 a company 

S imi lex Pty L im i ted was paid an amount  of  is  that  

R9 400 000.00 Mr  Soni?  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is  so Chai rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And on the 20 January 2014 S imi lex  Pty  

Ltd was paid an amount  of  R14 500 000.00,  is  that  r ight?  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And on the 10 January 2014 S imi lex  Pty  

Ltd was paid R14 100 000.00 and no date is  g iven for  
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another  payment  to  S imi lex Pty L imi ted  which amounts to  

R90 000.00 and S imi lex was paid a lso another amount  on a  

date that  is  not  g iven for  –  i t  was paid R2 050 000.00,  am I  

r ight?  

ADV SONI SC:   That  i s  so yes Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and then the last  three payments 

re la te to  Nkosi ’s  –  Nkosi  Sabelo  Incorporated on the 11 

Apr i l  2013 Nkosi  Sabelo Incorporated was paid 

R14 300 000.00.   And on the 22 Apr i l  2013 Nkosi  Sabelo  

Incorporated was paid R14 200 000.00 and on the 22 May 10 

2013 another  ent i ty  o r  Nkosi  Sabelo was paid two t imes not  

three t imes.   Then on the 22 May 2013 Knowles Husain  

L inks Incorporated t rust  account  –  oh  i t  a lso says in  [Nkosi  

Sabelo Incorporated]  was paid R10 400 000.00.   And there  

is  an amount  of  R79 040 000.00 g iven there.   And then 

there is  a  handl ing fee of  10% seems to be g iven as 

R7 904 000.00 and the whole to ta l  is  R86 944 000.00.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes we may cont inue.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   So compar ing the –  the payments or  the  

invoice against  the payment  i f  you look at  the invoice at  

page 286 i t  is  da ted  the  1 s t  o f  January,  a l though i t  says  1 t h  

ins tead o f  say ing  1s t ,  f i rs t ,  “s t ”  i t  says  1 th ,  do  you see  

tha t?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  1 s t  January  2014.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   Do you see tha t  Mr  Mole fe?  

ADV SONI  SC:    What  page are  we look ing  a t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    A t  page 286.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Oh,  286,  okay,  i t  says ,  okay yes,  

okay,  the  1 th  o f  January?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes so  the  amount  tha t  was pa id  on  tha t  

o r  the  amount  o f  the  invo ice  was R14 100 000,  do  you see 

tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  can  see tha t .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    I f  you  compare  the  payments  as  they  

appear  on  page 283 do you see a  s im i la r  payment  made in  

the  th i rd  l ine?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson,  i t  is  so ,  a  

s im i la r  amount .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And i t  says  tha t  tha t  payment  was made 

on the  10 t h  o f  January,  on  tha t  page,  on  page 283.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  does say on  the  10 t h  o f  January.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Bu t  th is  –  we l l  you know th i s  one is  an  20 

invo i ce .    

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   I ssued on the  1 s t  o f  January,  n ine  days la te r  

i t  go t  pa id .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   No,  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  compare  the  
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fac t  tha t  there  was an invo ice  fo r  t ha t  amount  and payment  

fo r  tha t  amount  was made? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Then i f  you look a t  page 287 what  i s  tha t  

document?  

MR MOLEFE:   287 the  document  i s  aga in  an  invo ice  f rom 

S imulax .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And addressed to?  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is  addressed to  A M Consu l t ing  Eng ineers .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes i t  i s  f rom the  same company to  the  10 

same company.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And what  i s  the  amount  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Son i ,  i t  can ’ t  be  f rom the  

same company to  the  same company.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  know what  you mean.   I t  i s  f rom 

S imulax  to  A M Consu l t ing  and i t  i s  da ted  5  January  2014,  

i t  i s  invo ice  number  003/SML/N14 and i t  i s  fo r  an  amount  o f  

R16 450 000 and  the  se rv i ces  are  descr ibed as  serv i ce  20 

rendered by  RPGN P lann ing  Deve lopment  and 

Implementa t ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Some o f  these th ings  are  un l i ke l y  to  be  
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d isputed so  you can move fas ter  on  them and you can jus t  

read them to  the  w i tness fo r  conf i rmat ion .    

ADV SONI  SC:    As  i t  p leases.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

ADV SONI  SC:    Can I  then ask  you to  look  aga in  a t  page 

283,  the  amount  pa id  as  re f lec ted  on the  second l ine  i s  fo r  

an  amount  o f  R14  500 000.   I t  i s  on  the  second l ine  now Mr  

Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MOLEFE:   And tha t  was pa id  on  the  20 t h  o f  January.  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  was pa id  on  the  20 t h  o f  January.   So 

i t  i s  no t  fo r  the  same amount  o f  tha t  invo ice ,  because the  

invo i ce  i s  fo r  R16 450 000,  the  amount  tha t  appears  the re  

is  R14 500 00.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    There  i s  no  cor re la t ion  be tween those  

two?  

MR MOLEFE:    There  is  no  cor re la t ion .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Can I  ask  you then to  look  a t  page 290.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    290.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  you go  to  290,  do  you want  to  

conf i rm how you have to ld  –  the  w i tness has to ld  us  how 

we come to  have th is  schedu le  o f  payments .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was g i ven to  Mr  Mamabolo  by  Mr  

Mashaba and Mr  Mamabolo  gave  i t  to  Mr  Mole fe .   What  

about  the  invo ices f rom S imi lex ,  can we know how we 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SONI  SC:    I  w i l l  c la r i f y  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . come to  have tha t .  

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    Mr  Mole fe  you unders tand the  issue  

tha t ’s  been ra i sed,  where  the  invo ices par t  o f  the  

documents  tha t  Mr  Mashaba gave to  Mr  Mamabo lo .   You 

see you asked h im . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  Mamabolo  d id  

no t  have the  invo ices,  he  had the  schedu le  o f  payments .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  okay.   

ADV SONI  SC:    So  where  d id  you  get  these invo ices f rom? 

MR MOLEFE:    I  th ink  these invo ices came as a  resu l t  o f  

the  invest iga t ions .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Oh so  they  were  a f fec ted  f rom the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    S imply  f rom the  schedu le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    From the  Werksmans invest iga t ions.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    And so  is  the  proof  o f  payment  in  regard  

to  a l l  o f  them those were  no t  g iven by  Mr  Mashaba?  So i f  

you look a t  page  285 fo r  example  the  le t te r  o f  au thor i t y,  

they  were  no t  g iven by  Mr  Mashaba to  Mr  Mamabolo  

MR MOLEFE:    285?  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you th ink  we have a  d i f fe ren t  285,  

why is  th is  285 –  wasn ’ t  285 someth ing  e l se?   

ADV SONI  SC:    No i t  i s  –  you w i l l  reca l l  Cha i rperson I  

made a  m is take I  sa id  286 was 285 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  a l r igh t .   185 is  a  le t te r  f rom 

consu l t ing  eng ineers  addressed to  Mr  D inapathe r.  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  i s  a  le t te r  o f  Mashaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  the  le t te r  f rom Mashaba,  and  i t  says  

the  sub jec t  i s  le t te r  o f  au thor i t y  and i t  says  payment  to  a 10 

cred i to r,  okay,  so  what  was the  quest ion  Mr  Son i?  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  am ask ing  was th is  document  –  or  so r ry  

–  what  i s  the  source  o f  th is  document ,  because as  I  

unders tand i t  now,  and I  m isunders tood,  tha t  th is  payment  

schedu le  i s  the  on ly  document  tha t  Mr  Mashaba gave to  Mr  

Mamabolo  or  am I  wrong?  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l  i t  cou ld  be  so ,  bu t  when we  

invest iga te ,  when  we invest iga te  t he  banks are  ob l iged to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Look th is  s ide  p lease.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    So  when th is  le t te r  o f  au tho r i t y  comes f rom 

Mr  Mashaba and he is  te l l ing  h is  banker  to  pay,  to  pay Mr  

Husa in  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  how d id  he  get  ho ld  o f  th is  le t te r,  

how does i t  come to  be  he re?   D id  i t  come th rough the  
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invest iga t ion  tha t  Werksmans was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:     I  th ink  i t  came th rough the  invest iga t ion  

Cha i rperson,  i t  cer ta in ly  was no t  in  the  document  tha t  

Mashaba gave,  Mashaba gave me tha t  schedu le  on ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

MR MOLEFE:    Which  I  gave to  the  invest iga tors .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Can I  jus t  ask  you to  look  a t  page 264  

wh ich  is  par t  o f  your  a f f idav i t .   Okay very  qu ick ly  Mr  Mole fe  

a t  paragraph 9 .3  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MOLEFE:    264?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  wh ich  is  par t  o f  your  rep ly ing  

a f f idav i t ,  you say on  or  about  the  2n d  o f  September  Mr  

Mamabolo  co l lec ted  the  documents  f rom Mr  Mashaba and  

th is  i s  the  who le  se t  o f  documents  tha t  you  say he  

co l lec ted .    

MR MOLEFE:    The one I  took  f rom h im persona l ly  was the  

schedu le ,  bu t  he  wou ld  have been work ing  w i th  the  

invest iga to r  s ince  we have so  some o f  those documents  

cou ld  have been g iven d i rec t l y  to  the  invest iga tors .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  dea l  w i th  i t  th is  way,  okay  

Mr  Mole fe  in  th is  –  in  your  a f f idav i t  in  th is  mat te r  page 264 

o f  the  bund le  be fore  you,  you say  a t  page –  a t  paragraph  

9 ,  po in t  13  tha t :  

“On o r  about  2  September  2015 Mr  Mamabolo  
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co l lec ted  the  documents  f rom Mr  Mashaba a t  h is  

o f f i ce  wh ich  is  s i tua ted  in  B lock  G,  Cent ra l  Park  

400,  16 t h  Road,  Midrand.    Mr  Mashaba handed over  

an  enve lope conta in ing  the  fo l low ing document  . . . ”  

Mean ing  Mr  Mashaba handed over  to  Mr  Mamabolo  an  

enve lope conta in ing  a  number  o f  documents  wh ich  you  

then l i s t  the re .   Do you reca l l  tha t  to  be  what  happened,  

because tha t ’s  what  you appear  to  have to ld  the  H igh  

Cour t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  honest ly  don ’ t  have a  reco l lec t ion  o f  10 

see ing  every  invo ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  have a  reco l lec t ion  o f  th is?  

MR MOLEFE:    The enve lope wou ld  have been g i ven to  my 

lawyers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    And I  remember  see ing  the  s ta tement ,  

because I  d iscussed aga in  a f te r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  what  may be necessary  i s  tha t  

a f te rwards Mr  Mole fe  can be g iven h i s  en t i re  a f f idav i t  in  

th is  mat te r,  the  rep l y ing  a f f idav i t ,  so  tha t  he  can go  20 

th rough i t  p roper l y  and re f resh h is  memory  on  the  contex t ,  

then he cou ld  in  due course  maybe send a  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  to  say  a f te r  hav ing  had – gone back  to  tha t  

a f f idav i t  has h i s  memory  been re f reshed to  say th is  was –  

th is  i s  co r rec t  o r  has he  found tha t  i t  was not  co r rec t .  



29 JUNE 2020 – DAY 226 
 

Page 202 of 204 
 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  no  tha t  i s  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  tha t  be  f ine  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  w i l l  be  f ine  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now the  documents  I  am jus t  pu t t ing  to  

you genera l l y  Mr  Mole fe ,  except  for  the  d i f fe rence between  

–  you so r t  o f  seem to  be  wor r ied  about  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    No I  am worr ied  about  the  f igures ,  you see 

a t  page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  one second,  maybe we –  i t  m igh t  be  10 

conven ien t  to  take  a  comfor t  b reak and you cou ld  have a  

look and then we come back,  i s  tha t  f ine ,  bu t  we are  a t  

near ly  quar te r  past  f i ve ,  I  am s t i l l  f ine  about  cont inu ing ,  i f  

you  are  s t i l l  f i ne  I  am sure  everybody wou ld  be  f ine .    

Would  tha t  be  f ine ,  wou ld  tha t  he lp  i f  we have a  comfor t  

b reak?  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  w i l l  be  f ine  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay le t ’s  take  a  comfo r t  b reak and  

then we can come back,  we can come back a t  twenty  f i ve  

past  so  about  ten  m inutes  b reak.  20 

 We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS    

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Your  m ic .    

ADV SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson i t  seems i t  has  been a  long  
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day  fo r  the  w i tness and I  p roposed to  h im tha t  i t  may be  

bet te r  i f  he  s lep t  over  th i s  i ssue and we dea l t  w i t h  i t  f i rs t  

th ing  in  the  morn ing ,  wh ich  wou ld  a l low us  to  dea l  w i th  i t  

qu icker  and le t  h im be more  a t  ease.   Mr  Mole fe  i s  more  

than happy to  do  tha t  as  I  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  i s  tha t  f ine  Mr  Mole fe?    I s  tha t  

f ine ,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE:    Thanks Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  w i l l  jus t  g ive  you 

a lso  t ime to  re f resh your  memory  on  the  document .   I  was  10 

go ing  to  say we w i l l  s ta r t  ear l ie r  than ten  o ’ c lock  bu t  we 

cannot  because o f  o ther  commi tments  on  my pa r t ,  so  le t  us  

s ta r t  a t  ten  o ’c lock  as  no rmal  tomorrow.   I  guess  tha t  we 

shou ldn ’ t  be  long  and I  don ’ t  want  to  say we shou ldn ’ t  be  

long because I  thought  we wou ld  no t  take  the  who le  day 

bu t  I  th ink  eve ry th ing  tha t  we  had to  dea l  w i th  was  

impor tan t  so  I  am not  regre t t ing  tha t  we have taken the  

who le  day,  bu t  tomorrow how much t ime do you th ink  we 

might  need?  

ADV SONI  SC:   I  don ’ t  th ink  more  than an hour  20 

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  okay,  no  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    We wi l l  jus t  go  fac tor  in  the  issue tha t  Mr  

Mole fe  ra i sed r igh t  a t  the  end . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  the  connect ing  o f  the  do ts  ja .  
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ADV SONI  SC:   Bu t  th is  par t  won ’ t  take  much ,  much  

longer.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  okay then we a re  go ing  to  ad jou rn  

and resume tomorrow a t  ten .   

 We ad journ .  

ADV SONI  SC:   As  you p lease.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 30 JUNE 2020  


